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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of
FIRST BANKS.A.

Report on the Audit of the financial statements
Opinion
1.

We have audited the financial statements of FIRST BANKS.A. (the "Bank"), with registered office in Sos. Nicolae Titulescu 29-

31, District 1, Bucharest, Romania, identified by the unique tax registration code RO 7025592 which comprise the statement
of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and notes to the financial statements.
2.

The financial statements as at December 31, 2020 are identified as follows:
•
•

3.

RON 753,269 thousand
RON 70,766 thousand

Equity
Net loss for the year

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Bank as at 31 December 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union ("IFRS") and National Bank of Romania Order
no. 27/2010 for the approval of Accounting regulation in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union, with subsequent amendments, ("Order 27/2010").

Basis for Opinion
4.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the
European Parliament and the Council (forth named The "Regulation") and Law 162/2017 ("the law"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants'
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), in accordance with ethical requirements relevant for the audit of
the financial statements in Romania including the Regulation and the law, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
5.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Nature of the area of focus

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Collective impairment of loans and advances to customers

Following the adoption of IFRS 9-Financial Instruments

{"IFRS 9"), the Bank accounts for credit losses based on
expected credit losses (ECL): for a period up to 12 month for
credit exposures for which the credit risk did not increase
significantly since origination and for credit life time for
those with significant increase in credit risk, as detailed in
impairment policy from Note 2.15 to the financial
statements.

Based on our risk assessment and industry knowledge, with the support
of our Credit risk experts, we have examined the impairment charges for

loans and evaluated the methodology applied as well as the key
assumptions and source data used by the Management according to the
description of the key audit matter.
Our procedures included the following elements:

•

Testing of key controls in respect of:

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank's key financial
statements lines with significant impact from the adoption
of IFRS 9 are Loans and advances to customers amounting
to RON 3,712,201 thousand (net of the related ECL
allowances amounted to RON 235,239 thousand).

.

The Bank exercises significant judgement using subjective
assumptions over both when and how much to record as
ECL for loans and receivables. Since determination of
appropriate impairment allowances for expected credit
losses on loans and receivables requires use of complex
models (generally dependent on IT elements) and
significant judgement from the Management, process of
measuring expected credit losses may be exposed to
management bias. Because loans and receivables form a
major portion of the Bank's assets, and due to the
significance of the Management professional judgments
applied in classifying loans and receivables into various
stages stipulated in IFRS 9 and determining related
impairment requirements, this audit area is considered a
key audit matter.

.

.

.

•

.
.
.
.
.

timely identification of impairment triggers, including
significant increase in credit risk;
debtors' financial performance assessment and estimation
of future cash flow;
the governance processes in place for credit models, inputs
and overlays, review of ECLs and post model adjustments
approval.

Obtaining and analysing the information to support the
assumptions used in:

.

.
.

Key areas of professional judgment exercised by the
Management included:

.
.

quality assurance of the source data used in developing
professional judgements and ECL related models;

The use of historic data in the process of determining
risk parameters;

.

The interpretation of the requirements to determine
receivables impairment under application of IFRS 9,
which is reflected in the expected credit loss model;

Development of models to reflect the potential impact of
future economic conditions in the ECL computation,
including the impact of COVID-19;

.

Assessment of adequacy of Management analysis and
adjustments resulting from the impact made by the COVID19 virus crisis on all aspects of the estimation of Expected
Credit Losses.

The increased level of uncertainty and level of
subjectivity of management judgments relating to
2020 financial reporting due to the COVID-19
pandemic.
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Development and appropriateness of the stage allocation
and criteria used for determination of significant increase in
credit risk including the impact of Covid 19 and allocation of
exposures with granted moratorium .

Post-model adjustments for particular high-risk portfolios,
captured in the expected credit loss model. As regards
macroeconomic parameters, we assessed the analysis
prepared by the Bank's management as to the necessity to
manually adjust macroeconomic and other parameters of
the IFRS 9 model to fairly reflect the expected degree of
defaults and recoverability of loans in the future. We tested
the completeness, accuracy and validity of qualitative
adjustments made to model and assessed key changes in
high-risk portfolios since last year in relation to industry
standards and historical data;

Timely identification of exposures with a significant
increase in credit risk and credit impairment;

The assessment of the forward-looking information,
including the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Development of the expected credit loss models;

.

Assumptions used in the expected credit loss models
to assess the credit risk related to the exposure and
the expected future cash flows of the customers;

Potential impact on the assumptions used, increases
in credit risk and impairments, and future cash flows
as a result of the socio-economic consequences of the
COVID-19 virus crisis, including the public moratorium
and other events;

Development of the models for computation of the key risk
parameters {12 month Probability of default, Lifetime
Probability of default and Loss Given Default), including
procedures on the source data quality;

Deloitte
Nature of the area of focus

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Collective impairment of loans and advances to customers

For all of the above procedures, we involved credit risk specialists to
review the ECL model development, forward-looking models and code

to test whether these appropriately reflected the Bank's policies and
methodologies.
•

Verifying the accurate implementation of the ECL computation
methodology into the IT computation systems, including:

•

Test the general IT controls related to the data sources and
computations of ECL;

•

Assessment on a sample basis of the credit quality and stage

allocation;
•

Test on a sample basis the ECL computations.

Interest and Fee Income Recognition

Refer to Note 26 and 27 of the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020 the interest income
represents RON 305,137 thousand and fee and commission
income represents RON 98,377 thousand, the main source
being loans to customers. These are the main contributors
to the operating income of the Bank affecting the
profitability.
While interest income is accrued over the expected life of
the financial instrument using the effective interest rate,
the recognition of fee income depends on the nature of the
fees as follows:

•

Fees that are directly attributable to the financial
instrument are part of the effective interest rate
and accrued over the expected life of such an
instrument and are presented as interest income;

•

Fees for services provided are recognized when
service is provided and are presented as fee and
commission income;

•

Fees for the execution of an act are recognized
when the act has been completed and are
presented as fee and commission income.

Revenue recognition specifics, a high volume of individually
small transactions which depends on data quality of interest
and fee inputs and on IT solutions for their recording,
resulted in this matter being identified as a key audit
matter.

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of the key
internal controls and focused on:

•

Interest/fee inputs on customer loans and deposits from
customers;

•

Recording/changes of fees and interest rates;

•

Management oversight and control on interest and fee
income, including budget monitoring;

•

IT controls relating to access rights and change management
of relevant automated controls with the assistance of our IT
specialists.

We performed also the following procedures with regard to interest and
fees revenue recognition:
- We evaluated the accounting treatment applied by the Bank in respect
of fees charged to clients to determine whether the methodology
complies with the requirement of the relevant accounting standard. We
have focused our testing on challenging the correct classification of:
•

Fees that are identified as directly attributable to the financial
instrument and are part of the effective interest rate;

•

Fees that are not identified as directly attributable to the
financial instrument.

- We assessed the completeness and accuracy of data used for the
calculation of interest and fee income.
- We evaluated the mathematical formula used for accruing the relevant
income over expected life of the loan.
- We have assessed the interest and fee income by building our own
expectation on the revenue and compared with the actual results of the
Bank.
- We assessed the disclosures related to interest and fee income against
the requirements of IFRS standards.
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Other information -Administrator's Report
6.

Management is responsible for preparation and presentation of the other information. The other information comprises the
Administrator' report which includes the nonMfinandal information declaration, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditors report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
With respect to the Administrator's report1 {"Administrator's report"), we read and report if this has been prepared, in all
material respects, in accordance with the provisions of the National Bank of Romania Order no. 27/2010, articles 12-16.
On the sole basis of the procedures performed within the audit of the financial statements, in our opinion:
a)

The information included in the administrator' report for the financial year for which the financial statements have
been prepared are consistent, in all material respects, with these financial statements;

b)

The administrator report has been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the provisions of the National
Bank of Romania Order no. 27/2010, articles 12-16.

Moreover, based on our knowledge and understanding concerning the Bank and its environment gained during the audit on the
financial statements prepared as at 31 December 2020, we are required to report if we have identified a material misstatement
of this Administrator's report. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
7.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Order
27/2010 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

8.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

9.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
10.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

11.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's
internal control.
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•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant

doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going
concern.
•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

12.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

13.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

14.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Requirements for audits of public interest entities
15.

We have been appointed by the General Assembly of Shareholders on 06.05.2020 to audit the financial statements of FIRST
BANKS.A. for the financial year ended December 31, 2020. The uninterrupted total duration of our commitment is 4 years,
covering the financial year ended as of 31 December 2017, until 31 December 2020.

We confirm that:
•

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report submitted to the Audit Committee of the Bank that we issued
the same date we issued this report. Also, in conducting our audit, we have retained our independence from the Bank.

•

No non-audit services referred to in Article 5 (1) of EU Regulation No. 537/2014 were provided.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Claudiu Ghiurluc.

Claudiu Ghiurluc, Audit Director

For signature, please refer to the
original signed Romanian version.
Registered in the Electronic Public Register of Financial
Auditors and Audit Firms under no. AF 3113
On behalf of:
DELOITTE AUDIT S.R.L.

Registered in the Electronic Public Register of Financial
Auditors and Audit Firms under no. FA 25
The Mark Building, 84-98 and 100-102 Ca lea Grivi\ei,
8th Floor and 9th Floor, District 1
Bucharest, Romania
29 April 2021
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FIRSTBANK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
(all amounts in "RON thousand", unless otherwise stated)

Note

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

811,868
72

812,005

11

6

1

1

7

586,926

437,824

9

1,826,225
3,712,201

1,766,488
4,095,022
50,823

29,220
6,019

30,948
7,443

Assets
Cash and balances with Central Bank

4, 5

Derivative financial assets
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Due from other banks
Investments in debt securities
Loans and advances to customers

8, 33

Repurchase receivables

10

Investment property
Current income tax prepayment

12
32

Non-current income tax
Other financial assets
Other non-financial assets

33.8
16.1
16.2

Intangible assets
Premises and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Repossessed assets

8

42,444

41,717

15
13
14

96,762
11,990
49,607
25,433
90,056

105,517
17,930
54,884
27,090
136,203

17

20,996

29,085

7,309,820

7,612,988

Total assets
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities

11

11,665

2,821

Due to other banks
Customer accounts

18

637,283

584,156

19
22

5,477,529
194,898

Subordinated debts
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Provisions for risks and charges

14
20.1
21

90,217
44,204
65,017

5,713,698
191,326
135,224
49,291
55,752

Deferred tax liability*
Other non-financial liabilities

32
20.2

5,500
30,238

17,331
44,758

6,556,551

6,794,357

1,246,880

1,246,647

(94)
(613,061)

(539,677)

119,544

111,522

Total liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Share Premium
(Accumulated loss)/ Retained earnings

24

Other reserves
Non-controlling interests

25
2.1.

139

Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' Equity
• The comparative information has been restated as described in note 2.4.

753,269

818,631

7,309,820

7,612,988

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

....~..""

,

Paardekooper

Chief Financial Officer

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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FIRSTBANK
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(all amounts in "RON thousand", unless otherwise stated)

Note

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to prafit or loss:
Debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive
income:

25

9,458

8,871

Gains less losses arising during the year
Gains less losses reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal
Income tax recorded directly in other comprehensive income

25
25
32

11,494
(242)
(1,794)

16,455
(5,980)
(1,604)

(61,308)

127,701

(61,308)

127,697
4

Total comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interests

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 April 202 and were signed on its behalf by:

arles Hubertus Pa rdekooper

loana la~obeanu
Chief Financial Officer

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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FIRSTBANK
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

(all amounts in "RON thousand", unless otherwise stated)

Note

Balance at 1 January 2020

Total comprehensive income
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Distribution to legal reserves
Business combination
Transfer of revaluation reserve to retained earnings
Total comprehensive income

Share
capital

Share
premium

1,246,647

Revaluation
reserve for
securities at
FVOCI

Other
reserves

4,795

106,727

Retained
earnings

(539,677)

Noncontrolling
interest

139

(70,766)

818,631

(70,766)
9,458

9,458
2.31

Total

233

(94)

(443)

(993)

(2,618)

(139)

(4,054)

233

(94)

9,015

(993)

(73,384)

(139)

(65,362)

1,246,880

(94)

13,810

105,734

(613,061)

Transactions with owners
Increase in share capital
Total contributions and distributions
Balance as at 31 December 2020

The financia l statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

~,~

Charles Hubertus Phardekooper

fil

loana lacobeanu
Chief Financial Officer

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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753,269

FIRSTBANK
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(all amounts in "RON thousand", unless otherwise stated)

Note

Share
capital

Share
premium

Revaluation
reserve for
securities at
FVOCI

Other
reserves

Retained
earnings

(4,075)

104,654)

(656,430)

---

Balance at 1 January 2019

1,163,834

Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Distribution to legal reserves
Transfer of revaluation reserve to retained earnings

8,870

Total comprehensive income

8,870

Noncontrolling
interest

607,983

118,827
2,075

(2,075)

(2)

2

2,073

116,754

Total

1

118,827
8,871

4

127,701

Transactions with owners
Increase in share capita l

82,813

82,813

Total contributions and distributions

82,813

82.813

Acquisition of subsidiary
Balance as at 31 December 2020

1,246,647

4,795

1cial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

!;,;;ekoope,

loan, ,,® .e,n,
Chief Fina~cial Officer

\

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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106,727

539,676

135

135

139

818,632

FIRS'TBANK
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(all amounts in RON thousand unless otherwise stated)

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

217,894
(64,083)
104,327
(20,459)
2,682
14,936
242
2,657
37,676
(157,473)
(133,806)

281,096
(65,909)
109,669
(21,737)
265
6,100
13,839
5,980
(71,799)
63,084
(147,772)
(138,578)

4,594

34,236

(lncrease)/Decrease in due from other banks
(lncrease)/Decrease in loans and advances to customers
(lncrease)/Decrease in trading securities
{Increase) /Decrease in other assets

(10,235)
325,392

(8,955)
328,692

28,399

{110,755)

Total changes in operating assets

343,557

208,983

(Decrease)/l ncrease in deposits due to other banks
(Decrease)/lncrease in amounts due to customers
(Decrease)/lncrease in other liabilities

52,562
(231,232)
(12,132)

(328,901)
(207,335)
12,427

Total changes in operating assets

(190,802)

(523,809)

157,349

(280,590)

Note

Cash flows from operating activities:
Interest received
Interest paid
Fee and commission received
Fee and commission paid
Income received from trading securities
Income received from financial derivatives
Income received from trading in foreign currencies
Income received from investment securities
Other operating income/(expenses)
Sales of loans and recoveries on loans previously written off
Cash payments to employees
Cash payments to third parties (suppliers)
Income tax (paid)/received
Net cash flows from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities

Change in operating assets:

Change in operating liabilities:

Net cash from/(used in) in operating activities

Translation from the original Romanian version .
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FIRSTBANK
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(all amounts in RON thousand unless otherwise stated)

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

(773,088)
776,326
66,536
272
(26,869)

(1,205,557)
(90,545)
1,276,938
42,269
107,265
(34,523)

43,177

95,847

Drawdowns from borrowing
Repayment of borrowings
Cash out from interest for borrowing
Payment of lease liabilities
Increase in share capital

(11,408)
(45,007)
233

(11,997)
(48,296)
82,813

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

(56,182)

22,520

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Increase in cash and cash equivalents at acquisition of Bank Leumi

144,345

(162,222)
368,759

Note

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of investment securities
Acquisition of equity investments
Proceeds from sale of investment securities
Interest from investment securities
Proceeds from sale of property, equipment and intangible assets
Acquisition of property, equipment and intangible assets

10
10
10
10
14, 15
14, 15

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

4

1,182,547

976,012

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

4

1,326,892

1,182,548

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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FIRSTBANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
(all amounts in "RON thousand", unless otherwise stated)
1

REPORTING ENTITY

First Bank S.A. (the "Bank") is registered in Romania since 199S as a joint stock Company and is licensed by the National Bank
of Romania to conduct banking activities. The financial statements comprise the financial statements of First Bank S.A for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and the comparative consolidated financial statements of the First Bank Group (the "Group").
The Group consisted as of 31 December 2019 of the First Bank as parent company together with its subsidiary Bank Leumi
Romania SA. The merger by absorption of Bank Leumi SA was effective on 30 April 2020, which was the date established in the
Merger Project and approved by the shareholders of the Bank through the EGMS Decision dated 24 February 2020.
The Bank provides retai l and commercial banking services to companies and private individuals. These include: accounts
opening, attracting deposits, domestic and international payments, foreign exchange transactions, working capital finance,
medium and long term facilities, retail loans, bank guarantees and letter of credits. In addition, First Bank offers loan portfolio
administration services. Currently, the Bank is servicing business and retail loans of two major Greek lenders.
The Bank operates through its head office located in Bucharest and a network of 56 branches and offices (31 December 2019:
59) located in Romania. The Bank had 1,061 employees as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: 9S5).
The registered office of the Bank is: Sos. Nicolae Titulescu nr. 29-31, Bucharest, Sector 1, Romania.
First Bank is directly controlled by JCF IV Tiger Holdings S.a r.l. (Luxembourg), with registered office in 5, rue Guillaume Kroll,
L-1882 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.
Up to 28th of June 2018, the Bank was part of Piraeus Bank Group (Piraeus Bank S.A., Greece), wh ich is listed on the Athens
Stock Exchange, having its registered office at 4, Amerikis Str, 10 364 Athens, Greece.
An agreement for the sale and purchase of 99.99973% of Piraeus Bank Group' s shares in First Bank SA (former Piraeus Bank
Romania SA) was signed on 21 December 2017 between Piraeus Bank S.A. and J.C. Flowers & Co. On 28th of June 2018, J.C.
Flowers & Co. has completed the acquisition process of First Bank SA having received the necessary approvals from the
National Bank of Romania. In October 2018, the Bank changed its name from "Piraeus Bank Romania SA" t o "First Bank SA" .
J.C. Flowers & Co. is a leading private investment firm dedicated to investing globally in the financial services industry. Founded
in 1998, the firm has invested more than US$ 15 billion of capital in 53 portfolio companies in 18 countries, across a range of
industry subsectors that include banking, insurance and reinsurance, securities firms, specialty finance, and services and asset
management. With more t han US$ 6 billion of assets under management, J.C. Flowers & Co. has offices in New York and
London.
The shareholding structure of the Bank is presented below:

JCF IV Tiger Holdings S.a.r.l
Individua ls
Total

31 December 2020

3 1 December 2019

99.98051%
0.01949%

99.99995%
0.00005%

100.00%

100.00%

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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FIRSTBANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
(all amounts in "RON thousand", unless otherwise stated)
2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1

Basis of preparation
a)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union ("IFRS") and National Bank of Romania Order 27/2010, as amended ("NBR Order 27/2010"),
under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sa le investments (through other
comprehensive income), trading securities and derivative transactions at fair value through profit and loss account. The
principa l accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements comprise the financial statements of First bank SA for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
comparative consolidated financial statements of First Bank together with its subsidiary, Bank Leumi SA, which has been
acquisitioned by the Bank on 10 July 2019. The financial statements as of 31 December 2019 contain the results of the
operations of First Bank for the 12-month period ending 31 December 2019 and the profit and loss and cash flow of Bank
Leumi for the six-month period ending 31 December 2019.
The merger by absorption of Bank Leumi SA was effective on 30 April 2020, which was the date established in the Merger
Project and approved by the shareholders of the Bank through the EGMS Decision dated 24 February 2020.
b)

Basis of consolidation

On 10 July 2019 First Bank acquired an equity investment in Bank Leumi representing 99.9335% of its share capital. For
convenience, First Bank has chosen to designate the acquisition date as the beginning of the month of the actual acquisition
date (1 July 2019).
For the financial statements as of 31 December 2019, the Group applied the requirements of IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements, consequently the Subsidiary is included in the consolidation starting from the date when the control was
transferred to the Group, on the acquisition date on 1 July 2019.
In its consolidated financial statements prepared after the acquisition of control in Bank Leumi, First Bank applies the provisions
of IFRS 3 "Business Combinations", which contains the principles to be applied by the acquirer on the recognition and
measurement of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as part of a business combination:
i) The recognition principle is that the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized separately
from goodwill at the acquisition date.
ii) The measurement principle is that the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as part of a business
combination are measured at their acquisition date fair values.
iii) First Bank accounts for the acquisition of Bank Leumi in its consolidated financial statements by applying the acquisition
method. Thus, the consolidation is prepared based on the following principles:
1.

The assets and liabilities of the Bank and its Subsidiary are aggregated in the consolidated statement of financial
position - i.e. 100% of the Bank's assets and liabilities measured at their book value and 100% of Bank Leumi's
assets and liabilities measured at their fair value, in accordance with IFRS 3;

2.

The identifiable intangible assets acquired are recognized in the consolidated financial statements, separately
from bargaining gain resulting at the date of acquisition.

3.

Bargaining gain arising on consolidation is computed in accordance with IFRS 3.

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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FIRSTBANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

(all amounts in " RON thousand", unless otherwise stated)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
4.

Deferred tax assets and/or liabilities are recognized in the consolidated financial statements considering the
impact of the fair value adjustments and the intangible assets recognized. Additionally, tax benefits arising from
the Subsidiary's carried forward tax losses which were previously not recognized by the Subsidiary are recognized
in the consolidated financial statements if the Bank has future taxable profits against which the unrecognized tax
benefit can be applied.

5.

Intra-group balances and transactions and the resulting unrealized profits are eliminated in full.

6.

Non-controlling interest is determined as the proportionate share of fair value of Bank Leu mi's net assets held by
the minority shareholders.

7.

Pre-acquisition reserves or retained earnings of Bank Leumi are not consolidated; the consolidated retained
earnings and reserves comprise only the retained earnings and reserves of First Bank and the post-acquisition
retained earnings and reserves of Bank Leumi.

The financial statements as of 31 December 2020 contain the results of the operations of First Bank for the 12-month period
ending and the profit and loss and cash flow of Bank Leumi for the 4 months period until the effective merger date of 30 April
2020.
2.2

a)

Functional and presentation currency

Functional and presentation currency

Functional currency of the Bank is the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates. The financial
statements are presented in Romanian Leu ("RON") which is the Bank's functional and presentation currency, rounded to the
nearest thousands, except when otherwise indicated.
b)

Transaction and balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated into the functional cu rrency at the official exchange rate valid at
the transaction date. Exchange differences resulting from the settlement of transactions denominated in foreign currency are
included in profit or loss at the time of settlement using the exchange rate ruling on that date.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are expressed in RON as at the balance sheet date. At 31
December 2020 the exchange rate used for translating foreign currency balances was EUR 1 = RON 4.8694 (31 December 2019:
EUR 1 =RON 4.7793 ), USO 1 =RON 3.9660 (31 December 2019: USO 1 =RON 4.2608) and CHF 1 =RON 4.4997 (31 December
2019: CHF 1 = RON 4.4033).
Foreign currency gains and losses arising from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities are reflected in the profit or
loss for the year. Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income/available for sale are analysed by comparison between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, such as equities classified as available for sale financial assets, are included in the fair
value reserve in other comprehensive income.

2.3

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in Note 3.
The significant accounting methods and policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements.
Translation from the original Romanian version.
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FIRSTBANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
(all amounts in " RON thousand", unless otherwise stated)
2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4

Comparatives

Prospective approach - comparative data includes only financial data of the accounting acquirer for the whole prior year, and
financial data of the accounting acquiree are included on ly in the current period from the moment of a legal merger.
Retrospective approach - comparative data includes:
•
financia l data of the accounting acquirer for the whole prior year, and
•
financia l data of the accounting acquiree for the period from a day when both the acquirer and acquiree
became entities under common control in the prior year till the end of the prior year.
The financial statements include the comparatives whenever such disclosures were applicab le. Restatement through
reclassification of comparatives as at 31 December 2019 were necessary in order to ensure the comparability of the data and
information with the current year presentation, as presented below:
(i)

(ii)

"Deferred income tax asset" caption in amount of RON 6,261 thousand was reclassified as "Deferred tax
liability".
"Cost of sold repossessed assets from foreclosed loan contracts caption in amount of RON (6,606) thousand was
reclassified as "Gain from sold repossessed assets from foreclosed loan contracts".

2.5

New Standards and Interpretations

(a)

Adoption of new/revised/amended IFRS

The following new standards, amendments to the existing standards and new interpretation issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the European Union ("EU"), applicab le to the Bank, are effective for the
current reporting period:
•

Amendments to IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" and IAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors" - Definition of Material adopted by the EU on 29 November 2019 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020),

•

Amendments to IFRS 3 "Business Combinations" - Definition of a Business - adopted by the EU on 21 April 2020
(effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of
that period)

•

Amendments to IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments", IAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement" and
IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures" - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - adopted by the EU on 15 January 2020
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020),

•

Amendments to IFRS 16 "Leases" - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (adopted by the EU on 9 October 2020 and
effective at the latest, as from 1 June 2020 for financial years starting on or after 1 January 2020);

•

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards adopted by the EU on 29 November 2019
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020).

The adoption of these amendments to the existing standards has not led to any material changes in the Bank's financial
statements.

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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FIRSTBANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

(all amounts in " RON thousand", unless otherwise stated)
2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.S

New Standards and Interpretations (continued)

(b)

Standards and Interpretations issued by the IASB and adopted by the EU but not yet effective

At the reporting date, IFRSs as adopted by the EU do not significantly differ from regulations adopted by the IASB except for
the following standards and amendments to the existing standards, which are applicable to the Ba nk and which were not
endorsed as at the date of authorisation of these financial statements:
•

Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts "Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9" - adopted
by the EU on 16 December 2020 (the expiry date for the temporary exemption from IFRS 9 was extended from 1 January
2021 to annual periods beginn ing on or after 1 January 2023)

•

Amendments to IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments", IAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement", IFRS
7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures", IFRS 4 "Insurance Contracts" and IFRS 16 "Leases" - Interest Rate Benchma rk
Reform - Phase 2 adopted by the EU on 13 January 2021 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021).

(c)

New standards and amendments to the existing standards issued by IASB but not yet adopted by the EU

At present, IFRS as adopted by the EU do not significantly differ from regulations adopted by the International Accounting
Standards Board {IASB) except for the following new standards and amendments to the existing standards, which were not
endorsed for use in EU as at publishing date of these financial statements {the effective dates stated below is for IFRS as issued
by IASB):
•

IFRS 14 "Regulatory Deferral Accounts" (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016) - the Europea n
Commission has decided not to launch the endorsement process of this interim standard and to wait for the fi nal
sta ndard;

•

IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts" including amendments t o IFRS 17 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023);

•

Amendments to IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023);

•

Amendments to IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment" - Proceeds before Intended Use (effective for annual periods
beginning on or aft er 1 January 2022};

•

Amendments to IAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets" - Onerous Contracts Fulfilling a Contract (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022);

•

Amendments to IFRS 3 "Business Combinations" - Reference to the Conceptual Framework with amendments to IFRS 3
(effective for annual periods beginn ing on or after 1 January 2022);

•

Amendments to IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" and IAS 28 "Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures"
-Sa le or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture and further amendments (effective
date deferred indefinitely unt il the research project on the equity method has been concluded);

Cost of

Amendments to various standards due t o "Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2018 - 2020}" resulting from the annua l
improvement project of IFRS {IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41) primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and
clarifying word ing (The amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9 and IAS 41 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. The amendment to IFRS 16 only regards an illustrative example, so no effective date is stated.).
The Ba nk did not ea rly-adopt new or amended standards in 2020.

Translat ion from the original Romanian version.
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FIRSTBANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
(all amounts in " RON thousand", unless otherwise stated)
2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6

Going concern

The Bank's management has made an assessment of the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the
Bank has the resources to continue its business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not awa re of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.
2.7

Accounting for the effect of hyperinflation

Romania has previously experienced relatively high levels of inflation and was considered to be hyperinflationary as defined
by IAS 29 "Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies" ("IAS 29"). IAS 29 requires that the financial statements
prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy to be restated in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of
reporting period (i.e. non-monetary items are restated using a general price index from the date of acquisition or contribution).
As the characteristics of the economic environment of Romania indicate that hyperinflation has ceased, effective from 1
January 2004, the Bank no longer applies the provisions of IAS 29. Accordingly, the amounts expressed in the measuring unit
current at 31 December 2003 are treated as the basis for the carrying amounts in these financial statements.
2.8

Financial assets and liabilities

2.8.1 Financial assets
a)

Classification

In accordance with IFRS 9 classification, the Bank classifies financial assets, in the following measurement categories:
Financial assets measured at amortised cost;
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
Fair value through profit and loss (FVPL).
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets is generally based on the Bank's business model to manage the
assets and the cash flow characteristics of the assets.
Before 1 January 2018, the Bank classified its financial assets as loans and receivables (amortised cost),
FVPL or available-for- sale category based on:
intention to sell or repurchase in the near term;
designation upon initial recognition as at FVPL or as available-for-sale;
positive intention and ability to hold until maturity.
The Bank classifies its financial assets into one of the following categories based on the assessment of business model and SPPI
characteristics, as follows:
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and cash flows represent solely payments of capital
and interest {SPPI) are classified and measured at amortised cost. In this category the Bank includes the loans granted
to customers, deposits placed with banks and sub-portfolio of government bonds.
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets and the contractual cash
flows represent solely payments of capital and interest are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. In this category the Bank includes a sub-portfolio of government bonds.
Financial assets that are held for trading, regardless of the cash flow characteristics are measured at fair value through
profit and loss. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2.8.1

Financial assets (continued)

a)

Classification (continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
The Bank measures financial assets at amortised cost if the following conditions are cumulatively met:
•

the financial asset is held to collect the contractual cash flows; and

•

the contractual terms of the financia l asset generate, at certain dates, cash flows that are exclusively principal
payments and interest on the principal due.

In order to verify these conditions, the Bank assesses loan agreements in respect of exclusive collections of principal and
interest, hereinafter referred to as the SPPI test.
The purpose of the SPPI test is to determine whether an agreement signed between the parties generates cash flows that
represent only principal repayments and interest payments calculated at the principal amount at the dates convened in the
schedule agreed upon by the parties. The Bank considers that a financial asset can be measured at amortised cost only if it
meets the conditions of the SPPI test. More complex agreements, which provide not only cash flows from principal and interest
payments, should be measured at fair value through profit or loss.
The above category is measured at amortised cost using effective interest method and is periodically assessed for expected
credit losses.
During the implementation of IFRS 9, financial assets measured at amortised cost under IAS 39 were classified as financial
assets at amortised cost in accordance with IFRS 9.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
In this category are classified the financial assets that satisfy both of the following criteria:
•

are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets,

•

the contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

The above category is periodically assessed for expected credit losses.
Equity instruments that are not held for trading are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, with no
recycling of gains or losses to profit or loss on derecognition. With the exception of dividends, which are directly recognized in
profit or loss, all other gains and losses arising from those instruments are directly recogn ized in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss.
For those equity instruments there is no impairment assessment.

Translation from the original Roman ian version .
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

2.8

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2.8.1

Financial assets (continued)

a)

Classification (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets included in this category are:
•
•
•

those acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term to obtain short term profit (held for trading).
those that do not meet the criteria to be classified into one of the above categories
those the Bank designated, at initial recognition, as at fair value through profit or loss; this classification option, which
is irrevocable, is used when the designation eliminates an accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise from
measuring financial assets and liabilities on a different basis (i.e. amortized cost) in relation to another financial asset
or liability (i.e. derivatives which are measured at fair va lue through profit or loss).

As at the reporting date, the Bank had not designated, at initial recognition, any financial assets as at fair va lue through profit
or loss. The Bank recognises a financial asset in its statement of financial position when, and only when, the Bank becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
b)

Recognition, de-recognition and initial measurement

A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets is recognised using either trade date accounting or settlement date
accounting. The Bank applies the same method consistently for all purchases and sales of financial assets having the similar
classification.
A contract that requires or permits net settlement of the change in the value of the contract is not a regular way contract. Such
a contract is accounted for as a derivative in the period between the trade date and the settlement date.
The trade date is the date that the Bank commits itself to purchase or sell an asset. Trade date accounting refers to:
(i)
(ii)

the recognition of an asset to be received and the liability to pay for it on the trade date, and
the derecognition of an asset that is sold, recognition of any gain or loss on disposal and the recognition of a receivable
from the buyer for payment on the trade date.

The settlement date is the date that an asset is delivered to or by the Bank. Settlement date accounting refers to:
(i)
(ii)

the recognition of an asset on the day it is received by the Bank, and
the derecognition of an asset and recognition of any gain or loss on disposal on the day that it is delivered by the Bank.

At initial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset at its fair value minus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset.
The fair value of a financial asset at initial recognition is normally the transaction price (i.e. the fair va lue of the consideration
given).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2.8.1
b)

Financial assets (continued)
Recognition, de-recognition and initial measurement (continued)

If the Bank determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, the Bank shall account for
that instrument at that date as follows:
(a)

at fair value less transaction costs, if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets. The Bank will recognise the
difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss.

(b)

in all other cases, at fair value less transaction costs, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price. After initial recognition, the Bank will recognise that deferred difference as a
gain or loss only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market participants would
take into account when pricing the asset or liability.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the
Bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. The transfer is considered to be effective only if the price
of transferred financial assets is cashed by the Bank. The price will be recognised as income at the time of its encashment.
When the Bank retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients'), the Bank treats the
transaction as a transfer of a financial asset if, and only if, all of the following three conditions are met:
(a)

The Bank has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it collects equivalent amounts from the
original asset. Short-term advances by the Bank with the right of full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest
at market rates do not violate this condition.

(b)

The Bank is prohibited by the terms of the transfer contract from selling or pledging the original asset other than as
security to the eventual recipients for the obligation to pay them cash flows.

(c)

The Bank has an obligation to remit any cash flows it collects on be half of the eventual recipients without material
delay. In addition, the Bank is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash
equivalents during the short settlement period from the collection date to the date of required remittance to the
eventual recipients, and interest earned on such investments is passed to the eventual recipients.

c)

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, the bank measures a financial asset in accordance with initial recognition, at:
(a)
(b)
(c)

amortised cost;
fair value through other comprehensive income; or
fair value through profit or loss.

The Bank applies the IFRS impairment requirements to financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and to financial
assets that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2.8.1
c)

Financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: (a) the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and (b) the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met: (a)
the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and (b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
A financia l asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income.
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows are measured at amortised cost and they are managed to realise cash flows by collecting contractual payments over the
life of the instrument. That is, the Bank manages the assets held within the portfolio to collect those particular contractua l
cash flows (instead of managing the overall return on the portfolio by both holding and selling assets). In determining whether
cash flows are going to be realised by collecting the financial assets' contractual cash flows, it is necessary to consider the
frequency, value and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for those sales and expectations about future sales activity.
However, sales in themselves do not determine the business model and therefore cannot be considered in isolation. Instead,
information about past sales and expectations about future sales provide evidence related to how the Bank's stated objective
for managing the financial assets is achieved and, specifically, how cash flows are realised
The Bank holds financial assets in a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets. In this type of business model, the Bank made a decision that both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets are integral to achieving the objective of the business model. There are various objectives that may
be consistent with this type of business model. For example, the objective of the business model may be to manage everyday
liquidity needs, to maintain a particular interest yield profile or to match the duration of the financial assets to the duration of
the liabilities that those assets are funding. To achieve such an objective, the Bank will both collect contractual cash flows and
sell financial assets.
Compared to a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to collect contractual cash flows, this business model
will typically involve greater frequency and value of sales. This is because selling financial assets is integral to achieving the
business model's objective instead of being only incidental to it. However, there is no threshold for the frequency or value of
sales that must occur in this business model because both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets are
integral to achieving its objective. Assets held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial asset
is derecognised or reclassified. When the financial asset is derecognised the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. If the financial asset
is reclassified out of the fair value through other comprehensive income measurement category, the Bank will account for the
cumulative gain or loss that was previously recognised in other comprehensive income. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.8

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2.8.1

c)

Financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

If a financial instrument that was previously recognised as a financial asset is measured at fair va lue through profit or loss and
its fair value decreases below zero, it is a fi nancial liability.
All investments in equity instruments and contracts on those instruments must be measured at fair value. However, in limited
circumstances, cost may be an appropriate estimate of fair value. That may be the case if insufficient more recent information
is available to measure fair value, or if there is a wide range of possible fair value measurements and cost represents the best
estimate of fair value within that range.
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss if they are not held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. One business model that results in measurement at fair value through profit
or loss is one in which the Bank manages the financial assets with t he objective of realising cash flows t hrough t he sale of t he
assets. The Bank makes decisions based on the assets' fair values and manages the assets to realise those fair values. In this
case, the Bank's objective will typically result in active buying and se lling.
d)

Reclassification

When the Bank changes its business model for managing financial assets it shall reclassify all affected financial assets. If the
Bank reclassifies financial assets, the reclassification is applied prospectively from the reclassification date.
When the entity reclassifies a financial asset out of the fair value through other comprehensive income measurement category
and into the amortised cost measurement category, the financial asset is reclassified at its fair value at the reclassification
date. However, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is removed from equity and
adjusted against the fair value of the financial asset at the reclassification date. As a result, the financial asset is measured at
the reclassification date as if it had always been measured at amortised cost. This adjustment affects other comprehensive
income but does not affect profit or loss and therefore is not a reclassification adjustment. The effective interest rate and the
measurement of expected credit losses are not adjusted as a result of the reclassification.
Both the amortised cost measurement category and the fair value through other comprehensive income measurement
category require that the effective interest rate is determined at initial recognition.
Both of those measurement categories also require that t he impairment requirements are applied in t he same way.
Consequently, when the Bank reclassifies a financial asset between t he amortised cost measurement category and the fair
value through other comprehensive income measurement category:
(a)

the recognition of interest revenue will not change and therefore the Bank continues to use the same effective interest
rate.

(b)

the measurement of expected credit losses will not change because both measurement categories apply the same
impairment approach. However, if a financial asset is reclassified out of the fair value through other comprehensive
income measurement category and into the amortised cost measurement category, a loss allowance would be
recognised as an adjustment to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the reclassification date. If a
financial asset is reclassified out of the amortised cost measurement category and into the fair value through other
comprehensive income measurement category, the loss allowance would be derecognised (and thus would no longer
be recognised as an adjustment to the gross carrying amount) but instead would be recognised as an accumulated
impairment amount (of an equal amount) in other comprehensive income and would be disclosed from t he
reclassification date.
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2.8

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2.8.1
d)

Financial assets (continued)
Reclassification (continued)

When the Bank reclassifies a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss measurement category, the effective
interest rate is determined on the basis of the fair value of the asset at the reclassification date.
If the Bank reclassifies a financial asset out of the amortised cost measurement category and into the fair value through profit
or loss measurement category, its fair value is measured at the reclassification date. Any gain or loss arising from a difference
between the previous amortised cost of the financial asset and fair value is recognised in profit or loss.
If the Bank reclassifies a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss measurement category and into the amortised
cost measurement category, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.
If the Bank reclassifies a financial asset out of the amortised cost measurement category and into the fair value through other
comprehensive income measurement category, its fair value is measured at the reclassification date. Any gain or loss arising
from a difference between the previous amortised cost of the financial asset and fair va lue is recognised in other
comprehensive income. The effective interest rate and the measurement of expected credit losses are not adjusted as a result
of the reclassification.
If the Bank reclassifies a financial asset out of the fair value through other comprehensive income measurement category and
into the amortised cost measurement category, the financial asset is reclassified at its fair value at the reclassification date.
However, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is removed from equity and
adjusted against the fair value of the financial asset at the reclassification date. As a result, the financial asset is measured at
the reclassification date as if it had always been measured at amortised cost. This adjustment affects other comprehensive
income but does not affect profit or loss and therefore is not a reclassification adjustment.
The effective interest rate and the measurement of expected credit losses are not adjusted as a result of the reclassification.
If the Bank reclassifies a financial asset out of the fa ir value through profit or loss measurement category and into the fair value
through other comprehensive income measurement category, the financia l asset continues to be measured at fair value.
If the Bank reclassifies a financial asset out of the fair value through other comprehensive income measurement category and
into the fair value through profit or loss measurement category, the financial asset continues to be measured at fair value. The
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment at the reclassification date.
e)

Fair value measurement principles

The fair va lues of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices in case of bonds and mid prices in case
of derivatives. lfthe market for a financia l asset is not active (and for unlisted securities and derivatives), the Bank establishes
fa ir va lue by using valuation techniques and internally developed models.
2.8.2

Financial liabilities

The Bank classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for:
(a)

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be
subsequently measured at fair value.

(b)

financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies.
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2.8

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2.8.2

Financial liabilities (continued)

(c) financial guarantee contracts. After initial recognition, such a contract will be subsequently measured at the higher of:
(i) the amount of the loss allowance and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised
(d) commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate. Such a commitment will be subsequently measured at
the higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance and (ii) the amount initially recognised, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination.
Such contingent consideration shall subsequently be measured at fair value with changes recognised in profit or loss
Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Bank derecognizes a financial liability (or part thereof) when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expires.
In cases that a financial liability is exchanged with another one with substantially different terms, the exchange is accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new one. The same applies in cases of a
substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the financial
difficulty of the debtor).
In cases of de recognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability (or part of the financial liability)
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
2.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or rea lise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the accounting standards, or as gain and losses
arising from a group of similar transactions such as those from the Bank' s trading activity.
2.10

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. The methods of estimating the fair values are represented by market approach. Derivatives
are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.
The Bank has in portfolio the following types of derivatives: currency swaps and forward, interest rate swaps and currency
options.
Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value
through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the profit and loss. The Bank
held no embedded derivatives as at the reporting date.
The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Bank did not designate any derivative transaction as a hedging
instrument during its existence and, consequently, did not use hedge accounting. The fair value gain or loss has been
recognised by the Bank through profit or loss in the line "Gains less (losses) from derivatives".
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2.10

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The Bank offers to its customers a product- Gold account (e-gold) - allowing customers to buy gold without actually taking
physical delivery, but having exposure to price movements. For Bank there is no open position, all deals are immediately
matched with deals of opposite sign concluded with the bank which is the gold supplier. The net gain from this product is
presented within Gains less (losses) from derivatives (Note 28) - Gold accounts (e-gold) line.

2.11

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense is recognised on an accrual basis in the income statement for all interest bearing balance sheet
items according to the effective interest rate method.
The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and
points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and all other premiums or discounts.
Fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of a financial instrument are treated as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate, unless the financial instrument is measured at fair value, with the change in fair value being recognised in profit
or loss. In those cases, the fees are recognised as revenue or expense when the instrument is initially recognised.
Fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of a financial instrument include:
(a)

origination fees received by the Bank relating to the creation or acquisition of a financial asset. Such fees may include
compensation for activities such as evaluating the borrower's financial condition, evaluating and recording guarantees,
collateral and other security arrangements, negotiating the terms of the instrument, preparing and processing
documents and closing the transaction. These fees are an integral part of generating an involvement with the resulting
financial instrument.

(b)

commitment fees received by the Bank to originate a loan when it is probable that the Bank will enter into a specific
lending arrangement. These fees are regarded as compensation for an ongoing involvement with the acquisition of a
financial instrument. If the commitment expires without the entity making the loan, the fee is recognised as revenue
on expiry.

(c)

origination fees paid on issuing financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. These fees are an integral part of
generating an involvement with a financial liability.

Transaction costs include fees and commission paid to agents (including employees acting as selling agents), advisers, brokers
and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and security exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Transaction costs do not
include debt premiums or discounts, financing costs or internal administrative or holding costs.
For a financial asset that is not purchased or originated credit-impaired, the Bank calculates interest revenue as follows:
Gross method - If the financial asset has not become credit-impaired since initial recognition, the Bank applies the
effective interest rate method to the gross carrying amount. The gross carrying amount represents the amortised cost
of a financial asset, before adjusting for any loss allowance.
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2.11

Interest income and expense (continued}

Net method - If the financial asset has subsequently become credit-impaired, the Bank applies the effective interest
rate to the amortized cost balance, which is the gross carrying amount adjusted for any loss allowance.
In some cases a financial asset is considered credit-impaired at initial recognition because the credit risk is very high, and in
the case of a purchase it is acquired at a deep discount. The Bank is required to include the initial expected credit losses in the
estimated cash flows when calculating the credit-adjusted effective interest rate for financial assets that are considered to be
purchased or originated credit impaired at initial recognition.
2.12

Fee and commission income

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of financial services it provides to its customers. Fee and
commission income is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Bank expects to be entitled in
exchange for providing the services.
Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided. Loan origination fees
for loans which are probable of being drawn down, are deferred and recognised as adjustments to the effective yield on the
loan.
Fee and commission income consists mainly of fees and commissions received for the transfers of money for customers,
trading of securities and foreign exchange, issuance of guarantees and letters of credit and fees charged for current accounts.
The Bank's fee and commission income also comprises commission charged to insurance companies for insurance
intermediation. The Bank's fee and commission income also comprises fees for payments transactions and card transactions.
Revenue from such services is recognised in the period the services are provided and revenue earned.
The performance obligations, as well as the timing of their satisfaction, are identified, and determined, at the inception of the
contract. The Bank's revenue contracts do not typically include multiple performance obligations, as explained further below.
Performance obligations satisfied over time include asset management, custody and other services, where the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Bank's performance as the Bank performs. The Bank's fee
and commission income from services where performance obligations are satisfied over time include the following:

Servicing income for transferred financial assets: The Bank receives fees for providing specific administrative tasks in relation
to certain assets it has transferred and derecognised. These services include collecting cash flows from borrowers and
remitting them to beneficial interest holders, monitoring delinquencies and executing foreclosures. These services represent
a single performance obligation comprised of a series of distinct daily services that are substantially the same and have the
same pattern of transfer over the contract period. As the benefit to the customer of the services is transferred evenly over
the contract period, these fees are recognised as revenue evenly over the period, based on time elapsed.
Certain loan agreements concluded by the Bank were transferred underfunded participation and assignment agreements to
Piraeus Bank S.A. - London Branch at a different moment, after concluding the loan agreement. All risks and benefits related
to these loans were transferred and the loans were derecognised in the balance sheet. After the transfer, the Bank acts as an
agent of Piraeus Bank London Branch servicing the transferred loans and repossessed collaterals. For the services provided the
Bank receives commissions as management fee and performance based success fees. The remuneration structure was
amended at the end of June 2018, when the Bank's ownership changed.
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2.12

Fee and commission income (continued)

Loan commitment fees: These are fees paid by customers for loan and other credit facilities with the Bank, but where it is
unlikely that a specific lending arrangement will be entered into with the customer and the loan commitment is not measured
at fair value. The Bank promises to provide a loan facility for a specified period. As the benefit of the services is transferred to
the customer evenly over the period of entitlement, the fees are recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis.

Interchange fees: The Bank provides its customers with credit card processing services (i.e., authorisation and settlement of
transactions executed with the Bank's credit cards) where it is entitled to an interchange fee for each transaction (i.e., when
a credit card holder purchases goods and services from merchants using the Bank's credit card). These services represent a
single performance obligation comprised of a series of distinct daily services that are substantially the same and have the
same pattern of transfer over the contract period.
The fees vary based on the number of transactions processed and are structured as either a fixed rate per transaction
processed or at a fixed percentage of the underlying card holder transaction. The variable interchange fees are allocated to
each distinct day, based on the number and value of transactions processed that day, and the allocated revenue is recognised
as the entity performs.

2.13

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in the other comprehensive income in the period in which they are approved by
the Annual General Meeting of shareholders.
Dividends are recorded in equity in the period in which they are declared. Any dividends declared after the end of the reporting
period and before the financial statements are authorized for issue, are disclosed in the subsequent events note. The statutory
accounting reports of the Bank are the basis for profit distribution and other appropriations.

2.14

Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold under such sale and repurchase agreements are not derecognised. The securities are reclassified as repurchase
receivables in the statement of financial position if the Bank (the transferee) has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge the securities. The corresponding liability is presented within amounts due to other banks or other borrowed funds.
Securities purchased under agreements to resell ("reverse repo agreements"), which effectively provide a lender's return to
the Bank, are recorded as due from other banks or loans and advances to customers, as appropriate. The difference between
the sale and repurchase price, adjusted by interest and dividend income collected by the counterparty, is treated as interest
income and accrued over the life of repo agreements using the effective interest method.

2.15

Impairment of financial assets

Credit impairment losses on loans and advances to customers, undrawn loan commitments, letters of credit and letters of
guarantee
The Bank, at each reporting date, recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on loans and advances to customers
not measured at fair value through profit or loss as well as for off-balance sheet exposures (letters of guarantee, letters of
credit, and undrawn loan commitments).
The loss allowance for loans and off-balance sheet exposures is based on expected credit losses related to the probability of
default within the next twelve months, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from the date of initial
recognition in which case expected credit losses are recognized over the life of the instrument.
If the financial asset falls under the definition of purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) financial assets, a loss
allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognized.
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2.15

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

a)

Default definition

The Bank has adopted as default definition non-performing exposures (NPE), as defined in the EC Regulation 2015/227 of 9
January 2015 amending Implementing Regulation (EU) No. 680/2014 of the Commission w ith subsequent modifications, the
definition of default used for accounting purposes being harmonized with the one used for regulatory purposes.
The Bank defines a financial instrument as in default, which is fully aligned with the definition of credit- impaired, when it
meets one or more of the following criteria:
•

The borrower is more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments (a lso including the EBA new default
definition which is referring to significant overdue amount);

•

The borrower meets unlikeliness to pay criteria:
o
Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
o The borrower is in nonperforming forbearance situation due to concessions that have been made by the
Bank relating to the borrower's financial difficulty;
o The borrower is in insolvency status or bankruptcy (or other type of judicial reorganization) or is becoming
probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy;
o
Legal procedures have started against the borrower (legal enforcement started by the Bank);
o
The borrower and/or the mortgage guarantor sent notification for "payment in kind";
o
Write off (total/partial) or sale;
o
The borrower is in breach of a significant financial covena nt(s);

•
•

An active market for that financial asset has disappeared because of financial difficulties;
Financial assets are purchased or originated at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Exposures which are considered to be in default for regulatory purposes (CRR art. 178) will always be considered stage 3
exposures. Further on, stage 3 exposure are fully aligned with non-performing exposure (the entire amount of the customer's
exposure is considered to be non-performing).
The Bank have implemented at the end of 2020 the European Banking Authority's (EBA) definition of default (GL 2016-07),
also considering the significance threshold of overdue obligation established by National Bank of Romania in order to comply
with art 178 CRR. This new indicator is considered a new "add-on" to default definition applied by the Bank (we do not exclude/
eliminate the day past due indicator considering contractual payment schedules).
Threshold for assessing the material significance of a credit obligation, as provided for in Article 178 (1) (b) of Regulation (EU)
No. 575/2013, consists of an absolute component and a relative component:
•
•

The absolute component is expressed as the maximum value of the sum of all the overdues amounts that a debtor
owes to the Bank;
The relative component is expressed as a percentage that reflects the ratio between the va lue of the overdues loan
obligations and the total exposures to that debtor.

•
For this indicator, it is considered that the debtor is in default when both the limit expressed as the absolute component of
the significance threshold and the limit expressed as the relative component of the significance t hreshold are exceeded for 90
consecutive days. According to NBR Regulation 5/2018, the level of the relative component and the level of the absolute
component of the significance threshold is as follows:
•

For retail exposures:
o
The level of the relative component of the significance threshold is 1%;
o
The level of the absolute component of the significance threshold is RON 150.

•

For other types of exposures than retail exposures:
o
The level of the relative component of the significance th reshold is 1%;
o
The level of the absolute component of the significance threshold is RON 1,000.
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2.15

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The above criteria have been applied to all financial instruments held by the Bank and are consistent with the definition of
default used for internal credit risk management purposes. An instrument is considered to no longer be in default (i.e. has
been "cured") when it no longer meets any of the default criteria for a consistent period oftime, depending on the main trigger
of the default classification.
b)

Classification of exposures into stages based on credit risk (Staging)

Financial assets are classified in Stage 1, Stage 2 or Stage 3 according to their absolute or relative credit quality with respect to
the initial payments. Thus:
•

Stage 1: includes
o
(i) newly initiated or acquired credit exposures (including loans acquired upon Subsidiary acquisition);
o
(ii) exposures for which credit risk did not increase significantly since initial recognition;

•

Stage 2: includes credit exposures which, although performing, have registered a significant increase of credit risk
since initial recognition;

•

Stage 3: includes impaired credit exposures (including loans acquired upon Subsidiary acquisition).

As an exception to the above, for purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) exposures, lifetime expected credit losses are
always recognized. Purchased or originated cred it impaired exposures include:
•

Exposures that at the time of acquisition meet the criteria to be classified as non- performing exposures.

•

Exposures for which there has been a change in repayment terms, either due to financial difficulty or not, which
resulted in derecognition and recognition of a new impaired asset (POCI).

For Stage 1 exposures, the expected loss is calculated over a timeline of up to one year. For Stage 2 or 3 exposures, the expected
loss is calculated over a timeline corresponding to the lifetime of the exposure.

c)

Significant increase in credit risk

In determining significant increase in credit risk of an exposure since initial recognition and the recognition of lifetime expected
credit losses instead of 12 months expected credit losses, the Bank assesses, at each reporting date, the risk of default
compared to the risk of default at initial recognition for all its performing exposures including those with no delinquencies.
The assessment of the significant increase in credit risk is based on the following:
•

Quantitative criteria: refers to comparison of the probability of default (PD) between the reporting date and the date
of initial recognition.

•

Qualitative criteria: refers to the qualitative information used which is not necessarily reflected in the probability of
default, such as the classification of an exposure as forborne performing (FP L, according to EBA). Add itional
qualitative indicators, both for corporate and retail portfolios are also reflected through the Early Warning indicators
where depending on the underlying assessment, an exposure can be considered to have a significant increase in
credit risk or not.

•

Backstop Indicators: in addition to the above, and in order to capture cases for which there are no triggers reflecting
the increase in credit risk, based on qualitative and quantitative indicators, the 30 days past due indicator is used as
a backstop.
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2.15

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Moratoria programs designed to address the temporary financial difficulties connected to the Covid-19 pandemic and
compliant to EBA Guidelines (EBA/GL/2020/02 subsequently amended by EBA/GL/2020/08 and EBA/GL/2020/15} did not have
an impact on staging (is not considered a trigger for a significant increase in credit risk). The definition of forborne credit was
not changed and continues to identify restructuring operations for clients experiencing financial difficulties not in scope of the
moratoria program.
d)

Calculation of expected credit loss

Calculation of the expected credit loss is made in accordance with the following principles:
•

The expected loss on a one-year horizon (financial assets in Stage 1} is calculated based on a portfolio approach,
multiplying t he exposure by the marginal conditional default probability and the estimated loss given default for a
period of one year.

•

The expected loss for the residual life of the asset {financial assets in Stage 2) is calculated based on a portfolio
approach, multiplying the exposure by the marginal conditional default probability and the estimated loss given
default for the residual life of the asset.

The expected loss on impaired fi nancial assets is determined based on the following approach:
•

Individual approach, for loans with significant exposure, by deducting from the exposure the present value of cash
flows expected to be derived from collateral and the present value of cash flows expected to be recovered by the
Bank from the client's operational activity based on the scenarios analysed by the Bank in terms of probability of a
credit loss;

•

Portfolio approach, for the rest of the impaired loans, multiplying the exposure by the loss given default.

For portfolio evaluation, the use of relevant segmentation and risk factors allows the calculation of a probability of defau lt
{PD}, which differs by segment ation level identified, and the expected credit loss {ECL).
The loan portfolio is first segmented by client type: (i) private individuals and (ii) legal entities and secondly by specific variables
dependin g on the client type: (i) product and client behaviour score in case of private individuals and (ii) client segment,
months-on-book {MOB) and days-past-due (DPD) in case of legal entities.
The loan portfolio resulted following the integration of the subsidiary Bank Leumi Romania starting with 30.04.2020 have been
integrated as of end-2020 into existing segments of the bank while their relevant historical default events where added to the
ones of the bank prior to the merger.
In order to calculate t he ECL, lifetime PDs are used in the ca lcu lation model, in case of loans classified in Stage 2 and 12-month
PDs (or shorter if the remaining credit lifetime is lower), with the following characteristics:
the PD is estimated throughout the lifetime of the asset;
the PD is "Point in Time" (PiT);
the PD is conditional, defined as the probability for an exposure/customer to become in default at "t+l", given that
it has not become in default until "t";
the PD includes expectations of future macroeconomic conditions, incorporating forward looking information.
To predict the PD, the following macroeconomic variables are used in the calculation model: real GDP growth, unemployment
rate, EUR/ RON exchange rate, RON / CHF exchange rate, house price index.
The projected PD curve is determined by using 3 macroeconomic scenarios, each of which has an associated probability of
occurrence, while t he final macroeconomic forecast introduced in t he model is a weighted average thereof.

Translation from the original Romanian version.
31

FIRSTBANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

(all amounts in "RON thousand" , unless otherwise stated)
2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

d)

Calculation of expected credit loss (continued)

The macroeconomic indicators reflect the worsening of the macroeconomic outlook, comparing with end-2019, due to the
COVID-19 pandemic.
Below are presented the macroeconomic indicators considered and their overall projected level based on facts and
circumstances applicable as at 31 December 2020:
Unemployment

Year

GDP

CPI

2020

-5.41%

2.6%

6.14%

4.8840

4.5784

-2.6

2021

3.43%

2.6%

6.45%

4.9880

4.6384

-5.2

2022

3.95%

2.5%

5.30%

5.0050

4.6918

2.6

2023

3.95%

2.5%

4.16%

4.8050

4.5043

2.6

Rate

EUR/RON

CHF/RON

House price index

For credit commitments, the bank considers the changes in the risk of default that arise in the credit associated to the
commitment.
For credit commitments not drawn, the loss means the present value of the difference between:
(a)

the contractual cash flows due to the Bank if the commitment holder were to draw the credit/ loan; and

(b)

the cash flows that the Bank expects to co llect if the loan is drawn.

LGD (expected loss given default} is the percentage of expected loss and, therefore, the expected recovery rate at the time of
occurrence of the event. The Bank distinguishes in terms of LGD computation secured from unsecured exposures.
LGD for unsecured exposures summarizes all cash flows collected from the customer after default, while for secured exposure
the existing collateral adjusted with the Bank observed realisation value is considered.
The LG D include costs and amounts recovered during the recovery cycle, including those due to collateral and reflects the time
value of money, calculated as the present value of recoveries.
The Bank's estimate of expected credit loss for credit commitments must be in line with its expectations for the use of the
credit commitment, which means that the Bank will consider the portion of the commitment expected to be drawn within 12
months from the reporting date, when estimated for a 12-month ECL, and the portion of the commitment that is expected to
be drawn over the expected lifetime of the credit commitment, when estimated for an ECL lifetime.
In order to calculate the expected credit loss for credit commitments, the Bank uses the CCF-related regu lations mentioned in
Regulation 575/2013, examining the applicability of the criteria on its portfolio of financial assets measured at amortized cost.
Post-model adjustments

Post-model adjustment (PMA} are used in circumstances where existing inputs, assumptions and model techniques may not
capture all relevant risk factors. The emergence of new macroeconomic, microeconomic or political events, along with
expected changes to parameters, models or data that are not incorporated in current parameters, or forward-looking
information are examples of such circumstances.
Moreover, the current COVID-19 pandemic represents the first such crisis in the modern times, so the accuracy of the forecasts
may be lower than expected.
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2.15

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

d)

Calculation of expected credit loss (continued)

The Bank implemented three types of such post-model adjustments.
CHF loans

For loans in CHF that benefited of currency conversion with further possible haircuts on exposure in case of good postconversion performance, the Bank calculates a post-model adjustment to account for possible future haircuts. The value of
the PMA is calculated based on the exposure at the moment of the possible additional haircuts multiplied by the probability
of additional haircuts and the value of the haircuts.
Non-performing loans

For non-performing loans, the Bank calculate the following PMA to account for risk of possible lower recoverability either
through the rea lization of the collaterals or by voluntary repayments, risks that may not be fully captured by either ECL models
or individual assessment. In this context peer group and banking system data are used as reference.
COVID-19 pandemic

The general economic and social environment was changing during the most of 2020 because of the COVID-19 pandemic.
There is a general consensus that the restrictions imposed in order to contain the effects of the pandemic significantly affected
the economic output in 2020 with a partial recovery during 2021, especially after mid-year. In order to mitigate the effects on
the borrower's repayment capacity, the state and the banks (FB included) were implementing moratoria programs. These
programs were also supported by the guidelines issued by EBA.
Borrowers could request during 2020, the postponement of rates and interest until the end of 2020. Based on Romanian
legislation OUG 37/2020, the government granted to certain cat egories of debtors, individuals or companies, the possibility
to request the suspension of the payment of the due instalments, for up to 9 months, but not more than December 31, 2020.
This facility benefited borrowers with outstanding loans, as long as the Bank had not accelerated the repayment and the
insolvency procedure for legal entities had not started. The facility cou ld only be granted for loans granted before March 2020
that did not have overdue amounts or the debtors had paid these overdue amounts by the suspension of payment request
date. In the same time, the Bank decided to further support the borrowers not eligible to the public moratoria program by
offering a non-legislative moratoria to the borrowers affected by the COVID-19 pandemic but who could not meet the
condition not to have overdue amounts as of request date, provided that the loans were overdue for less than 90 days in case
of private individuals or 30 days in case of legal entities.
During 2020, over 2,000 private individuals and companies benefited from the deferral of instalments, w ith a carrying amount
of RON 0.8 billion as of December 31, 2020.
In 2021, the moratorium program was extended (legislation: GEO no. 227/2020), in the sense that the government prolonged
the possibility of accessing the deferral of payments until March 15, 2021, up to a maximum of 9 months for each loan subject
to moratoria (cumulative for 2020 and 2021). Therefore, for instance, if a borrower benefited in 2020 from the deferral of
instalments of 6 months (GEO no. 227/2020), he was able to request this facility for its loans, in 2021, for a maximum period
of only 3 months.
Such programs eased the pressure on the borrowers directly affected by the restrictions imposed since Q2 2020. There is still
a significant level of uncerta inty regarding the way the borrowers will be affected which cannot be covered entirely by any
forward-looking credit risk adjustment as of now. The expert consensus is that the current crisis is affecting more certain
individuals and economic sectors, compared with a classical cyclical recession scenario. There are inherent limitations of the
models, as we do not have compara ble historical data for this specific type of crisis. In the same time, the adjustments of the
PD curves in order to reflect different levels of risk between directly affected borrowers and indirectly affected borrowers can
be based at this stage on ly on the expert opinion of the Bank, as we sti ll do not have external or internal data to support a
quantitative approach.
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2.15

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

d)

Calculation of expected credit loss (continued)

In this context, the Bank incorporated into the calcu lation of expected credit losses the increased uncertainties brought firstly
by COVID-19 pandemic itself and secondly by moratoria programs implemented as a consequence of the pandemic by:
•
•

performing a post-model adjustment of the PD curves to account for expected increased risk of exposures under
moratoria programs;
build an overlay for exposures of clients that benefited from moratoria programs

PD curves adjustment

The underlying assumption of the adjustment was that the following exposures will be more affected by the COVID-19
pandemic:
•
•

private individuals' exposures subject to moratoria
exposures subject to moratoria of legal entities operating in economic sectors deemed, based on Bank assessment,
as being possible affected to a larger extent than the others

In this respect, each relevant portfolio was split in two categories depending on expected level of COVID-19 impact: "more
affected" and "less affected" while for each of these categories distinct PD curves were derived based on ones generated by
the used credit risk models and adjusted expert-based.
COVID-19 overlay

Considering (i) there is no precedent for the payment behaviour estimation immediately after the moratoria expiration (ii)
increased uncertainty of the macro-economic predictions and (iii) lack of previous experience in risk evolution, in times of
powerful state intervention (moratorium, IMM invest, technical unemployment, kurzarbeit, etc.) the Bank build an overlay for
performing Stage 1 and 2 exposures of the clients that benefited of a moratoria program (client level) independent of the
status of current moratoria.
e)

Presentation of expected credit losses in the financial statements

Expected credit loss is recognized as follows:

f)

•

Financial assets measured at amortised cost: loss allowance is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

•

Financial assets classified at fair value through other comprehensive income: through profit or loss against reserves
accounts.
Credit impairment losses on due from banks and bonds

The Bank, at each reporting date, recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on due from banks and bonds not
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
The loss allowance is based on expected credit losses related to the probability of default within the next twelve months,
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from the date of initial recognition in which case expected credit
losses are recognized over the life of the instrument. In addition, if the financial asset falls under the definition of purchased
or originated credit impaired (POCI) financial assets, a loss allowance eq ual to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognized.
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2.15

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Written-off loans
The primary requirement for a credit to be written-off is when the likely prospects of generating future cash flows from the
loans have disappeared and therefore total related loan outstanding exposure was fully covered with provisions for
impairment calculated in accordance with IFRS.
The Bank continues however the legal actions against the debtors in order to collect the outstanding loans.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised in the period in which they occur and decrease the
amount of the impairment charge for credit losses in profit and loss.
2.16

Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral represents financial and non-financial assets acquired by the Bank in settlement of overdue loans. The
assets are initially recognised at fair value when acquired and included in property, plant and equipment, other financial assets
or inventories within other assets depending on their nature and the Bank's intention in respect of recovery of these assets
and are subsequently re-measured and accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies for these categories of assets.
Repossessed assets are classified in the statement of financial position as ' non-current assets held for sale' if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction, including loss of control of a subsidiary holding the assets,
within twelve months after the end of the reporting period. Assets are reclassified when all of the following conditions are
met: (a) the assets are available for immediate sale in their present condition; (b) the Bank' s management approved and
initiated an active program to locate a buyer; (c) the assets are actively marketed for sale at a reasonable price; (d) the sale is
expected wit hin one year and (e) it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan to sell will be made or that the plan will be
withdrawn. Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale in the current period' s statement of financial
position are not reclassified or re-presented in the comparative statement of financial position to reflect the classification at
the end of the current period.
If the Bank has classified the repossessed collateral as held for sale but the IFRS 5 criteria above are no longer met, the Bank
ceases to classify the asset as held for sale.
The proceeds from sale of repossessed collaterals are presented in statement of profit and loss in line Sales of repossessed
assets from foreclosed loans contracts. The derecognition of the assets once the sales are completed together with any
provision movement is presented in cost of sales of repossessed assets from foreclosed loans contracts.
Repossessed collaterals are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
2.17

Gold

The Bank trades physical gold with its customers. The balance of gold acquired for further sale are presented in inventory
within other non-financial assets. The Bank applied the weighted average cost method to measure its gold stock. Net
gains/losses from the transaction are presented in fee and commission income in profit or loss (Note 28).
2.18

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset w ithout physical substance which is expected to be used for a period
longer than one year and from which econom ic benefits will flow to the entity.
Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense when incurred.
Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Bank, and
that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognized as intangible assets. Direct
costs include software development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
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2.18

Intangible assets (continued)

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised on the basis of the expected useful lives.
Subsequent expenditure on capitalized intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.
Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, from
the date that it is available for use. The typical useful life of the software is 3-5 years.
2.19

Premises and equipment

Cost

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, restated to the equivalent purchasing power of the Romanian Leu at 31 December
2003 for assets acquired prior to 1 January 2004, less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment, where required.
Cost includes borrowing costs incurred on specific or general funds borrowed to finance construction of qualifying assets.
Costs of repairs and day-to-day maintenance are expensed whe n incurred. Cost of replacing major parts or components of
prem ises and equipment items are capitalised and the replaced part is retired.
Gains and losses on disposals determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount are recognised in profit or loss.
Depreciation

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other items of premises and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost less their residual values over their estimated useful lives.
Useful lives in years

Leasehold improvements over the term of the underlying lease
Buildings
Office equipment, fixtures and fittings
Vehicles
2.20

5

so
3-20
5

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the
ordinary cou rse of business, use in the supply of services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is initially recognised at cost, including transaction costs, and subsequently re-measured at fair value
updated to reflect market conditions at the end of the reporting period. Fair value of investment property is the price at which
the property could be sold in an orderly transaction in the principal market. An orderly transaction is not a forced transaction
or a distress sale. The best evidence of fair va lue is given by current prices in an active market for similar property in the same
location and condition. In the absence of current prices in an active market, the Bank considers information from a variety of
sources, including:
{a)

cu rrent prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

{b)

recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices;
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2.20

Investment property (continued)

(c)

discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows;

The fair value of the Bank's investment property is determined based on reports of independent appraisers, who hold a
recognized and relevant professional qualification, and who have had recent experience of the valuation of property in similar
locations and of similar category; and
Earned rental incomes are recorded in profit or loss for the year within other operating income. Gains and losses resulting
from changes in the fair value of investment property are recorded in profit or loss for the year and presented separately.
2.21

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. The Bank
didn't hold such assets in the reporting period. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
2.22

Leases

Starting January 01, 2019, the Bank adopted IFRS 16 Leases and applies a single accounting model for all leases, with certain
exemptions. Lessor accounting is substantially unchanged.
Before January 01, 2019, Bank applied the following accounting policies as a lessee:
Finance lease liabilities

Where the Bank is a lessee in a lease which transferred substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the
Bank, the assets leased are capitalised in premises and equipment at the commencement of the lease at the lower of the fair
value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of future finance charges, are included in borrowings.
The interest cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period using the effective interest method. The assets acquired
under finance leases are depreciated over their useful life or the shorter lease term if the Bank is not reasonably certain that
it will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.
Operating Leases

The leases entered into by the Bank are primarily operating leases. The total payments made under operating leases are
charged to the profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by
way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place
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2.23

Finance lease receivables

Where the Bank is a lessor in a lease which transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the
lessee, the assets leased out are presented as a finance lease receivable and carried at the present value of the future lease
payments. Finance lease receivables are initially recognised at commencement (when the lease term begins) using a discount
rate determined at inception (the earlier of the date of the lease agreement and the date of commitment by the parties to the
principal provisions of the lease).
The difference between the gross receivable and the present value represents unearned finance income. This income is
recognised over t he term of the lease using the net investment method (before tax), which reflects a constant periodic rate of
return. Incremental costs directly attributable to negotiating and arranging the lease are included in the initial measurement
of the finance lease receivable and reduce the amount of income recogn ised over the lease term . Finance income from leases
is recorded within "interest income" in profit or loss for the year.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss for the year when incurred as a result of one or more events ("loss events")
that occurred after the initial recognition of finance lease receivables. The Bank uses the same principal criteria to determine
whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred, as for loans carried at amortised cost.
Impairment losses are recognised through an allowance account to write down the receivables' net carrying amount to the
present value of expected cash flows (which exclude future credit losses that have not been incurred), discounted at the
interest rates implicit in the finance leases. The estimated future cash flows reflect the cash flows that may result from
obta ining and selling the assets subject to the lease.
2.24

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months'
maturity from the date of acquisition: cash; non-restricted balances with centra l banks, including minimum mandatory
reserves; treasury bills and other eligible bills; due from other banks and short-term government securities.
Amounts subject to a potential sign ificant change in value due to high credit risk or other reasons are not cash and cash
equ iva lents unless whole or significant part of the balance have been used in subsequent period without any restrictions or
change in the value.
2.25

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more
likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obl igation using a pretax rate t hat reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense
2.26

Financial guarantees contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Such financial guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of customers to secure loans,
overdrafts and other banking facilities.
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2.26

Financial guarantees contracts (continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financia l statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the bank's liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
measurement, less amortisation calculated to recognise in the profit and loss the fee income earned on a straight line basis
over the life of the guarantee and the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle any financial obligation arising at the
balance sheet date.
These estimates are determined based on experience of similar transactions and history of past losses, supplemented by the
judgment of management.
2.27

Performance guarantees

Performance guarantees are contracts that provide compensation if another party fai ls to perform a contractual obligation.
Such contracts transfer non-financial performance risk in addition to credit risk. Performance guarantees are initially
recognised at their fair value, which is normally evidenced by the amount of fees received . This amount is amortised on a
straight line basis over the life of the contract. At the end of each reporting period, the performance guarantee contracts are
measured at the higher of (i) the unamortised balance of the amount at initial recognition and {ii) the best estimate of
expenditure required to settle the contract at the end of each reporting period, discounted t o present value. Where the Bank
has the contractual right to revert to its customer for recovering amounts paid to settle the performance guarantee contracts,
such amounts will be recognised as loans and receivables upon transfer of the loss compensation to the guarantee's
beneficiary.
2.28

{a)

Employee benefits

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefits include wages, salaries and social security contributions. Short-term employee benefits are
recognized as expense as the services are rendered.

{bl

Defined contribution plan

In the normal course of business, the Bank makes payments to the Romanian public pension funds on behalf of their employees
for retirement, healthcare and unemployment allowances. All the employees of the Bank are members and are also legally
obliged to make specific contributions {included in the social security contributions) to the Romanian public pension plan {a
State defined contribution plan). All relevant contributions to the Romanian public pension plan are recognized as an expense
in the income statement as incurred. The Bank does not have any further obligations.
{c)

Other benefits

On the basis of internal policies, the Bank has an obligation to pay to retiring employees a benefit equivalent of two care
allowances as at retirement date. The debt related to this benefit scheme is calcu lated on an actuarial basis, considering the
salary estimated at the retirement date and the number of activity years of each individual employee.
The Bank's net obligation in respect of the retirement benefit is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value.
Termi nation benefits are recognised as an expense when the bank is demonstra bly committed, without realistic possibility of
withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. If benefits are payable more than 12
months after the reporting date, than they are discounted to their present value.
The Bank does not have any obligation to provide subsequent services to the former or current employees.
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2.29

Levies/ Taxes

The retail deposits and certain deposits of legal entities are guaranteed up to EUR 100,000 equiva lent by the Bank Deposit
Guarantee Fund (the "FGDB") according to the regulations in force (Law 311/2015).
Romanian banks are obliged to pay an annual contribution to the Deposit Guarantee Fund, in order to guarantee the clients'
deposits in case of the credit institution's insolvency, as well as an annual contribution to the Resolution Fund.
The Bank applies IFRIC 21 "Taxes" recognizing in full these contributions as expenses at the time the generating events occur.
2.30

Income taxes

In recording both the current and deferred income tax charge for the year ended, the Bank has computed the annual income
tax charge based on Romanian profits tax legislation enforced at the balance sheet date. The tax rate used to calculate the
current and deferred tax position at 31 December 2020 is 16% (31 December 2019: 16%).
(a)

Current income tax

The Bank records profit tax upon net income from these financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and Order 27/2010 issued by the National Bank of Romania and profit
tax legislation. Romanian profits tax legislation is based on a fiscal year ending on 31 December.
(b)

Deferred income tax

Differences between financial reporting under International Financial Reporting Standards and Romanian fiscal regulations
give rise to differences between the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities and income and expenses for financial
reporting and income tax purposes.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred income tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
To report the unutilized fiscal losses, the deferred tax claims are recognized only to the extent to which it is probable to obtain
taxable profit in the future after compensation with the tax loss from the previous years and w ith the recoverable tax on profit.
Deferred tax claims are diminished to the extent to which the related tax benefits are unlikely to be achieved.
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2.31

Business Combination

A business combination is accounted using the acquisition method at the date when the control is acquired, except for the
cases when the combination involves entities or parties under common control.
Identifiable assets and liabilities acquired are evaluated at fair value at the acquisition date, in accordance with IFRS 3 Business
Combinations. The non-controlling interests in the acquired entity entitle the holder to a proportional share of the entity's net
assets in the event of liquidation, and are measured either at fair value or proportionally with the acquired ownership interest
in the entity's net identifiable assets. Upon the acquisition of Bank Leumi, the Bank measured the non-controlling interests in
its consolidated financial statements as the proportionate share of fair value of the Bank Leu mi's net assets held by the minority
shareholders.
Goodwill and negative goodwill arise on the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. Goodwill is measured by
deducting the identifiable net assets acquired from the aggregate of the consideration transferred, any non-controlling
interests in the acquired entity and the fair value at the acquisition date of the equity participation in the acquired entity
previously held by the acquiring entity. If the acquirer obtains a gain from a bargain purchase, this gain is recognized in the
profit and loss after the management reassesses whether all the assets were acquired and all liabilities and contingent liabilities
were assumed based on appropriate measurement.
On the acquisition of Bank Leumi on 10 July 2019, the fair value of net assets acquired, adjusted for the share of First Bank,
were RON 203.2 million determined based on the purchase price allocation report prepared by an external expert, and the
consideration paid was RON 90.5 million. The bargain purchase on the acquisition of Bank Leumi determined as the difference
between the consideration paid and the share of the fair value of assets and liabilities of Bank Leumi, of RON 112.7 million,
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss of the Group for the period ended as at 31 December 2019. The
bargaining purchase gain is largely attributable to the Seller's desire to sell its stake in Bank Leumi Romania as fast as possible,
thus allowing First Bank to acquire it for a cash consideration substantially lower than the fair value of net assets.
Bargain purchase at acquisition date of Bank Leumi (RON thousand)
Consideration paid
Fair value of net assets acquired (adjusted for First Bank share in Bank Leumi)
Bargain purchase

90,545
203,232
112,687

The following represent a summary of the net asset acquired as at the acquisition date, before adjusting the net asset for the
share of First Bank in Bank Leumi (99.9335%).

Net assets at carrying amount
207,230

Fair value adjustments
(3,863)

RON thousand
Fair value of net assets
203,367

The following represent impact recognized in equity by the Bank at merger date:
RON thousand
233
(94)
(443)
(3,611)

Minority shareholders acquired at merger date
Share premium
Revaluation reserve for securities at FVOCI
Retained Earnings and Reserves
Non-Controlling Interest

(139)

The shareholders of the Bank decided that following the merger (i.e. 30 April 2020) Bank Leumi shall cease to exist, being
dissolved without liquidation, followed by the deregistration from the Bank Register maintained by the National Bank of
Romania and from the Trade Registry, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.
The most significant use of judgments and estimates are as follows:

a)

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of financial position cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of various
models. The inputs to these models are derived from observable market data where possible, but where observable market
data are not available, judgment is required to establish fair values. The valuation of financial instruments is described in more
detail in Note 35.

b)

Expected credit losses on financial assets at amortised cost and FVOCI

The measurement of impairment losses under IFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular,
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.
The Bank reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment on a monthly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should
be recorded in the profit and loss, the Bank makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified
with an individual loan in that portfolio.
The main considerations for the loan impairment assessment include whether any payments of principal or interest are
overdue by more than 90 days, whether a severe alteration in the counterparty's financial standing is observed, entailing a
high probability that the debtor will not be able to fully meet its credit obligations, whether concessions in the form of
restructuring were consented under the circumstances of financial hardship experienced by the debtor, whether legal
procedures were initiated or the debtor was transferred to specialized recovery structures (regard less of the number of days
past due).
In IFRS 9, the Bank's expected credit loss model (ECL) relies on several underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable
inputs and their interdependencies, which affect the level of allowances:
The criteria defined (both in relative and absolute terms) for the assessment of significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and consequently the computation of allowances based on life time expected credit loss (LTECL);
The grouping offinancial assets when t heir ECL is measured on a collective basis;
The development of ECL model, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs;
The macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings based on which ECL is derived.
The Bank is closely monitoring any relevant developments to update the estimate of the effect on its financial statements in
accordance with its accounting policies.
At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, if the PD and LGD will shift for both performing and non-performing loans, the
provisions will change according with the following table:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis

On balance sheet exposures

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Effect on profit or loss
(+/· 5%)

Effect on profit or loss
(+/- 5%)

+ 351/-537
+ 1,869/-2,449
+1,740/-2,836
+1, 108/-1, 725
+2,331/-4,862
+1,717/-2,320

+261/-385
+1,188/-1,453
+l,581/-2,707
+813/-1,207
+1,863/-2, 759
+l,994/-2,263

+9,116/-14,729

+7,700/-10,747

Credit cards and Overdrafts
Consumer Loan
Equity
Mortgage
Micro and SME
Corporate
TOTAL

c)

Risk provisions for potential claims derived from loan contracts

The Bank records provisions for potential liabilities derived from past commercial practice (see note 21). The Bank developed
a methodology to estimate the required provision for such potential liabilities making assumptions based on more recent
history. The methodology also involves making assumptions about the number of future legal cases to be brought against the
Bank and the likely outcome of current and possible future cases. These assumptions are inherently difficult to estimate, and
the estimation uncertainty was higher. Details regarding risk provisions for potential claims derived from past commercial
practices are presented in Note 21.

d)

Deferred tax

On 10 July 2019, the Bank acquired Bank Leumi Romania S.A, recognizing a bargain purchase of RON 112,687 thousand in the
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2019, as a result of the business combination in accordance with IFRS 3.
In the circumstances of the merger between the Bank and its subsidiary realised during 2020, the bargain gain has been
transferred in retain earnings in the financial statements. Although, the Bank considers there are arguments to support the
bargain gain as non-taxable income for the calculation of t he comprehensive income. However the acceptability of such tax
treatment cannot be known until the fiscal authority may decide in the future, therefore the Bank acknowledges the
uncertainties and the probability of obtaining a negative opinion on the fiscal treatment of the bargain purchase from the fiscal
authorities, as further described, and consequently in accordance with IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments,
recognized in its consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2019 a deferred tax liability of RON 18,030 thousand
and a similar approach was used for 2020 financial statements.
Although the Bank believes that there are arguments to support the view that the bargain purchase is not taxable (arguments
which rely mainly on the principle of the neutrality of a merger for tax purposes), it has filed, prior to the effective date of the
merger, for an advanced individual tax solution (a binding ruling) seeking the tax authorities' confirmation of the tax treatment
of the bargain purchase. Prior to obtaining the tax authorities' ruling, the probability that a tax inspector would have a different
interpretation than that of the Bank cannot be ruled out and this uncertainty is triggered by the fact that the tax law does not
specifically cover cases of bargaining gains arising as a result of business combinations in accordance with IFRS 3.

e)

De-recognition of financial assets

The Bank derecognises an asset if it substantially transfers all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. The transfer of
risks and rewards is evaluated taking into consideration the Bank's exposure, before and after the transfer, the variability in
amount and timing of the expected future cash flows. The Bank continues to recognise the asset if it reta ins substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. The de-recognition criteria imply substantial changes to the transferor's
exposure towards the risks and rewards of ownership.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

The Bank determines whether it has retained control of the asset. Control is defined as the transferee's ability to sell the asset.
The transferee has this ability if it can unilaterally sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party without needing to
impose further restrictions on the transfer. A transferee has the ability to sell the asset if it is traded in an active market
because, should it need to return the assets to the transferor, the transferee could purchase it in the market.
The asset is derecognised if the Bank has lost control over it. The Bank continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and its retained control.
Specifically, during 2018, the Bank transferred to Piraeus Bank S.A. - London Branch loans on the basis of the funded
participation or assignment agreements, receiving cash in exchange. Management considers that all the risks and rewards
related to those loans are substantially transferred to Piraeus Bank S.A.- London Branch and hence de-recognition criteria are
met. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Bank has not transferred loans on the basis of funded participation or
assignment agreements.
Specific judgements have been made over the commission income received by the Bank from administration of transferred
loans, disclosed in Note 27, which were considered by management to be both an adequate and expected compensation for
the servicing of the transferred portfolio performed by the Bank as it covers the costs inherent to the servicing activities
performed such as collection, accounting, monitoring, and other administrative tasks and ensure an appropriate return for the
Bank.
The sufficiency of the commissions received by the Bank from administration of the loans transferred to Piraeus Bank S.A. London Branch for periods before the change in the Bank's ownership was validated through the new commercial terms agreed
in the context of control changing, as well as by the commissions received starting 2018 from the administration of the loan
portfolio of another Greek lender (i.e. Eurobank}.
4

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

196,798
615,147
586,951
(72,004}

194,905
617,168
437,963
(67,489}

1,326,892

1,182,547

(102}

(207}

1,326,790

1,182,340

Cash on hand (Note S)
Cash and balances with Central Bank (Note S}
Due from other banks (Note 7)
Less collateral deposits (*}
Total Cash and cash equivalents

Allowance for impairment
Total Cash and cash equivalents

(*} The placements in amount of RON 72,004 thousand (31 December 2019: RON 67,489 thousand) represent collateral
deposits for swap transactions and cards activity.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

The qualitative analysis regarding the placements with banks was based on the credit ratings issued by Moody's, if available.
For the Bank's placements with counterparties that are not rated the sovereign rating was used.
At 31 December 2020 the credit quality of the placements of the Bank with the Central Bank and other banks based on
Moody's ratings may be summarised as follows:
Due from other
Cash balances, with
banks:
the Central Bank,
Correspondent
Due from other
Total
including
accounts and
banks: Placements
mandatory reserves
overnight
placements
Aaa
Aa3
Al
A2
A3
Baal
Baa2
Baa3
Bl
B2
B3
Caal
Caa2
Not rated
Total cash and cash equivalents,
excluding cash on hand

49,496
10,469

69,422
93,678

49,496
79,891
93,678
12,039
192,289

12,039
192,289
47,404
8,812
1,976

615,147

615,147

13,881

61,285
623,959
1,976

3,416
10,613

73,457

3,416
84,070

427,610

159,342

1,202,099

At 31 December 2019 the credit quality of the placements of the Group with the Central Bank and other banks based on
Moody's ratings may be summarised as follows:

Cash balances, with
the Central Bank,

including
mandatory reserves

Aaa
Aa3
Al
A2
A3
Baal
Baa2
Baa3
Bl
B2
B3
Caal
Caa2
Not rated
Total cash and cash equivalents,
excluding cash on hand

Due from other
banks:
Correspondent
accounts and
overnight
placements

Due from other
banks: Placements

53,175
2,012
132,858
59,035
243
31,406
34,998

617,168

2,080
12,234

38,803

322
7,926
11,395

617,168

53,175
2,012
134,938
71,269
243
70,209
652,166
322
7,926
11,395

41,549

9,928

51,477

321,744

116,220

1,055,132
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CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

Cash
Current account, out of which:
- in RON
- in Foreign currency
Overnight deposits

196,798
444,503
303,118
141,385
170,567

194,905
590,688
325,086
265,602
26,412

Total

811,868

812,005

Current accounts are required to satisfy the mandatory minimum reserve requirements imposed by t he National Bank of
Romania. This reserve represents a minimum average deposit with a holding period of one month, computed based on
resources held in the previous month.
As at 31 December 2020, the minimum reserve requirement held with the National Bank of Romania was set at 8% (31
December 2019: 8%) for funds denominated in RON and 5% (31 December 2019: 8%) for funds denominated in foreign
currency. The minimum reserve balance may fluctuate on a daily basis. The minimum required reserve can be used by the for
daily activities as long as the average monthly balance is maintained within the requ ired limits.
All these balances were included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 4).
The interest paid by the National Bank of Romania for the reserves held by the banks was in average 0.13% per year for the
reserves in RON (2019: 0.16%) and 0.00% per year for reserves denominated in EUR (2019: 0.01%). The interest rate for
overnight deposits with National Bank of Romania was at 1% for the year ended as at 31 December 2020 (2019: 1.5%).
6

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIBILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

Gold Accounts (E-Gold)

1

1

Total other financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

1

1

At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, in other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, respectively
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, the Bank's gold account was included due to the existence of the
derivative component, the settlement of the transaction depending on the market price of the gold.
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DUE FROM OTHER BANKS
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

427,609
72,004
87,338
586,951

245,477
67,489
124,999
437,965

(25)

(141)

586,926

437,824

Current accounts
Placements with banks with original maturity more than three months
Placements with banks with original maturity less than three months

Less credit loss allowance
Total Due from other banks

During the year ended as at 31 December 2020, the Bank's interest rates for EUR placements ranged from -0.75% to 0%, while
for RON they fluctuated from 1.5% to 2.9% (2019: EUR: between -0.75% and 0%, RON : between 1.5% and 3.25%). With respect
to the USD placements the interest rate ranged between a low of 0.01% and a high of 1.5% (2019: between 1.2% and 2.5%).
Current accounts, sight deposits and term deposits included in Due from other banks with an original maturity lower than 3
months were included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 4).
The credit quality of the balances is presented in Note 4.
Stage 1 (12months ECL)

31 December 2020

Stage 2 (lifetime
ECL for SICR)

Total

Current accounts
Placements with banks of more t han three months
Placements with banks of less than three months
Amounts in course of settlement
Less credit loss allowance

427,609
72,004
87,338

427,609

(25)

(25)

Total Due from other banks

586,926

586,926

159,342

Stage 1 (12months ECL)

Stage 2 (lifetime
ECL for SICR)

Current accounts
Placements with banks of more than three months
Placements with banks of less than three months
Amounts in course of settlement
Less credit loss allowance

234,082
67,489
124,999

11,395

245,477
67,489
124,999

(117)

(24)

(141)

Total Due from other banks

426,453

11,371

437,824

31 December 2019
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

Companies
Individuals, out of which:
Individuals - consumer loans
Individuals - personal needs (secured)
Mortgage loans
Overdraft
Credit Cards

2,259,431
1,688,009
401,622
309,785
923,078
33,086
20,438

2,511,369
1,741,452
422,378
340,620
919,163
35,742
23,549

Total gross value

3,947,440

4,252,821

Less provision for impairment

(235,239)

{157, 799}

Total

3,712,201

4,095,022

Analysis by sector

Companies
Trade
Tourism
Manufacturing
Construction and Real Estate
Transportation
Agriculture
Energy
Other
Total

31 December
2020

%of
total

31 December
2019

%of
Total

560,423
125,728
345,537
670,417
87,629
130,652
31,479
307,566

14%
3%
9%
17%
2%
3%
1%
8%

609,503
104,662
442,516
670,229
97,878
222,036
43,560
320,986

14%
2%
10%
16%
2%
5%
1%
8%

2,259,431

Individuals
Mortgage loans
Consumers loans, personal needs loans and overdrafts
Credit cards

923,079
744,492
20,438

2,511,369

23%
19%
1%

919,163
798,740
23,549

Total

1,688,009

1,741,452

Total portfolio before provision

3,947,440

4,252,821

Less allowance for loan impairment

(235,239)

(157,799)

Total portfolio, net

3,712,201

4,095,022

22%
19%
1%

According to the Bank' s policy, each borrower is rated when their credit limit is initially determined and thereafter, they are
systematically re-rated on at least an annual basis. The ratings are also updated in cases when there is updated available
information that may have a significant impact on the level of credit risk.
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Information about credit risk assessment and collaterals. For stratification of credit risk please see also note 33.1.
Corporate Credit
All credit limits are reviewed at least once annually and the responsible approval authorities are determined, based on the size
and the category of the total credit risk exposure assumed by the Bank for each debtor or group of interrelated debtors (one
obliger principle).
As far as Corporate Loans are concerned (both for large companies as well as for small and medium sized companies), the Bank
applies the Moody's Risk Advisor borrower credit rating system (MRA) in the underwriting process.
The scoring is updated when the Bank receives new information about customers' creditworthiness, and at least once a year.
The credit ratings below 12 (of the 23 rating grades) or Risk Grade 1-3 correspond to Strong category. All the customers
allocated to stage 1 which have not been identified into Strong category are presented as Satisfactory, while Watch list and
Default categories are identified based on stage 2, respectively stage 3 classes.

Retail Credit
As far as retail loans are concerned, the Bank is focusing on the application of modern credit risk and fraud prevention
measurement methods, using also scoring models, tailored to the profile of the Bank retail lending customer portfolio.
The approval of a loan is possible only if the calculated Application score (A-score) for the applicant is above a certain threshold,
established as to ensure that the performance of the retail lending portfolio is according to Bank's risk strategy and profile. The
specific score is calculated based on a set of characteristics, each characteristic having a weight correlated with its potentially
triggered delinquency rate as resulting from the Bank's actual portfolio.
The monitoring of the existing retail exposures is done using a Behavioural Score (B-score). The B-score is calculated on a
monthly basis taking into account the performance of the existing client within a time frame of 3-12M in terms of dpd buckets,
restructurings, payments etc.
The B-score is calcu lated at a client level, covering the behaviour of a specific client in respect to all of its exposures: Secured
Loans, Unsecured Loans and Credit Cards. The B-score is back-tested and validated at least once per year with the support of
the external provider.
The credit ratings above 238 (of the 100-320 rating grades) or Risk Grade 1-3 correspond to Strong category. All the customers
allocated to stage 1 which have not been identified into Strong category are presented as Satisfactory, while Watch list and
Default categories are identified based on stage 2, respectively stage 3 classes.
The disclosure below represents the lower of the carrying value of the loan or collateral taken; the remaining part is disclosed
within the unsecured exposures. The carrying value of loans was allocated based on liquidity of the assets taken as collateral.
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Information about collateral
31 December 2020
Corporate
entities

Small medium
entities

Mortgages

Consumer I
personal loans

Credit cards

Overdraft

Total

Loans guaranteed by other banks
Loans collateralised by:
- residential real estate
- other real estate
- cash deposits
- Guarantee Fund

49,861

778

195,232
572,767
27,324
28,951

148,896
315,088
13,195
154,009

621,304
13,201

306,499
8,862

132,397

44

1,271,931
909,918
40,519
315,401

Total secured exposures

874,135

631,966

766,902

315,405

2,588,408

Unsecured exposures

380,129

230,705

134,608

333,907

18,912

25,532

1,123,793

1,254,264

862,671

901,510

649,312

18,912

25,532

3,712,201

Total loans and advances to customers(*)

50,639

(*) Total loans and advances to customers are diminished by the fair value adjustments for the portfolio of loans token over through acquisition of Leumi Bank, determined on the basis of the

purchase price allocation report.
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Information about collateral
31 December 2019

Corporate
entities

Small medium
entities

Mortgages

Consumer/
personal loans

Credit cards

Overdraft

Total

Loans guaranteed by other banks
Loans collateralised by:
- residential real estate
- other real estate
- cash deposits
- Guarantee Fund

144,453
593,441
15,247
25,238

186,849
417,168
28,569
51,572

629,280
15,510
4,892
202,563

293,265
12,159
447

1,253,847
1,038,279
49,155
279,373

Total secured exposures

778,829

684,159

852,245

305,871

2,621,103

Unsecured exposures

643,990

314,882

53,813

407,838

22,178

31,217

1,473,919

1,422,819

999,041

906,058

713,709

22,178

31,217

4,095,022

Total loans and advances to customers(*)

450

450

(*) Toto/ loans and advances to customers are diminished by the fair value adjustments for the portfolio of loans taken over through acquisition of Leumi Bank, determined on the basis of the

purchase price a/location report.
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

In the calculation of the allowance for impairment fair values of the collaterals have been used as presented in this note, and,
where applicable, future cash flows estimated repayments were considered as well.
The financial effect of collateral is presented by disclosing collateral values separately for (i) those assets where collateral and
other credit enhancements are equal to or exceed carrying value of the asset ("over-collatera lised assets") and (ii} those assets
where collateral and other credit enhancements are less than the carrying value of the asset ("under-collateralised assets").

31 December 2020

Corporate entities
Small medium entities
Loans to individuals:
Mortgages
Consumer/ personal loans
Credit card
Overdraft
Total

31 December 2019

Corporate entities
Small medium entities
Loans to individuals:
Mortgages
Consumer/ personal loans
Credit card
Overdraft
Total

Over-collateralised assets

Under-collateralised assets

Carrying value of
the assets

Fair value of
collateral

Carrying value
of the assets

Fair value
of collateral

767,102
540,225

1,642,646
1,856,523

487,162
322,446

205,849
180,756

640,106
196,718

1,004,094
448,225

261,404
452,594
18,912
25,532

214,572
87,412

2,144,151

4,951,488

1,568,050

688,589

Over-collateralised assets

Under-collateralised assets

Carrying value of
the assets

Fair value of
collateral

Carrying value
of the assets

Fair value
of collateral

432,673
473,118

897,568
1,162,564

990,146
525,922

346,156
211,040

627,219
205,243

945,804
426,996

225,025
100,627

3

278,839
508,465
22,178
31,217

3,432,934

2,356,768

882,849

1,738,254
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INVESTMENT SECURITIES

By type of instrument:

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

Bonds FVOCI
Bonds at amortised cost
Equity investments - unlisted (i)
Less allowance for bonds at amortised cost

1,302,081
522,835
1,353
(44)

1,243,887
521,277
1,367
(43)

Total amounts

1,826,225

1,766,488

As at 31 December 2020, the bonds at fair value through other comprehensive income are classified as Stage 1 and ECL
impairment allowance in other comprehensive income amounts to RON 136.4 thousand or the Bank (December 31, 2019:
RON 119.5 thousand). Presentation by category is presented in Note 33.6.
(i)

Investment securities include equity securities with a carrying value of RON 1,353 (2019: 1,367), representing
investment in other equity securities which are not publicly traded. Due to the nature of the local financial markets,
it is not possible to obtain current market value for the other equity securities.

Analysis by credit quality of debt securities outstanding at period end is as follows:

31 December
2020
Investment
Securities

31 December
2019
Investment
Securities

BBB-

1,824,872

1,765,121

Total

1,824,872

1,765,121
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INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

The movement in the investment securities FVOCI is presented below:

At 1 January 2020

1,243,887

Additions
Disposals (sold or matured)
Accrued interest
Cashed interest
Foreign exchange impact
Net Reclassification from Repo transactions
Gains/ (losses) from changes in fair value (Note 25)

478,322
(481,010)
37,820
(44,511)
5,892
50,872
10,809

At 31 December 2020

1,302,081

At 1 January 2019

913,328

Balance at acquisition date of Bank Leumi
Additions
Disposals (so ld or matured)
Accrued interest
Cashed interest
Foreign exchange impact
Net Reclassification from Repo transactions
Gains/ (losses) from changes in fair value (Note 25)

106,872
1,205,557
(1,276,938)
30,569
(30,867)
18,259
266,642
10,465

At 31 December 2019

1,243,887

The bonds classified by the Bank as fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31 December 2020 are issued by
Ministry of Finance Romania, the EUR denominated ones having a nominal interest rate between 1% and 3.63%, RON Bonds
having a nominal interest rate between 3.25% and 5.95% and USD denominated ones having a nominal interest rate
between 4.38% and 6.75%.
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INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
Financial assets held at amortized
At 1 January 2020

521,277

Additions
Disposals (sold or matured)
Accrued interest
Amortization of premium
Cashed interest
Foreign exchange impact

294,766
(295,316)
18,824
(22,025)
5,309

At 31 December 2020

522,835

At 1 January 2019

516,212

Additions
Disposals (sold or matured)
Accrued interest
Amortization of premium
Cashed interest
Foreign exchange impact

(12,716)
4,154

At 31 December 2019

521,277

13,627

As at 31 December 2020, the bonds classified by the Bank at amortised cost consist in EUR bonds issued by Ministry of
Finance Romania, having a nominal interest rate of 1.25%, and RON Bonds issued by Ministry of Finance Romania, having a
nominal interest rate between3.25% and 4.5%.
10

REPURCHASE RECEIVABLES

Repurchase receivables represent securities sold under sale and repurchase agreements which the counterparty has the
right, by contract or custom, to sell or re-pledge. The repurchase agreements are short-term in nature.
31
December 2020

FVOCI securities sold under sale and repurchase agreements - Romanian
government bonds
Less credit loss allowance
Total repurchase receivables representing FVOCI securities

31
December2019

50,823

50,823

Investment securities reclassified to repurchase receivables continue to be carried at fair value in accordance with accounting
policies for these categories of assets.
Securities from the portfolio are issued by the Romanian Government, having a BBB- with stable outlook (Standard & Poor's)
rating.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2020

Contract/

Fair values

Notional
amount
Derivative held for trading
Currency swaps
Interest Rate Swaps
Total
At 31 December 2019

Assets

Liabilities

223,443
237,664

72

482
11,183

461,107

72

11,665

Contract/

Fair values

Notional
amount
Derivative held for trading
Currency swaps
Interest Rate Swaps
Total

Assets

Liabilities

241,956
285,000

8

1,288
1,533

526,956

8

2,821

As of 31 December 2020 and 2019 the Bank has derivatives agreements only with Financial Institutions.
The Bank uses derivative instruments for non-hedging purposes.
The Bank systematically monitors and controls the exposure and duration of its net open positions in the derivative markets.
Credit exposures from positions in the derivative markets are part of the overall credit limits set for any counterparty and are
taken into consideration during the approval procedure. Usually, no guarantees or securities are taken against exposures in
derivative products, except when the Bank demands the application of a safety margin from counterparty.
Credit risk arises also from the settlement of trades in derivative products. The Bank has established and systematically
monitors, daily settlement limits for derivative products transactions, which are included in the overall credit limit of any
cou nterparty.
12

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Investment property at fair value at 1 January

30,948

30,220

Amount at acquisition date of Bank Leumi
Fair value gain/(loss)
Transfer to repossessed assets

(1,728)

2,498
141
(1,911)

Investment property at fair value 31 December

29,220

30,948

The future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
31 December 2020

31 December2019

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

3,428
10,125

12,811

Total operating lease payments receivable

13,553

16,051

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

The fair value of the investment property as at 31 December 2020 was assessed on the basis of a valuation carried out by an
independent valuator, member of the Romanian Institute of Evaluators (ANEVAR), having appropriate qualifications in the
valuation of properties in the relevant location. The fair value was determined based on the capitalisation of net income
method, where the market rentals of all rentable units of the properties are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in
the rentable units as well as other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made
by reference to the yield rates observed by the evaluators for similar properties in the locality and adjusted based on the
valuator's knowledge of the factors specific to the respective properties.
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
For investment properties categorized into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the following information is relevant:

Office building located in
Calea Grivitei, nr.24, District
1, Bucharest

Valuation
techniques

Significant unobservable input(s)

Sensitivity

Income Approach DCF (discounted
cash-flow analysis)

Capitalization rate, taking into
account the capitalization of rental
income potential, nature of the
property, and prevailing market
condition,
of 8.50%.

A slight increase in the
capitalization rate used would
result in a significant decrease
in fair value, and vice versa.

Monthly market rent, taking into
account the differences in
location, and individual factors,
such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
property.

A significant increase in the
market rent used would result
in a significant increase in fair
value, and vice versa.
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PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2020

Opening net book amount

Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Depreciation charge
Accumulated depreciation for disposals and transfers
Impairment provision
Closing net book amount
At 31 December 2020
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Impairment provision
Net book amount

Vehicles

Furniture
and
equipment

Assets in
course of
construction

Total

251

18,991

1,649

27,090

8,518
(1,768)
(10)

13,204

1,248

4,634
1,318
(589)
{10,460)
573
(1,000)

1,852

1,725

13,467

8,389

25,433

3,013
{1,161)

61,197
(59,472)

153,845
(139,378)
(1,000)

8,389

228,261
(201,828)
(1,000)

1,852

1,725

13,467

8,389

25,433

Buildings
and land

Leasehold
improvements

3,696

2,503

52
450
(2,110)
(71)
337

(2,528)

(251)

1,817
(1,817)
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LEASES

Right-of-use assets
Property

Vehicles

Total

Balance at 1 January

133,520

2,684

136,204

Additions(*)
Disposals
Depreciation charge

13,915
(13,522)
(45,765)

1,093
(246)
(1,623)

15,008
(13,767)
(47,388)

88,148

1,908

90,056

31 December 2020

Balance at 31 December 2020

Lease liabilities
31 December 2020
Maturity analysis - discounted contractual cash flows

Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years

1,727
27,641
60,849

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position

90,217

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
31 December 2020

Interest on lease liabilities
Expenses related to short term leases and leases of low value assets

3,804
2,390

Total

6,194
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2020
Computer
Software

Software
in course of
construction

Customer
Contracts

Total

Opening net book amount

39,167

15,281

436

54,884

Additions
Transfers
Disposal
Amortisation charge
Accumulated depreciation for disposals and
transfers

5,429
20,099

8,236
-20,099

Closing net book amount
At 31 December 2020
Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net book amount
16
16.1.

13,665

(18,506)

(436)

46,189

3,418

191,267
(145,078)

3,418

46,189

3,418

(18,942)

49,607

523
(523)

195,208
(145,601)
49,607

OTHER ASSETS
Other financial assets
31
December
2020

31
December
2019

Guarantees-deposits
Indemnity receivables from Piraeus Bank S.A. (i)
Other assets and receivables (ii)

1,405
82,147
15,581

2,143
80,627
25,230

Total

99,133

108,000

Less provision

(2,371)

(2,483)

Total other financial assets

96,762

105,517

(i)

In 2019 the Bank purchased from its main shareholder, JCF IV Tiger Holdings S.a.r.l, an indemnity receivable of the
latter against Piraeus Bank S.A. The receivable against Piraeus Bank S.A. in amount of EUR 16.8 million arose in
connection with the loss to be incurred by the Bank as result of court case related to past commercial practices, when
Piraeus Bank S.A. was the shareholder of the Bank, pursuant to the terms of the share sale and purchase agreement
entered into between the former and current shareholders for the sale of the shares of the Bank.
The receivable purchased by the Bank is of EUR 15.8 million (RON 76.9 million) as at 31 December 2020, as
substantiated in the independent valuation report issued by PricewaterhouseCoopers Management Consultants SRL
issued in December 2019.
In connection to the indemnity receivable purchased in 2019 as detailed above, in December 2019, the Bank purchased
from its main shareholder, JCF IV Tiger Holdings S.a.r.l an additional indemnity receivable, in amount of EUR 1.06
million (RON 5.1 million), as substantiated in the independent valuation report issued by PricewaterhouseCoopers
Management Consultants SRL issued in December 2019.
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OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

16.1.

Other financial assets (continued)

(ii) Other assets and receivables of the Bank refers to claims to debtors for various services of RON 7,798 thousand (31
December 2019: RON 17,031 thousand), overdue commissions of RON 2,850 thousand (31 December 2019: RON 2,522
thousand), other receivables related to cards operations of RON 3,083 thousand (31 December 2019: RON 4,927
thousand), amounts to be recovered from settlement services of RON 1,850 thousand (31 December 2019: RON 750
thousand).
Movements in provision for other financial assets are as follows:
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

2,483

1,539

1,227
(1,463)
124

269
4,977
(4,340)
38

2,371

2,483

Balance at beginning of the period

Balance at acquisition date of Bank Leumi
Charge/(release) of provision (Note 31)
Write-off of provisions
Foreign exchange differences
Balance at end of the period
16.2.

Other non-financial assets
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

8,424
3,469
2,181
(25)

12,681
4,073
489
2,738
9

Total

14,049

19,990

Less provision (iii)

(2,060)

(2,060)

Total other non-financial assets

11,989

17,930

Prepayments (i)
Inventory (ii)
Gold
Receivable from the State
Other non-financial assets

(i)

Prepayments as at 31 December 2020 of the Bank include payments for the acquisition of computer licenses and
maintenance during 2020.

(ii)

Inventories of the Bank contain mainly consumables related to cards activity and other equipment from closed
branches that are intended to be used in the existing network and head office.

(iii)

Provision for non-financial assets for the Bank refers to impairment of inventory in amount of RON 2,060 thousand
(31 December 2019: RON 2,060 thousand; while an amount of RON 3,750 thousand medical leaves receivable from
the State and related provisions were written-off in 2019 - refer to the movement in provisions for other nonfinancial assets presented below).
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OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

16.2.

Other non-financial assets

Movements in provisions for other non-financial assets are as follows:
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

2,060

5,853

Balance at beginning of the period

Charge/(release) of provision
Write-off of provisions

(43)
(3,750)

Balance at end of the period

17

2,060

2,060

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

91,176

89,114

REPOSSESSED ASSETS FROM FORECLOSED LOAN CONTRACTS

Opening gross book value

Gross book value at acquisition date of Bank Leumi
Addition
Transfer from investment property
Disposals

(16,626)

72
10,768
1,912
(10,689)

80,914

91,176

(59,918)

(62,091)

20,996

29,085

6,364

Closing gross book value

Accumulated provision
Closing net book amount

Movements in impairment provisions for repossessed assets from foreclosed loan contracts were as follows:
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

62,091

57,049

4,684

6,683

Sales of repossessed assets

(6,857)

618
(2,259)

Closing balance

59,918

62,091

Opening balance

Charge/(Release) for the period (Note 31)
Transfer from investment property

The following table presents income and expenses from the sale of the repossessed assets from foreclosed loan contracts:
31 December
2020

31 December 2019

(7,196)
8,993

6,606)
9,229

1,797

2,623

Cost of sold repossessed assets from foreclosed loan contracts
Income from sale of repossessed assets from foreclosed loan contracts
Result- repossessed assets from foreclosed loans contracts
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REPOSSESSED ASSETS FROM FORECLOSED LOAN CONTRACTS {CONTINUED)

The following table presents the Bank's repossessed assets from foreclosed loan contracts at their net book amounts, split by
category type:
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

16,943
759
673
1,490
44
76
1,011
20,996

21,072
2,456
1,808
1,417
1,960
76
297
29,085

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

Sight deposits (i)
Term deposits (i)
Sale and repurchase agreements with banks (Note 23)
Borrowings from other banks (ii)

262,784
85,008
289,491

176,228
72,017
50,843
285,068

Total

637,283

584,156

Residential real estate
Commercial real estate
Agriculture
Industrial Area
Hotel
Forestry
Other

18

DUE TO OTHER BANKS

(i)

During the year ended as at 31 December 2020, interest rates on sight and term deposits ranged from 0% to
3.5% for the Bank, while for the year ended 31 December 2019 from 0% to 3.6% for the Bank.

(ii)

Bank Leumi Le-Israel BM and Bank Leumi Romania signed a loan agreement on 19 December 2008, amended by
Addendum No.1 signed on 22 September 2009 and Addendum No.2 signed on 2 July 2 2012, amounting to EUR
79,113 thousand, from which the drawn part amounts to EUR 59,329 thousand. The maturity date for repayment
of the drawn amount of EUR 59,329 is on 9 July 2021.
The undrawn amount of EUR 19,784 thousand - from the loan granted by Bank Leumi Le-Israel B.M - was
cancelled on 10 July 2019.
Starting with l0July 2019, the loan granted by Bank Leumi Le-Israel BM is collateralised by all present and future
rights arising from the credit agreements granted to Israeli clients (including the rights to collect principal,
interest, penalties and other commissions) up to the amount of EUR 80,095 thousand.

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

Current accounts
Term deposits
Collateral deposits
Fiduciary deposits

2,365,023
3,032,887
76,038
3,580

1,834,220
3,361,131
484,887
33,460

Total

5,477,529

5,713,698

During the year ended as at 31 December 2020, on RON accounts the interest rates ranged from 0% to 3. 75% for the Bank,
while for EUR accounts the interest rates ranged between 0% and 1.5% for the Bank.
Economic sector concentrations within customer accounts are as follows:
31 December 2020
Amount

%

Agriculture
Construction and Real Estate
Energy
Financial Sector
Manufacturing
Education
Public sector
Tourism
Trade
Transport
Individuals
Other

62,368
668,283
47,903
369,436
289,681
50,542
8,349
44,328
337,578
48,918
2,973,787
576,355

1%
12%
1%
7%
5%
1%
0%
1%
6%
1%
54%
11%

Total customer accounts

5,477,529

100%

31 December2019
Amount

%

Agriculture
Construction and Real Estate
Energy
Financial Sector
Manufacturing
Education
Public sector
Tourism
Trade
Transport
Individuals
Other

56,190
657,754
49,318
767,468
212,671
97,809
27,960
91,511
292,137
69,332
2,994,349
397,199

1%
12%
1%
13%
4%
2%
0%
2%
5%
1%
52%
7%

Total customer accounts

5,713,698

100%
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CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

As of 31 December 2020, the first 10 depositors of the Bank had balances of RON 391 million, representing 12% of total
customer accounts (31 December 2019: RON 808.2 million representing 14% of total customer accounts}.

20
20.1.

OTHER LIABILITIES
Other financial liabilities

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

277

Pre-contracts for repossessed assets
Payables to suppliers
Payable for reorganization plans
Stock transactions
Payable to State
Other payables
Provisions for off balance sheet commitments (Note 33.1, 34}

1,952
16,836
4,846
3,575
14,385
2,609

30,462
4,704
548
82
9,720
3,498

Total

44,204

49,291

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Other taxes, Social contributions and payables
Other accruals related to employees
Other liabilities

7,096
18,718
4,424

16,886
20,384
7,488

Total

30,238

44,758

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

20,996
33,438
10,583

16,471
30,196
9,085

65,017

55,752

20.2.

21

1

Other non-financial liabilities

PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES

Provisions for litigations (i}
Provisions for potential claims (i}
Other provisions
Provisions for risks and charges

The amount of the provisions for risk and charges is the best estimate of the amount required to settle an obligation, taking
into account the associated risks.
Provisions were recognised for all the situations when: a legal or implicit obligation as a result of a past event appeared, the
possibility that an outflow of resources, embodying economic benefits required to settle the obligation was more likely than
the possibility of not being required and a reliable estimation could be made for the amount of the obligation.
(i}

Provision for potential claims refer to potential claims related to past commercial practices of the Bank.
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PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES (CONTINUED)

Movements in provisions for risks and charges are presented below:
31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Balance at beginning of the period

55,752

117,437

Balance at acquisition date of Bank Leumi
Charge of provision to income statement
Release of provision to income statement

11,424
(2,158)

6,066
13,451
(81,202)

Balance at end of the period

65,017

55,752

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

Subordinated debts

194,898

191,326

Subordinated debts

194,898

191,326

Net charge/ {release) of provisions for risks and charges by nature is presented in Note 31.
22

SUBORDINATED DEBTS

In 2013, during the transfer of business from ATE Bank Romania the Bank took over two subordinated loans in amount of EUR
24,000 thousand and EUR 40,000 thousand respectively. The subordinated loan in amount of EUR 24,000 thousand was
converted in sha re capital during 2015. The remaining loan of EUR 40,000 thousand carries a variable interest rate {3M
Euribor+6.2%, changed in June 2018 from 3M Euribor+2.5%) and is repayable in 2023.
The Bank is not subject to any covenants from the subordinated loan agreement.
23

TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Bank enter into transactions by which it transfers financial assets directly to third parties. These transfers may give rise
to the full, partial or no derecognition of the financial assets concerned.
A.

Transfers of financial assets not qualifying for de-recognition

1.

Sale and repurchase agreements

The Bank sells, in exchange for cash, securities under an agreement to repurchase them ('repos') and assumes a liability to
repay to the counterparty the cash received.
The Bank has determined that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these financial assets and therefore has not
derecognised them.
The carrying amount of securities sold under repurchase agreements at 31 December 2020 for the Bank was null (31
December 2019: RON 50.82 million) all being classified as investment securities at fair value through other comprehensive
income. For more details, please refer to Note 10.
The carrying amount of the associated liabilities under repurchase agreements at 31 December 2020 was null {31 December
2019: RON 50.84 million). For more details, please refer to Note 18.
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TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

B.

Transfers offinancial assets qualifying for de-recognition

Transferred financial assets that are derecognized in their entirety and where the Bank has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards associated to the transferred assets.
Funded participations:
During the year ended as at 31 December 2020, the Bank has not sold, nor transferred loans under funded participation
agreements.
24

SHARE CAPITAL
31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Subscribed share capital
Minority
Restatement for hyperinflation (IAS 29)

1,195,856
233
50,791

1,195,856

Total

1,246,880

1,246,647

50,791

At 31 December 2020, the registered share capital of the Bank consists of 11,960,886,950 allotted and fully paid ordinary
shares of RON 0.1 each (31 December 2019: 11,958,562,550 ordinary shares of RON 0.1 each).
On 20 May 2019 the Bank issued 15,143,478 new shares at a nominal value of RON 5 per share. The shares were acquired and
paid in full by JCF IV Tiger Holdings S.a.r.1.
On 9 August 2019 the Bank issued 1,419,210 new shares at a nominal value of RON 5 per share. The shares were acquired and
paid in full on 9 August 2019 by JCF IV Tiger Holdings S.a.r.l.
On 18 October 2019 the shareholders of the Bank approved the reduction in the nominal value per share from RON 5 to RON

0.1, through issuance of 11,719,391,299 new ordinary shares.
Shareholder structure is presented in Note 1 to the financial statements.
Restatement for hyperinflation (IAS 291) relates to the shares issued in 2004 for the revaluation reserve recognised only under
the Romanian Accounting Standards (and not recognised under IFRS) and carried forward.
25

OTHER RESERVES
31 December 2020

31 December 2019

27,412
8,956
10,992
2,661
32,166
13,810
23,547

28,405
8,956
10,992
2,661
32,166
4,795
23,547

119,544

111,522

Statutory reserve (i)
Statutory reserve transferred from ATE (i)
General reserve for banking risks (ii)
General reserve for banking risks transferred from ATE (ii)
Other reserves transferred from ATE
FVOCI reserve/ (deficit)*
Other reserves from application of IAS 29
Total
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OTHER RESERVES {CONTINUED)

In December 2013, in the context of the spin-off of ATE Bank Romania, the Bank transferred from the aforementioned entity
reserves in a total amount of RON 43,783 thousand, as detailed above.
In accordance with the Romanian law on banks and banking activities, banks must distribute the profit as dividends or make a
transfer to retained earnings or reserves on the basis of the financial statements.
Amounts transferred to reserves must be used for the purposes designated when the transfer is made.
(i)

Starting with 2004, under Romanian banking legislation, bank is required to create the statutory reserve, appropriated
at the rate of 5% of the gross profit, until the tota l reserve is equal to 20% of the issued and fully paid up share capital.
The statutory reserves are not distributable to shareholders.
As at 31 December 2020, the Bank did not transfer any amount to legal reserves (31 December 2019: RON 1,083
thousand).

(ii)

The general banking risk reserve includes amounts set aside as profit reserves for future losses and other unforeseen
risks or contingencies, in accordance with local banking regulations. The general banking risk reserve was allocated
starting with financial year 2004 until the end of financial year 2006. The general banking risk reserve was allocated
from the gross statutory profit at a rate of 1% applied on the balance of assets exposed to specific banking risks.

The movement in the FVTOCI reserve is detailed below.
31 December 2020

31 December 2019

FVOCI reserve/ (deficit)
At the beginning of the period, net of tax

4,795

(4,075)

Gains less losses arising during the year
Business combination
Gains less losses reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal
Income tax recorded directly in other comprehensive income (note 32)

11,494
(443)
(242)
(1,794)

16,455
(5,980)
(1,604)

At the end of the period, net of tax

13,810

4,795
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NET INTEREST INCOME
31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Interest income
Loans and advances to customers
Current accounts and deposits due from banks
Investment securities FVOCI
Investment securities held at amortized cost

246,425
2,068
37,820
18,842

277,072
3,910
29,255
13,627

Total

305,137

323,864

7,015
48,988
11,376
3,804

5,804
58,761
761
11,268
3,082

71,183

79,675

233,954

244,189

Interest expense
Deposits to other banks
Customer deposits
Borrowings from other banks
Subordinated debt
Lease liabilities (Note 14)
Total
Net interest income

Interest income on impaired financial assets (corresponding to stage 3) was RON 12,435 thousand for the Bank for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (RON 17,620 thousand for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019).
27

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income
31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Administration fees (1)
- sub-participated/ sold loans - Piraeus Bank S.A.
- sold loans - other parties
Payments transactions
Letters of guarantee
Gold transactions (2)
Bank assurance
Cards transactions
Factoring
Leasing
Other fees

25,331
13,541
32,309
2,324
108
5,336
19,106
107
215

31,313
13,481
36,733
1,813
814
5,988
19,842
2,205
377
2,849

Total

98,377

115,415
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(1)

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME (CONTINUED)

The commission income from administration fees includes mainly:
Fees related to loans transferred to Piraeus Bank S.A. London Branch, for which the Bank continues to render
administration services.
Fees from administration services provided to Eurobank for loans originated by its former subsidiary {i.e.
Bancpost S.A).
Fees from administration services provided by Bank Leumi

The cost of sale and income related to gold transactions are presented below:
31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Gold cost of sale
Gold sale income

(17)
125

{2,329)
3,143

Net result from gold transactions

108

814

31 December2020

31 December 2019

Payments transactions
Cards transactions
Funding commitment
Factoring
Leasing
Financial guarantees received
Other commissions

5,186
11,053
1,211
44
213
2,752

4,573
12,747
39
271
305
1,028
2,774

Total

20,459

21,737

Net fee and commission income

77,918

93,678

Fee and commission expense

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME (CONTINUED)

The t able below presents income from contracts per operating segment, t hat fall w ithin the scope of IFRS 15:
Corporate &
SME

Fee and commission income 2020

Administration fees
sub-participated / sold loans - Piraeus Bank S.A.
sold loans - other parties
Payments transactions
Letters of guarantee
Gold t ransact ions
Bank assurance
Cards t ransactions
Factoring
Leasing

Retail

Others

Treasury

184

18,495
1,235

11,947
671

82
6,941
107
215

5,254
12,156

9

27,07S

30,028

301

25,331
13,541
1,683
418

25,331
13,541
32,309
2,324
108
5,336
19,106
107
215

40,973

98,377

108

Total

Corporate
&SME

Fee and commission expense 2020

Retail

Payments transactions
Cards transactions
Fund ing commit ment
Factoring
Leasing
Financial guarantees received
Other commissions

3,040
4,511
0
28
213
0
11

732
5,674
1,122
0
0
0
2,410

Total

7,803

9,938

Translation from the original Romanian version.

71

Others

Treasury

-

0
0
89
0
0
0
43
0

132

0

Total

Total

1,414
868
0
16
0
0
288

5,186
11,053
1,211
44
213
0
2,752

2,586

20,459
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NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME (CONTINUED)

The table below presents income from contracts per operating segment, that fall within the scope of IFRS 15:
Corporate

Fee and commission income 2019

&SME

Administration fees
sub-participated/ sold loans - Piraeus Bank S.A.
sold loans - other parties
Payments transactions
Letters of guarantee
Gold transactions
Bank assurance
Cards transactions
Factoring
Leasing

21,781
1,372

Retail

10,261
22

2
126
7,573
2,205

Treasury

Others

579

31,313
13,481
4,112
418

31,313
13,481
36,733
1,813
814
5,988
19,842
2,205

2,849

2,849

52,174

115,415

813
5,861
12,263

6

377

Total

33,436
Corporate

Fee and commission expense 2019

&SME

377

28,408

Retail

1,397

Treasury

Others

Payments transactions
Cards transactions
Funding commitment
Factoring
Leasing
Financial guarantees received
Other commissions

3,287
4,944

8

1,693

169

1,028
904

Total

8,659

8,037

210

4,832

340
6,004

1

945
1,799

39
115
305
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GAINS LESS LOSSES FROM FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

4,900
(10,998)

4,356
(1,533)
81

(6,098)

2,904

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

28,491

19,767

(840)

7,421

27,651

27,188

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

Dividend income (i)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets (Note 13)
Other income

725
(356)
15,055

740
17,919
5,729

Total

15,424

24,388

Foreign exchange derivatives
Interest rate swaps
Gold accounts (e-gold)
Total
29

GAINS LESS LOSSES FROM TRADING IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Foreign Exchange

Gains less losses from spot transactions
Gains less losses from revaluation of assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currency

Total
30

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

(i)

Dividend income is related to the Bank's investments in Birou l de Credit, Transfond and Depozitarul Central SA
- RON 725 thousand for the year ended as at 31 December 2020 (RON 740 thousand for the year ended as at 31
December 2019).

31

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

155,906
4,607
(35)
8,331

143,791
4,282

Staff Expenses
Salaries
Social security and other contributions
Defined benefit contributions
Other staff cost

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

Administrative Expenses
Services from third parties {i)
Postal and telecommunication
Cards operations
Rent
Insurance premium
Physical Security expenses
Buildings Maintenance & Repairs
Utilities
IT Maintenance
Advertising expenses
Consumables
Other Administrative
Depreciation and amortisation {Notes 13, 14 and 15)
Total

(i)

2020

2019

20,795
6,607
7,831
2,458
2,754
5,968
2,550
5,390
15,936
10,390
4,495
28,695
79,640

32,258
7,252
7,918
5,145
2,349
3,271
4,553
5,404
18,857
6,496
2,543
32,726
77,103

362,318

362,297

The fees paid by the Bank to the auditing firm Deloitte and other companies from their group, without VAT, were as
follows:
• audit and audit related services: RON 1,519 thousand {31 December 2019: RON 3,132 thousand);
• other non-audit services: null {31 December 2019: RON 32 thousand).

Other operating expense

2020

2019

Contribution to Deposits Guarantee Fund and Resolution Fund
Other provisions {ii)
Other operating expenses (iii)
Fines and penalties expenses due to fiscal audit

8,798
11,401
5,565

8,875
{46,520)
80,433

Total

25,764

42,788

388,082

405,085

2020

2019

{9)
(893)
4,684
1,226
4,526
3,242
1,557

{19)
(2,489)
6,684
4,190
{9,273)
(62,793)

{2,932)

17,180

Total administrative expenses and other operating expense

(ii)

Other provisions include:

Provisions for leasehold improvements in closed branches (Note 21)
Provisions for off balance sheet credit commitments (Note 33.1, 34)
Provisions for repossessed assets (Note 17)
Provision for sundry debtors
Provisions for litigations (Note 21) (i)
Provisions for potential claims (Note 21) (*)
Restructuring Provision
Other provisions {Note 21) {i)

Total
11,401
(46,520)
(*) The change in the provisions for potential claims for the year ended as at 31 December 2019 is mainly as a result of the

payments made by the Bank during October 2019 to customers as compensation for abusive clauses in amount of RON 67,3
million, following the Court Decision from January 2019 related to the National Agency for Consumer Protection (NAPC) Report
from June 2016.
{iii)

Other operating expenses of RON 5,565 for the Bank as at 31 December2020 comprise mainly for lost litigations in
relation to claims derived from loan contracts.
Translation from the original Romanian version.
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INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT

The income tax consists of current and deferred income tax as follows:

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

{1,423}
13,569

(20,102)

12,146

(20,102)

Current tax expense (i)
Deferred income tax (expense)/credit

The tax on Bank's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic tax rate as follows:

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

Profit before income tax
Theoretical tax credit /(charge) at the applicable statutory rate at 16%
Tax effect of:
Non-deductible expenses
Income which is exempt of taxation
Legal reserve
Recognised other potential deferred tax assets
Other elements similar to revenues

(82,912)

138,932

13,266

(22,229)

(9,488)
7,191
13,569
(2,290)

(11,771)
35,786
332
(20,103)
(1,176)

Corporate income tax (i)

(10,102)

(942)

12,146

(20,103)

Income tax (expense)/credit for the period

Current income tax is calculated by applying a rate of 16%. Deferred income taxes are calculated on temporary differences
under the liability method using a profit tax rate of 16%.
As at 31 December 2020, the Bank's cumulated losses carried forward are in amount of RON 64,915 thousand.
(i) As at 31 December 2020 the Bank's fiscal loss carried forward from prior periods was 10,670. For the year ended as at 31
December 2020, the Bank's fiscal loss was Ron 54,245 thousand.
On 10 July 2019, the Bank acquired Bank Leumi Romania S.A, recognizing a bargain purchase of RON 112,687 thousand in the
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2019, as a result of the business combination in accordance with IFRS 3.
In the circumstances of the merger between the Bank and its subsidiary, the bargain gain has been recognised as income in
the financial statements. In this respect, the Bank considers there are arguments to support the bargain gain as non-taxable
income for the calculation of the comprehensive income , however the acceptability of such tax treatment cannot be known
until the fiscal authority may decide in the future, therefore the Bank acknowledges the uncertainties and the probability of
obtaining a negative opinion on the fiscal treatment of the bargain purchase from the fiscal authorities, and consequently, in
accordance with IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, recognized in it consolidated financial statements as of
31 December 2019 a deferred tax liability of RON 18,030 thousand. The amount has been maintained in the financial
statements of 31 December 2020.

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/ CREDIT (CONTINUED}

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items:

31 December
2020

Tax (expense)/

Tax (expense)/

credit
recognized in
income statement

credit
recognized
in equity

31 December
2019

Business
Combination

Tax effect of deductible/(taxable) temporary differences

Other accruals

2,976

Gain on fair value of instruments measured through OCI

823

(2,604)

2,153
(1,794)

(810)

Hyperinflation of fixed assets and equity investments

56

Tax effect of deductible/ (taxable) temporary differences at acquisition
date of Bank Leumi

90

(1,504)

1,594

10,386

7,594

2,792

1,626

1,093

Fiscal Loss
Fair value adjustments on acquisition of Bank Leumi in accordance w ith
the purchase price allocation report
Reserves on acquisition of Bank Leumi in accordance with the purchase
price allocation report
Other temporary differences

Net tax effect of temporary differences

56

57

5,562

(5,562)

(18,030)

(5,500)

(18,030)
13,568
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INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/ CREDIT (CONTINUED)
Tax (expense)/

Tax (expense)/

31 December 2019

credit
recognized in
income statement

credit
recognized
in equity

Other accruals

2,153

1,068

Gain on fair value of instruments measured through OCI

(810)

Business
Combination

31 December

2018

Tax effect of deductible/(taxable) temporary differences

1,085
(1,604)

794
56

56

Hyperinflation of fixed assets and equity investments
Tax effect of deductible/ (taxable) temporary differences at acquisition
date of Bank Leumi

1,594

Fiscal Loss

2,792

(3,088)

476

120

(5,562)

(173)

Other temporary differences

(18,030)

(18,030)

Net tax effect of temporary differences

(17,331)

(20,102)

Fair value adjustments on acqu isition of Bank Leumi in accordance with
the purchase price allocation report
Reserves on acquisition of Bank Leumi in accordance with the purchase
price allocation report
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management is intertwined with the Bank's business activity. The management, aiming to maintain the stability
and continuity of its operations, places high priority on the goal of implementing and continuously improving an effective risk
management framework to minimize potential negative effects on the Bank's financial results.
The Bank's Board of Directors is fully responsible for the development and supervision of the risk management framework. In
order to coordinate and timely address all risks, a Risk Committee has been established at the level of Board of Directors. The
Risk Committee is responsible for the implementation and supervision of the risk management po licies and princip les.
Both the princip les and the existing risk management policies have been created to identify and analyse on a timely basis the
risks assumed by the Bank, establishing the appropriate limits and risk control systems, as well as systematically monitoring
the risks and ensuring compliance with established limits.
The Bank re-examines annua lly the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management framework in order to ensure that it
keeps pace w ith market dynamics, changes in the banking products offered, and international good practices.
The Bank's Risk Division operates as an independent unit, entrusted w ith the responsibility for planning and implementing of
the risk management framework, according to the directions of the Risk Committee. The Bank systematically monitors the
following risks resulting from the use of financial instruments: credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk in banking
book and operational risk.
33.1.

Credit risk

The Bank is exposed to credit risk, which is defined as the present or future risk of loss in returns or capital as a result of a
borrower's failure to repay a loan or otherwise meet a contractual obligation. The Bank recognizes and manages the intrinsic
credit risk in all products and activities. It has appropriate and adequately defined credit-granting criteria, which reflect the
market targets and include thorough evaluation of borrowers, counterparties, and guarantors, as well as the purpose, the type
of funding, the type of collateral/ security and the source of repayment.
The Bank has clearly defined policies and procedures of approving new credit as well as restructuring, renewal, refinancing of
existing credit or write-offs while handles possible exceptional deviations with the utmost attention.
Impairment provisions are provided where there is objective evidence that the Bank will not be able to collect all amounts
due. Significant changes in the economy or in the health of a particular industry segment that represents a concentration in
the Bank's portfolio, could result in additional evidence apart from that provided for at balance sheet date. The Bank therefore
carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. The Bank seeks to control credit risk through rigorous credit criteria, which
necessarily include the repayment option (first way out), the provision of collaterals (second way out) and the evaluation of
the customer. The process is supported by the use of internal rating systems with strong discriminating ability and systems for
credit risk measurement and calculation of capital requirements.
The Bank's overall exposure to credit risk mainly results from the approved credit limits and financing of corporate and retail
loans, from the Bank's investment and trading activities, from trading activities in the derivative markets, as well as from the
settlement offinancial instruments. The level of risk associated w ith any credit exposure depends on various factors, including
the general economic and market conditions preva iling, the debtors' financial condition, the amount, type, and duration of
the exposure, as well as the collateral/ guarantee coverage.
The Bank mitigates credit risk using a limits structure that allows for grouping and comparison of credit limits for different
types of risk exposure at various levels, such as borrower level (including connected borrowers), counterparty level, groups of
interrelated borrowers level, sector level and product level. All credit limits are reviewed at least once a year. Exposure to
credit risk is monitored through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential debtors to meet interest and principal
repayment obligations and through review of lending limits where appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also mitigated through
collateral, and corporate and personal guarantees.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

33.1.

Credit risk (continued)

The split of the total portfolio of Loans and advances to customers by industry is detailed in Note 8 ("Loans and advances to customers"). The bank's exposure with Central Ba nk is shown in
Note 5 (see "Bala nces with Central Bank'').
The net carrying amount per total stages is presented as follows:
Gross Exposure
31 December 2020

Allowance

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

POCI

TOTAL

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

POCI

TOTAL

Credit cards and Overdrafts
Consumer Loan
Equity
Mortgage
Micro and SME
Corporate

37,707
311,096
165,569
795,530
799,238
1,020,413

10,115
64,541
87,334
100,037
72,147
236,012

5,702
18,920
46,188
22,520
34,662
75,486

7,065
10,694
4,991
17,867
3,606

53,524
401,621
309,785
923,078
923,914
1,335,517

601
4,718
1,658
4,251
22,638
25,485

3,151
9,411
6,991
6,375
6,486
10,649

5,328
17,939
20,586
10,122
24,003
44,119

447
344
820
8,117
1,000

9,080
32,515
29,579
21,567
61,242
81,256

TOTAL:

3,129,553

570,186

203,478

44,223

3,947,440

59,351

43,063

122,097

10,728

235,239

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

POCI

TOTAL

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

POCI

TOTAL

Credit cards and Overdrafts
Consumer Loan
Equity
Mortgage
Micro and SME
Corporate

50,744
392,618
165,274
780,476
823,127
1,132,068

5,040
12,493
118,363
118,509
159,737
266,610

3,869
10,017
42,410
16,398
36,232
73,705

0
7,328
14,372
4,086
15,170
4,174

59,653
422,457
340,418
919,470
1,034,266
1,476,557

937
5,289
1,159
464
9,618
13,525

1,688
1,365
5,531
3,245
4,213
4,183

3,626
9,295
21,484
8,996
18,933
35,552

0
239
4,813
598
2,532
515

6,251
16,187
32,987
13,303
35,295
53,775

TOTAL:

3,344,307

680,753

182,631

45,130

4,252,821

30,992

20,225

97,885

8,697

157,799

Gross Exposure (*)
31 December 2019

Allowance

(*)Total loans and advances to customers before impairment allowance are diminished by the fair value adjustments for the portfolio of loans taken aver through acquisitions, determined
on the basis of the purchase price allocation report.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

33.1.

Credit risk (continued)

Total net carrying amount allocated to collaterals:
Total net amount
at amortised cost

31 December 2020

Credit cards and Overdrafts

Value of
collateral

44,445

Consumer Loan

369,106

38,090

Equity

280,206

259,224

Mortgage

901,510

864,974

Micro and SME

862,671

753,553

Corporate

1,254,264

951,905

Total

3,712,201

2,867,746

Total net amount
at amortised cost

Value of
collateral

31 December 2019

Credit cards and Overdrafts

53,402

Consumer Loan

406,269

48,932

Equity

307,432

307,053

Mortgage

906,166

855,538

Micro and SME

998,971

988,755

Corporate

1,422,782

1,069,125

Total

4,095,022

3,269,402
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

33.1

Credit risk (continued)

Net carrying amount of loans and receivables by quality criteria is presented as follows:
31 December 2020
Stage 1
Credit cards and Overdrafts
Strong
Satisfactory
Watch list {higher risk)
Default
Total gross amount
Loss allowance
Carrying amount
Collateral held for credit impaired assets

Stage 2

Total as of
31 December 2020

Total asof
31 December 2019

5,702
5,702
5,328
374

12,230
25,477
10,115
5,702
53,524
9,080
44,444

14,881
35,871
5,032
3,869
59,653
6,251
53,402

3,336
3,729
7,065
447

129,073
182,022
67,877
22,649
401,621
32,515

168,615
224,355
12,479
17,007
422,457
16,187

6,618
7,460

369,106
38,090

406,269
48,932

5,615
5,080
10,694
344
10,350
10,613

98,531
67,038
92,848
51,268
309,785
29,579
280,206
259,224

98,396
66,878
122,788
52,356
340,418
32,987
307,432
307,053

Stage 3

12,230
25,477
10,115
10-

37,707
601
37,106

10,115
3,151
6,964

Consumer loan
Strong
Satisfactory
Watch list {higher risk)
Default
Total gross amount
Loss allowance

311,095
4,718

64,541
9,411

18,920
18,920
17,939

Carrying amount
Collateral held for credit impaired assets

306,377
28,673

55,130
1,786

981
171

Equity
Strong
Satisfactory
Watch list (higher risk)
Default
Total gross amount
Loss allowance
Carrying amount
Collateral held for credit impaired assets

POCI

129,073
182,022
64,541

98,531
67,038
87,334
165,569
1,658
163,911
157,401

87,334
6,991
80,343
58,255

46,188
46,188
20,586
25,602
32,955
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

33.1

Credit risk (continued)

Net carrying amount of loans and receivables by quality criteria is presented as follows:
31 December 2020
Sta_[e 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

POCI

Total as of
31 December 2020

Total as of
31 December 2019

3,177
1,814
4,991
820
4,171
4,596

597,987
197,542
103,214
24,334
923,077
21,567
901,510
864,974

592,414
189,210
117,970
19,875
919,470
13,303
906,166
855,538

5,083
12,784
17,867
8,117
9,750
15,603

255,389
543,848
77,230
47,446
923,913
61,242
862,671
753,553

381,016
442,663
159,186
51,402
1,034,266
35,295
998,971
988,755

3,606
3,606
1,000
2,606
5,424

310,004
710,412
236,012
79,092
1,335,520
81,256
1,254,264
951,905

432,887
699,181
266,610
77,878
1,476,557
53,775
1,422,782
1,069,125

Mortgage
Strong
Satisfactory
Watch list (higher risk)
Default

597,987
197,542

Total gross amount

795,529
4,250
791,279
777,674

Loss allowance

Carrying amount
Collateral held for credit impaired assets

100,037

100,037
6,375
93,662
67,537

22,520
22,520
10,122
12,398
15,167

Micro and SME
Strong
Satisfactory
Watch list (higher risk)
Default

255,389
543,848

Total gross amount

799,237
22,636
776,601
653,233

Loss allowance

Carrying amount
Collatera l held for credit impaired assets

72,147

72,147
6,486
65,661
62,278

34,662
34,662
24,003
10,659
22,439

Corporate
Strong
Satisfactory
Watch list (higher risk)
Default

Total gross amount
Loss allowance

Carrying amount
Collatera l held for credit impaired assets

310,004
710,412
236,012

1,020,416
25,488
994,928
707,289

236,012
10,649
225,363
182,741

75,486
75,486
44,119
31,367
56,451
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

33.1

Credit risk (continued)

Gross carrying amount of loans and receivables by type of product, ageing criteria and stages is presented as follows:
Total amount of
L&As

Total amount of
forborne L&As

Forborne Loans
and Advances(%)

31 December 2020
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
POCI

3,129,S53
570,186
203,478
44,223

85,482
43,624
19,363

0%
15%
21%
44%

Exposure before impairment

3,947,440

148,469

4%

Stage 1 Allowance
Stage 2 Allowance
Stage 3 Allowance
POCI Allowance

59,351
43,063
122,097
10,728

5,253
24,917
1,791

0%
12%
20%
17%

Total impairment

235,239

31,961

14%

Total Net Amount

3,712,201

116,508

3%

Value of collateral

2,954,534

130,996

4%

31 December 2019
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
POCI

3,344,307
680,753
182,631
45,130

6,355
35,316
63,100
32,841

0%
5%
35%
73%

Exposure before impairment

4,252,821

137,612

3%

Stage 1 Allowance
Stage 2 Allowance
Stage 3 Allowance
POCI Allowance

30,992
20,225
97,885
8,697

3,197
30,425
7,625

0%
16%
31%
88%

Total impairment

157,799

41,246

26%

Total Net Amount

4,095,022

96,366

2%

Value of collateral

3,269,402

130,458

4%

Below is presented the reconciliation between credit risk incurred by the Bank and total amounts presented in the
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
31-Dec-20

31-Dec-19

(81,666)
78
37,599

(32,984)
448
62,510

{43,990)

29,975

Impairment losses on loans
Impairment losses on other financial assets
Recoveries of written off loans
Gain on sales of portfolio
Net (charge)/ release of provision for loan impairment
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33.1

Credit risk (continued)

Movement in risk provisions by type of product during 2020.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

937

1,688

3,626

50
(31)
(2)
(351)
(2)

(24)
176
(169)
1,483
(3)

{26)
(145)
171
1,905
(203)

Balance 31.12.2020

601

3,151

5,328

Consumer Loan
Balance 01.01.2020

5,289

1,364

9,295

Transfer to stage 1 (from 2 or 3)
Transfer to stage 2 (from 1 or 3)
Transfer to stage 3 (from 1 or 2)
Impairment losses on loans
Write-offs
Foreign exchange differences and other movements

530
(273)
(266)
(564)

(315)
864
(628)
8,122

3

3

(215)
(591)
894
10,510
(1,963)
9

Balance 31.12.2020

4,719

9,411

17,939

Credit cards and Overdrafts
Balance 01.01.2020

Transfer to stage 1 (from 2 or 3)
Transfer to stage 2 (from 1 or 3)
Transfer to stage 3 (from 1 or 2)
Impairment losses on loans
Write-offs
Foreign exchange differences and other movements
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

33.1

Credit risk (continued)

Movement in risk provisions by type of product du ring 2020.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

POCI

Balance 01.01. 2020

1,159

5,531

21,484

4,813

Transfer to stage 1 (from 2 o r 3)
Transfer to stage 2 (from 1 or 3)
Transfer t o stage 3 (from 1 o r 2)
Impairment losses o n loans
Writ e-offs
Foreign exchange differe nces and other movement s

894
(62)
(11)
(328)
(1)
7

(866)
1,038
(292)
1,536
(55)
99

(28)
(976)
303
(583)
(64)
450

(4,413)
(153)
97

Balance 31.12.2020

1,658

6,991

20,586

344

464

3,245

8,966

598

Transfer to stage 1 (fro m 2 or 3)
Transfer t o st age 2 (from 1 or 3)
Transfer t o stage 3 (from 1 or 2)
Impa irment losses o n loa ns
Write-offs
Foreign exchange d ifferences and other movements

378
(13)
(2)
3,421
(3)
6

(343)
237
(449)
3,789
(169)
65

(35)
(224)
451
763

209

171

13

Balance 31.12. 2020

4,251

6,375

10,122

820

Equity

Mortgage
Balance 01.01. 2020
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33.1

Credit risk (continued)

Movement in risk provisions by type of product during 2020.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

POCI

9,618

4,213

18,933

2,532

Transfer to stage 1 (from 2 or 3)
Transfer to stage 2 (from 1 or 3)
Transfer to stage 3 (from 1 or 2)
Impairment losses on loans
Write-offs
Foreign exchange differences and other movements

453
(67)
(SO)
12,664

(453)
163
(253)
2,805

5,572

19

11

(96)
303
8,236
(3,400)
27

Balance 31.12. 2020

22,637

6,486

24,003

8,117

Balance 01.01.2020

13,525

4,183

35,552

515

Transfer to stage 1 (from 2 or 3)
Transfer to stage 2 (from 1 or 3)
Transfer to stage 3 (from 1 or 2)
Impairment losses on loans
Write-offs
Foreign exchange differences and other movements

927
(1,133)
11,970

(927)
1,133
(1,233)
7,459

196

34

1,233
11,434
(4,481)
381

Balance 31.12. 2020

25,485

10,649

44,119

Micro and SME
Balance 01.01.2020

13

Corporate

Translation from the original Romanian version.

86

485

1,000

FI RSTBANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

(all amounts in "RON thousand", unless otherwise stated)
33

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

33.1

Credit risk (continued)

Movement in risk provisions by type of product during 2020.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

POCI

Balance 01.01.2020

30,992

20,22S

97,886

8,697

Transfer to stage 1 (from 2 or 3)
Transfer to stage 2 (from 1 or 3)
Transfer to stage 3 (from 1 or 2)
Impairment losses on loans
Write-offs
Foreign exchange differences and other movements

3,233
(1,578}
(331)
26,808
(5)
232

(2,928}
3,610
(3,025)
25,187
(227}
212

(305}
(2,032)
3,356
32,266
(10,111}
1,038

2,059
(153}
125

Balance 31.12.2020

59,351

43,063

122,097

10,728

Balance 01.01. 2020

1,646

137

1,715

Transfer to stage 1 (from 2 or 3)
Transfer to stage 2 (from 1 or 3)
Transfer to stage 3 (from 1 or 2)
Impairment losses on loans (Note 31)
Write-offs
Foreign exchange differences and other movements

179
(117)
(3)
(429)

(40}
143

(139)
(26)

Balance 31.12.2020

1,277

Total loans and advances to customers

Off balance sheet exposures

(1)

4

491

(955)
3

1
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33.1

Credit risk (continued)

Movement in risk provisions by type of product during 2019.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Balance 01.01.2019

1,702

202

1,295

Transfer to stage 1 (from 2 or 3)
Transfer to stage 2 (from 1 or 3)
Transfer to stage 3 (from 1 or 2)
Impairment losses on loans
Write-offs
Foreign exchange differences and other movements

205
(98)
(68)
(684)
(120)

(52)
265
(63)
1,544
(208)

(153)
(167)
131
2,670
(150)

937

1,688

3,626

Balance 01.01.2019

5,978

574

18,385

Transfer to stage 1 (from 2 or 3)
Transfer to stage 2 (from 1 or 3)
Transfer to stage 3 (from 1 or 2)
Impairment losses on loans
Write-offs
Foreign exchange differences and other movements

156
(193)
(109)
167
(717)
7

(95)
693
(177)
998
(633)
5

(61)
(500)
286
7,108
(16,025)
102

Balance 31.12.2019

5,289

1,365

9,295

POCI

Credit cards and Overdrafts

Balance 31.12.2019
Consumer Loan
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33.1

Credit risk (continued)

Movement in risk provisions by type of product during 2019.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

POCI

392

8,313

25,326

4,907

1,752
(60)
(2)
301
(1,283)
59

(1,752}
356
(45}
(604}
(1,097)
360

(296}
47
(3,007}
(2,553}
1,967

371
(730}
265

1,159

5,531

21,484

4,813

Balance 01.01.2019

263

3,236

8,712

489

Transfer to stage 1 (from 2 or 3)
Transfer to stage 2 (from 1 or 3)
Transfer to stage 3 (from 1 or 2)
Impairment losses on loans
Write-offs
Foreign exchange differences and other movements

423
(45}

(158}
(398}

64
(269)
28

(265}
443
(SO}
740
(1,013}
154

585
(360)
565

82

464

3,245

8,966

598

Equity
Balance 01.01.2019
Transfer to stage 1 (from 2 or 3)
Transfer to stage 2 (from 1 or 3}
Transfer to stage 3 (from 1 or 2)
Impairment losses on loans
Write-offs
Foreign exchange differences and other movements

Balance 31.12.2019
Mortgage

Balance 31.12.2019
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

33.1

Credit risk (continued)

Movement in risk provisions by type of product during 2019.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

POCI (*)

8,068

851

18,495

922

277
(1,115)
(38)
3,508
(1,100)
18

(256)
1,283
(21)
2,647
(296)
5

(21)
(168)
59
10,129
(9,603)
42

9,618

4,213

18,933

9,918

6,649

34,640

Transfer to stage 1 (from 2 or 3)
Transfer to stage 2 (from 1 or 3)
Transfer to stage 3 (from 1 or 2)
Impairment losses on loans
Write-offs
Foreign exchange differences and other movements

5,127
(2,081)

(34)
15
1,4789
(996)
449

(1,542)
2,057

143

(5,093)
2,081
(15)
4,241
(3,713)
33

Balance 31.12.2019

13,525

4,183

35,552

515

Micro and SME
Balance 01.01.2019
Transfer to stage 1 (from 2 or 3)
Transfer to stage 2 (from 1 or 3)
Transfer to stage 3 (from 1 or 2)
Impairment losses on loans
Write-offs
Foreign exchange differences and other movements

Balance 31.12.2019

1,610

2,532

Corporate
Balance 01.01.2019

418

(*)Recoveries from POCI loans reimbursed in the period ending December 31, 2019 from loans acquired upon Subsidiary
acquisition.
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33.1

Credit risk (continued)

Movement in risk provisions by type of product during 2019.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

POCI

Balance 01.01.2019

26,321

19,825

106,853

7,653

Transfer to stage 1 {from 2 or 3)
Transfer to stage 2 (from 1 or 3)
Transfer to stage 3 {from 1 or 2)
Impairment losses on loans
Write-offs
Foreign exchange differences and other movements

7,940
(3,592)
{216)
3,774
{3,490)
255

(7,513)
5,121
{371)
9,566
{6,959}
559

(427)
{1,529}
587
18,963
{29,688)
3,125

681
66
297

Balance 31.12.2019

30,992

20,255

97,886

8,697

1,786

54

2,779

617
220
(20)

36
{15}
31
{1)
32

668
(205)
{11)

Total loans and advances to customers

Off balance sheet exposures
Balance 01.01.2019
Balance at acquisition date of Bank Leumi
Transfer to stage 1 {from 2 or 3)
Transfer to stage 2 {from 1 or 3)
Transfer to stage 3 {from 1 or 2)
Impairment losses on loans
Write-offs
Foreign exchange differences and other movements

(3)

(954)

47

1,646

Balance 31.12.2019

33.2.

4

{1,567)

137

1,715

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of incurring on-balance and off-balance sheet losses due to adverse market movements in prices {such as,
for example, the share prices, the interest rates and the foreign-exchange rates).
The Bank has clearly defined policies and procedures in order to ensure active market risk management. The Bank has the
appropriate systems in order to measure and assess market risk while keeping up with current regulatory and banking
environment challenges.
The Bank applied generally accepted techniques for the measurement of market risk, such as Sensitivity Indicators and GAP
analysis and VaR (Value-at-Risk) measures.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

33.2.

Market risk (continued}

Sensitivity calculation parameters

Interest Rate Sensitivity: calculation is based on JR Gap report equivalent duration measures and translated in potential impact
on capital. Based on the last year interest rate fluctuation and Treasury Division forecasts analysis the interest rate can vary
between 100 ± bps.
FX Rates Sensitivity: calculations based on open foreign currency positions.
33.3.

Currency risk

The Bank is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the main foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and
cash flows. The Bank sets limits on the level of exposure by currency and for both overnight and intra-day positions, which are
monitored daily.
Regarding the foreign exchange rate risk, Bank has established a limit system monitored on a daily basis by the Risk
Management Division. The limit scheme includes:
an intraday net aggregate position limit;
an intraday position limit for each authorized currency;
an overnight net aggregate position limit;
an overnight position limit for each authorized currency;
a daily loss notification & stop loss limit;
a monthly loss notification & stop loss limit.
In order to quantify the foreign exchange risk, the Bank uses a VaR methodology. The Value-at-Risk (VaR) measure represents
an estimation of the potentia l maximum loss for a pre-specified time horizon with a given statistical confidence level. These
two VaR parameters are chosen as 10 days - time horizon and 99% - confidence level.
According to VaR (Va lue-at-Risk) risk indicator, as of December 2020, the maximum loss for a time horizon of 10 days due to
exchange rate volatility is of RON 0.352 million under normal conditions and RON 0.784 million under stress conditions
(December 2019: RON 0.203 million under normal conditions and RON 0.342 million under stress conditions.
Sensitivity analysis
Effect on
profit or loss

Effect on
profit or loss

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

EUR
USO
CHF
0TH

-1,947 / +1,947
-10,792 / +10,792
+36,066 / -36,066
+867 / -867

+3, 701 / -3, 701
-16,973 / +16,973
+39,126 / -39,126
-1,337 / +l,337

TOTAL Foreign exchange(± 20%)

+24,194 / -24,194

+24,516/-24,516

At 31 December 2020, if RON had weakened by 20% against other relevant currencies (all other variables held constant) net
profit for the year would have been RON 24,194 thousand higher (31 December 2019: RON 24,516 thousand higher). The
majority of assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are in EUR.
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33.3.

Currency risk (continued)

The ta ble below summarises the Bank's exposure to foreign currency exchange rat e risk at reporting dates. Included in t he t able are the Bank's assets and liabilit ies at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.

31 December 2020

RON

EUR

USD

CHF

Other

Total
811,868
72
1
586,926
1,826,225
3,712,201
96,672

Cash and balances w ith Central Bank
Derivative financia l assets
Ot her fina ncial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Due from ot her banks
Investment s in debt securities
Loans and advances t o customers
Ot her financial assets

435,271
72

351,287

11,288

8,139

5,883

19,534
1,258,237
2,092,174
18,725

272,126
542,225
1,407,876
77,628

277,625
25,763
7,475
210

7,472

1
10,169

204,672
199

4

Total assets

3,824,013

2,651,142

322,361

220,482

16,057

4,299
370,758

7,274
32,722

7
11,689

1,264

186

29

11,665
637,283
5,477,529
194,898
44,204

7,034,055

31 December 2020
Derivative financial liabilities
Due t o other banks
Customer accou nts
Subordinated debts
Other financial liabilities

11,665
228,376
2,999,804
36,619

397,327
2,062,556
194,898
6,106

Total liabilities

3,276,464

2,660,887

376,321

40,182

11,725

6,365,579

Net on-balance sheet position

547,549

(9,745)

(53,960}

180,300

4,332

668,476

Net off-ba lance sheet position

115,945

(15,609)

82,501

(192,697}

9,725

(135)

Net curre ncy position

663,494

(25,354)

28,541

(12,397)

14,057

668,341
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33.3.

Currency risk (continued)

31 December 2019

RON

EUR

USD

CHF

Other

Total

Cash and balances with Central Bank
Derivative financial assets
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Due from other banks
Investments in debt securities
Loans and advances to customers
Repurchase receivables
Other financial assets

467,722
8

319,638

10,527

9,265

4,853

76,729
1,197,524
2,182,595
50,823
22,998

167,674
539,540
1,643,123

183,330
29,424
38,832

4,813

1
5,278

230,467

5

82,308

(13)

212

12

812,005
8
1
437,824
1,766,488
4,095,022
50,823
105,517

Total assets

3,998,398

2,752,283

262,100

244,757

10,149

7,267,688

RON

EUR

USD

CHF

Other

Total

Derivative financial liabilities
Due to other banks
Customer accounts
Subordinated debts
Other financial liabilities

2,829
147,107
3,206,559

2,947
342,745

(21)
7,197
41,633

68
15,969

38,868

13
426,837
2,106,792
191,326
8,812

1,275

317

19

2,821
584,156
5,713,698
191,326
49,291

Total liabilities

3,395,363

2,733,780

346,967

49,126

16,056

6,541,292

Net on-balance sheet position

603,035

18,503

(84,867)

195,631

(5,907)

726,396

Net off-balance sheet position

117,271

(17,999)

83,566

(192,697)

9,725

(134)

Net currency position

720,307

504

(1,301)

2,934

3,818

726,262

31 December 2019
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

33.4.

Interest rate risk in banking book

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Bank is exposed to the effects of market fluctuations of the main interest rates on both its
fair value and cash flow. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The Bank sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily.
The Bank quantifies and monitors the interest rate risk by calculating a set of risk measures such as: PV0l for bonds portfolio
classified as FVOCI, PVl00, PVl00 for on and off-Balance Sheet, Earning at Risk (EaR) and Duration Gap (DGap) for Banking book
portfolio.
PV0l is a sensitivity coefficient that quantifies the market value variation of a financial instrument due to a small change of
interest rates by one basis point. The Bank uses it to measure the interest rate risk of the bond portfolio. In order to control this
risk, the bank has established a boundary level for the portfolio's PV0l that is monitored within the limit system.
In addition to the risk measures, the Risk Management Division also monitors a set of limits imposed internally to its bond
portfolio. These limits refer to the maximum open position by currency, the maximum maturity, and sensitivity (portfolio's
modified duration) and also daily and monthly stop loss notifications.
PVl00 is a sensitivity coefficient that measures the impact of a parallel shift of the yield curves by 100 bps on the present value
ofthe bank's assets and liabilities. As of 31st of December 2020, PVl00 was RON 24.0 million at Bank's, within the internal limit
of EUR 10 million in equivalent RON (49% internal limit usage).
EaR (Earning at Risk) shows the effect of interest rate changes on net interest income (over one year) both on Trading and
Banking book. As of 31st of December 2020, EaR was RON 4.2 million at Bank level, representing 19% internal limit usage (with
nominal value of EUR 4.5 million in equivalent RON).
DGap (Duration GAP)- measures the potential change of the economic value of the bank due to interest rates fluctuations (200bps).
As of 31st of December 2020, the potential loss was of RON 39.7 million, representing 4.7% of Own Funds.
Sensitivity analysis
Effect on
profit or loss

Effect on
profit or loss

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

RON
EUR
USD
CHF

+21,653 / -21,653
+12,335 / -12,335
+76/ -76
+2,290 / -2,290

+15,749 /-15,749
+11,425 / -11,425
+380 / -380
+2,220 / -2,220

TOTAL Interest rate(± 100 b.p.)

+36,354 / -36,354

+29,774 / -29,774

Effect on Other
comprehensive income

Effect on Other
comprehensive income

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

+29,485 / -29,485

+26,689/-26,689

Effect on FVTOCI

At 31 December 2020, if market interest rates had been 100 basis points higher and with all other variables held constant, the
Bank's net profit for the year would have been RON 36,354 thousand higher (31 December 2019: RON 29,774 thousand higher).
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33.4.

Interest rate risk in banking book (continued)

The tables below summarise the Bank's exposure to interest rate risks. Included in t he tables below are the Bank's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of
contractual repricing or maturity dates.

At 31 December 2020

Upto

1 month to

1 month

3 months

3 months
to 1 year

1 year to
_2_Years

Overs
years

Non-interest
Bearing(*)

Total

Assets

Cash and balances with Central Bank
Due from other banks
Loans and advances to customers
Derivative financial assets
Other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Investment in debt securities
Repurchase receivables
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

617,240
566,354
891,543

10,001
2,339,061

332,658

319,331

287,585

120,643

5,294

1,188,761

194,628
10,571
23,002

811,868
586,926
3,712,201

72

72

1
30,548

1
1,826,225

96,762

96,762

335,584

7,034,055

603
11,025
11,665
122
44,204

637,283
5,477,529
11,665
194,898
44,204

2,075,137

2,668,393

620,243

1,309,404

5,294

Due to other banks
Deposits due to customers
Derivative financial liabilities
Subordinated debts
Other financial liabilities

347,780
3,329,412

773,774

288,900
1,313,707

43,782

S,829

Total financial liabilities

3,677,192

773,774

1,602,607

238,558

5,829

67,619

6,365,579

(1,602,055)

1,894,619

(982,364)

1,070846

(535)

287,965

668,476

liabilities

Total interest rate gap

194,776
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33.4.

Interest rate risk (continued)

At 31 December 2019

Upto
1 month

1 month t o
3 months

3 months
to 1 year

1 year to
2_years

Overs

_'{ea~

Non-interest
Bearing(* )

Total

Assets

Cash and balances with Central Ba nk
Due from other banks
Loans and advances to customers
Derivative financial asset s
Other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Investment secu rities(**)
Repurchase receivables
Ot her financia l assets
Total financial assets
Liabilities
Due to other ba nks
Deposits due t o customers
Derivative fina ncial liabilit ies
Subord inated debts
Other f inancial liabilit ies
Total financial liabilities
Total interest rate gap

621,008
422,097
963,145

2,539,007

400,374

170,164

45,178
50,823

520,232

1,178,065

9,599

747

190,997
15,727
12,733
8

812,005
437,824
4,095,022
8

1
23,013
104,770

1
1,766,488
50,823
105,517

2,006,997

2,635,008

920,606

1,348,229

9,599

347,249

7,267,688

572,166
3,015,128

1,108,686

1,486,819

85,949

11,978

11,990
5,138
2,821
49,291

584,156
5,713,698
2,821
191,326
49,291

191,326

3,587,294

1,300,012

1,486,819

85,949

11,978

69,240

6,541,292

(1,580,29 7)

1,334,996

(566,213)

1,262,280

(2,37~

278,009

726,396

(*) The value includes exposures to clients in insolvency or bankruptcyfor which, according to law, nominal interest is not charged any longer.
(**) Bond's exposure includes accrued int erest.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

33.S.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the current or future risk of negative impact on profits and capital, determined by the Banks inability to meet
its obligations when they become due. The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfil
commitments to lend.
The Bank is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from overnight deposits, current accounts, maturing deposits,
loan draw-downs and guarantees. The Bank does not maintain cash resources to meet all of these needs, as experience shows
that a minimum level of reinvestment of maturing funds can be predicted with a sufficient level of certainty.
The Bank sets limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to meet such calls and on the minimum level of
inter-bank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover withdrawals at unexpected leve ls of demand.
The liquidity risk is also monitored as per Central Bank's regulatory fra mework and the reported liquidity indicators were in
compliance with NBR requirements as of 31 December 2020 as follows:
Liquidity indicator• 2.1 for the Bank, wh ile the limit set up by the Central Bank is of 1;
LCR lM - 2.93 for the Bank, well above the limit of 1 set up by the Central Bank;
NSFR lY-1.69 for the Bank, compared with limit of 1;
Quick liquidity- 52.07% for the Bank, above the internal limit of 27%;
Net interbank liabilities- RON -321.9 million for the Bank and RON, compared with internal limit of <485m.
The Bank's liquidity management process, as carried out w ithin the Bank and monitored by a team from Treasury and Financial
Markets Division and Risk Management Department includes:
Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows in various currencies and in total to ensure that
requirements can be met. These include replenishment of funds as they mature or are borrowed by customers. The
Bank maintains an active presence in global money markets to enable this to happen;
Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen
interruption to cash flow;
Monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements;
Performing periodic stress tests on liquidity;
Establishing funding plans to be applied in case of a liquidity crisis and testing them periodically;
Monitoring the cost of funds of the bank and the factors that lead to it decreasing/increasing; and
Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.
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33.5.

Liquidity risk (continued)

a)

Non derivative cash flows

The table below presents, the undiscounted cash flows payable by the Bank under non-derivative financial liabilities on t heir remaining contractua l maturit ies.
At 31 December 2020
Upto
1 month

1- 3 months

3 months
to 1 year

Financial Liabilities
Due to other banks
Customer Accounts
Subordinated debts
Other financial liabi lities
Credit commitments
Letters of guarantee and letters of credit

347,819
3,330,415
1,027
20,421
5,493
103,756

793,334
1,782
13,510
17,890
6,497

291,441
988,892
8,306
10,273
60,412
5,411

Total financial liabilities

3,808,931

833,013

Total financial assets

1,232,293

Net position
Cumulated liquidity (gap)/surplus

1- 5 years

Over 5
years

Total
639,260
5,522,960
222,352
44,204
126,841
115,664

395,969
211,237

14,350

43,031

15

1,364,735

650,237

14,365

6,671,281

490,190

1,039,085

2,687,373

2,095,517

7,544,458

{2,576,638)

(342,823)

{325,650)

2,037,136

2,081,152

873,177

(2,588,546)

(2,919,461)

(3,245,111)

{1,2017,975)

873,177
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33.S.

Liquidity risk (continued)

a)

Non derivative cash flows (continued)

At 31 December 2019

Upto
lmonth

1-3months

3 months
to lyear

Due to other banks
Customer Accounts
Subordinated debts
Other financial liabilities
Credit commitments
Letters of guarantee and letters of cred it

299,147
3,133,349
1,102
10,569
85,582
89,499

1,009,213
1,835
25,022
29,704
4,401

1,510,275
8,411
13,700
81,247
59,909

Total financial liabilities

3,619,248

1,070,175

Total financial assets

1,493,490

Net position
Cumulated liquidity (gap)/ surplus

1-Syears

Overs
years

Total

Financial Liabilities
285,068
87,970
219,005

12,399

33,828
15,739

12,207
92

584,215
5,753,206
230,353
49,291
242,568
169,640

1,673,542

641,610

24,698

7,029,273

475,907

1,824,127

2,716,723

1,614,334

8,124,581

(2,125,758)

(594,268)

150,585

2,075,113

1,589,636

1,095,308

(2,125,758)

(2,720,026)

(2,569,441)

(494,328)

1,095,308

The Bank has a short net position less than 3 months due to the short maturity of liabilities to customers. The Bank does not maintain cash resources to meet all ofthese needs as experience
shows that a minimum level of reinvestment of maturing funds can be predicted with a high level of certainty; based on the history of prolongation of clients' deposits the Bank considers
these sources of funding to be reasonable stable. Furthermore, the Bank has sufficient transactional limits in place with other banks that allow it to properly manage the short term gap.
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33.5.

Liquidity risk (continued)

b)

Derivative cash flows

The table below analyses, at balance sheet date, the derivative financial liability instruments that w ill be settled on a gross
basis (i.e. currency forward and swaps) based on their remaining period according to the contract.
The total pay leg (outflow) and receive leg (inflow) and for each type of derivative and for each mat urity group are disclosed
at their contractual undiscounted amounts.
Derivatives held for trading
Foreign exchange derivatives and interest rate swaps
Upto
1 month

31 December 2020
Gross settled swaps and forwards:
Outflow
Inflow

3-6
months

{49,089)

>6
months

{237,664)

39,099

1- 3
months

Upto
1 month

31 December 2019
Gross sett led swaps and forwards:
Outflow
Inflow

1-3
months

3- 6
months

{109,848)
109,460

Translation from t he original Romanian version.

101

Total

(286,753)
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>6
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{109,848)
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33.6.

Financial instruments by measurement category

At 31 December 2020
Cash and balances with Central Bank
Due from other banks
Investments securities
Loans and advances to customers
Derivative financial assets
Financial assets FVTPL
Repurchase receivables
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Due to other banks
Customer Accounts
Derivative financial liabilities
Financial liabilities FVTPL
Subordinated debts
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

FVTPL (mandatory)

FVTPL (designated)

Debt instruments at
FVOCI

1,302,081

Equity instruments

Amortized

at FVOCI

Cost

Total

811,868
586,926
522,791
3,712,201

811,868
586,926
1,826,225
3,712,201

96,762

72
1
96,762

5,730,548

7,034,055

637,283
5,477,529

637,283
5,477,529
11,665

194,898
44,204

194,89

6,353,914

6,365,579

1,353

72

1
73

1,302,081

1,353

11,66S

11,665
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33.6.

Financial instruments by measurement category (continued)

Investments in debt securities

31 December 2020

Romanian Government Bonds
- in RON
- in EUR
- in USD

Debt securities
mandatorily
measured at FVTPL

Debt securities
designated as at
FVTPL at initial
recognition

Debt securities at

FVOCI

Equity investments
FVOCI

Debt securities at

AC

Tot al

1,302,081

522,835

1,824,916

906,672
369,646
25,763

350,406
172,429

1,257,078
542,075
25,763

Equity instruments

1,353

1,353

- in RON
- in EU R

1,199
154

1,199
154

Total investments in debt securities at 31
December 2019 (fair value or gross carrying
value)

1,302,081

1,353

522,835

1,826,269

Credit loss allowance

(44)

(44)

- in RON
- in EUR

(41)
(3)

(41)
(3)

522,791

1,826,225

Total investments in debt securities at 31
December 2019 (carrying value)

1,302,081
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33.6.

Financial instruments by measurement category (continued)

At 31 December 2019

Cash and balances with Central Bank
Due from other banks
Investments securities
Loans and advances to customers
Derivative financial assets
Financial assets FVTPL
Repurchase receivables
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Due to other banks
Customer Accounts
Derivative financial liabilities
Financial liabilities FVTPL
Subordinated debts
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

FVTPL (mandatory)

FVTPL (designated)

Debt instruments at
FVOCI

1,243,887

Equity instruments
at FVOCI

1,367

Amortized
Cost

812,005
437,824
521,234
4,095,022

105,517

812,005
437,824
1,766,488
4,095,022
8
1
50,823
105,517

5,971,602

7,267,688

584,156
5,713,698

584,156
5,713,698
2,821

191,326
49,291

191,326
49,291

6,538,471

6,541,292

8
1
50,823

9

1,294,710

1,367

2,821

2,821
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33.6.

Financial instruments by measurement category (continued)

Investments in debt securities

31 December 2019

Debt securities
mandatorily
measured at FVTPL

Debt securities
designated as at
FVTPL at initial
recognition

Romanian Government Bonds
-in RON
- in EUR
-in USO

Debt securities at
FVOCI

Equity investments
FVOCI

Debt securities at

AC

Total

_1,243,!187

521, 277

1,765,164

845,549
368,915
29,423

350,786
170,491

1,196,335
539,406
29,423

Equity instruments

1,367

1,367

- in RON
- in EUR

1,215
152

1,215
152

Total investments in debt securities at 31
December 2019 (fair value or gross carrying
value)

521,277

1,766,531

Credit loss allowance

(43)

li ~l

- in RON
- in EUR

(26)
(17)

(26)
(17)

521,234

1,766,488

1,243,887

Total investments in debt securities at 31
December 2019 (carrying value)

1,243,887
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33.6.

Financial instruments by measurement category (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Gold Accounts (E-Gold)

1

1

Total other financial assets/liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

1

1

33.7.

Capital adequacy

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital of the Bank are on a regular basis monitored by the Bank and are filed, on
a monthly basis, with the supervisory authorities namely the NBR.
The supervisory authority requires each bank to hold a minimum level of the regulatory capital according to the sum of risk
which the institution undertakes.
The Bank's main objectives which determine the use of the regulatory capital are:
The preservation of the Bank's ability to continue unhindered its operations, thus to continue to provide returns and
benefits to its shareholders;
To retain a vigorous and stable capital base in order to be able to support the Bank's business strategy.
In order for the regulatory capital to be determined, own share capital must undergo some regulatory adjustments, such as
the deduction of intangible assets, the deduction of the reserve related to financial assets measured through other
comprehensive income, the deduction of the proposed distribution of dividend etc.
The prudential indicators as at 31 December 2020, were presented as included in the regulatory reporting to the National Bank
of Romania.
31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Tier I capital

749,273

790,623

Share capital

1,246,880
(94)
114,866
(542,295)
(70,766)
50,289
(49,607)

1,246,647

97,121

133,622

846,394

924,245

Risk - weighted assets:
On - balance sheet
Off - balance sheet

3,590,675
59,836

4,351,222
93,608

Total risk - weighted assets

3,650,511

4,444,830

23.19%

20.79%

Reserves (adj. for fiscal impact assoc. to reserves utilization)
Retained earnings
Current profit/(loss)
IFRS 9 impact (Transitional measures)
Deductions
Tier II Capital
Total capital

Total Capital Adequacy ratio (Basel II)
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33. 7.

Capital adequacy (continued)

Starting January 2014, the Bank calculates the capital adequacy according to Regulation (EU) no. 575/2013 of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and
according to the Regulation 5/20.12.2013 of the National Bank of Romania on prudential requirements for credit institutions.
The Bank has adopted a conservative approach in respect with the impact of IFRS 9 by applying for transitional arrangements,
phasing the impact over 5 years.
For the period ended 31 December 2020, the Bank had to maintain on an individual basis a total capital adequacy ratio of
17.52%, a Tier 1 capital ratio of 14.27% and a Common Tier 1 capital ratio of 11.82%, as these ratios are defined in Regulation
(EU) no 575/2013.
The minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 11.82% includes:
(i)

the minimum Common Equity Tier 1 ratio required to be maintained to all times in accordance with Article
92(1)(a) of EU Reg. no. 575/2013;

(ii)

(ii) the Common Equity Tier 1 ratio required to be held in excess in accordance with Article 16(2)(a) of EU Reg.
no. 1024/2013;

(iii)

the capital conservation buffer required under Article 129 Dir. 2013/36/EU as implemented in the national law
of Romania; and

(iv)

the systemic risk buffer required under Article 131 Dir. 2013/36/EU as implemented in the national law of
Romania.

33.8 Taxation risk
The Romanian taxation system has just undergone a process of consolidation and harmonisation with European Union
legislation. However, there are still different interpretations of the fiscal legislation. In various circumstances, the tax
authorities may have different approaches to certain issues, and assess additional tax liabilities, together with late payment
interest and penalties. In Romania, tax periods remain open for 7 years. The Bank's management considers that the tax
liabilities included in these financial statements are fairly stated, and they are not aware of any circumstances which may give
rise to a potential material liability in this respect.
Starting August 2017 Piraeus Bank Romania SA was subject to a tax audit performed by the Romanian Tax Authority that was
closed in December 2018. The scope of the tax audit covered the corporate income tax and the transfer pricing file for the
period 01.01.2011- 31.12.2016. The fiscal audit ended with a significant additional tax liability for the Bank. The main impact
was related to derecognition of the fiscal loss carried forward from ATE Bank Romania, in the context of the spin-off transaction
which was performed in 2013. Following a very careful assessment of the practical chances of winning, the Bank has decided
to challenge the outcome of the tax audit. Subsequently, in line with the provisions of IAS 12, the Bank recognized an uncertain
tax asset of RON 41,7million.
Transfer pricing

Romanian tax legislation includes the arm's length principle according to which transactions between related parties should
be carried out at market value. Local taxpayers engaged in related party transactions have to prepare their transfer pricing
documentation file. Failure to present the transfer pricing documentation file, or presenting an incomplete file, may lead to
non-compliance penalties; additionally, notwithstanding the contents of the transfer pricing documentation, the tax
authorities may interpret the facts and transactions differently from management and impose additional tax liabilities resulting
from transfer price adjustments.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Credit related commitments

The Bank grants loans that were not fully drawn by the clients. The validity period of these commitments does not exceed the
contractual maturity.
The Bank has commitments for loan granting. These commitments take the form of approved loans and credit line facilities.
The amounts reflected in the commitments for loan granting are based on the assumption that all the amounts may be
withdrawn without restrictions.
The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required.
Guarantees and standby letters of credit, which represent irrevocable assurances that the Bank will make payments in the
event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties, carry the same credit risk as loans.
Documentary and commercial letters of credit, which are written undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a customer authorizing
a third party to draw drafts on the Bank up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and cond itions, are collateralized by
the underlying shipments of goods to which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct borrowing.
Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorizations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees
or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in an
amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments
since most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Bank
monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of
credit risk than shorter-term commitments.
Credit related commitments
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

Unused credit facilities, out of which:
Committed cred it facilities
Uncommitted credit facilities
Financial guarantees
Letters of credit
Less Provisions
Less cash collateral

773,580
126,841
646,739
86,943
461
(2,289)
(1,745)

827,668
167,994
659,673
60,134
160
(1,713)
(17,763)

Net credit related commitments

858,950

868,485

Movement in provisions for credit related commitments
31 December
2020
Opening provision

Provision at acquisition date of Bank Leumi
New provisions charged in PL
Unused amounts reversed
Closing provision
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31 December
2019

1,713

2,397

1,647
(1,072)

420
1,669
(2,773)

2,289

1,713
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Performance guarantees

The performance guarantees breakdown as of 31 December 2020, respectively 31 December 2019 is as follows:
31 December
2020

31 December
2019

Letter of Guarantees -Executions
Letter of Guarantees - Auctions
Letter of Guarantees -Other
Letter of Guarantees - Comfort Letter
Less Provisions
Less cash collateral

24,791
3, 104
365

21,530
925
87,465

(320)
{1.362)

{1,785)
{8,207)

Net performance guarantees

26,578

99,929

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

1,785

2,222

482

901
408

{1,950)

{1,746)

320

1,785

Movement in provisions for performance guarantees

Opening provision

Provision at acquisition date of Bank Leumi
New provisions charged in PL
Unused amounts reversed
Closing provision
Assets pledged/restricted

The securities pledged represent RON - (31 Decem ber 2019: RON 50,823 thousand) repo transactions presented in Note 10
and RON 25,168 thousand {31 December 2019: RON 22,853 thousand)- guarantees for the Bank's operations through Clearing
House and Transfond.
The placements in amount of RON 72,004 thousand {31 December 2019: RON 67,489 thousand) represent collateral deposits
for swap transactions and for cards activity.
Commitments rent contracts not measured under IFRS 16

In the committed rent contracts for ATM and branches not measured under IFRS 16 pursuant to the practical expedients
applied by the Bank, and where the Bank is the lessee, the future minimum lease payments under the rent contracts are as
follows:
31 December
2020

31 December 2019

No later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years

626
19

606
18

Total

645

624

Translation from the original Romanian version.
109

FIRSTBANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
(all amounts in "RON thousand", unless otherwise stated)
35

FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
Analysis by fair value hierarchy of financial instruments carried at fair value
Level 1: includes instruments quoted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Quoted prices must be readily and
regularly available from an exchange or active index/market location and prices must represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm's length basis.
Level 2: includes instruments whose fair value is determined using inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. Derived from prices); and
Level 3: includes instruments whose fair value is determined using inputs that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs).

Analysis by fair value hierarchy of financial instruments carried at fair value
31 December 2020
Levell

Level2

Treasury bills and bonds
Derivative financial assets
Other financia l assets at fair value through profit or loss
Equity investments FVTOCI

1,302,081
72
1

Total assets

1,302,154

Level3

Total

1,353

1,302,081
72
1
1,353

1,353

1,303,507

Derivative financial liabilities

11,665

11,665

Total liabilities

11,665

11,665

31 December 2019
Level 1

Level2

Treasury bills and bonds
Repurchase receivables
Derivative financial assets
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Equity investments FVTOCI

1,243,887
50,823
8
1

Total assets

1,294,719

Level3

Total

1,367

1,243,887
50,823
8
1
1,367

1,367

1,296,086

Derivative financia l liabilities

2,821

2,821

Total liabilities

2,821

2,821
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FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments not carried at fair value

The following table summarizes the fair values and the carrying amounts of those financial assets and liabilities not presented
on the Bank's balance sheet at their fair value.
31 December 2020
Level 1

Cash and balances with Central Bank
Investment Securities
Due from other banks
Loans and advances to customers
Other financial assets

811,858

Total assets

811,858

Level 2

Level 3

Total

3,935,190
96,762

811,858
522,791
586,926
3,935,190
96,762

4,031,952

5,953,537

5,477,529
194,898

0
637,283
5,477,529
194,898

5,672,427

6,309,710

522,791
586,926

1,109,717

Due to other banks
Customer Accounts
Subordinated debts

637,283

Total liabilities

637,283

31 December 2019
Level 1

Cash and balances with Central Bank
Investment Securities
Due from other banks
Loans and advances to customers
Other financial assets

812,005

Total assets

812,005

Level2

Level 3

Total

4,256,535
105,517

812,005
521,234
437,824
4,256,535
105,517

4,362,052

6,133,115

5,713,698
191,326

584,156
5,713,698
191,326

5,905,024

6,489,180

521,234
437,824

959,058

Due to other banks
Customer Accounts
Subordinated debts

584,156

Total liabilities

584,156
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a.

FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Due from other banks

Due from other banks includes inter-bank placements and items in the course of collection.
The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest bearing deposits is based on discounted cash flows using prevai ling money-market interest rates for debts with similar
credit risk and remaining maturity.
b.

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances are net of provisions for impairment. The estimated fair value of loans and advances represents the
discounted amount of estimated future cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows are discounted at current
market rates to determine fair value.
c.

Deposits and borrowings

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest-bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The estimated fair value affixed interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings without quoted market
price is based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity.
There are no significant differences between the fair value of deposits from customers and their carrying amount, and their
amortized cost is considered to approximate their respective fair va lues, since a significant part of these items have short
maturities (please refer also to Note 33.5 for the maturity structure of deposits from customers} and carry interest rates
reflecting current market conditions.
The subordinated bo rrowing is also priced based on variable interest rates and there are no significant differences between
fair value and carrying value.
d.

Investment securities at FVOCI

Fair value of investment securities is established by using valuation techniques and internally developed models. These include
the use of discounted cash flow analysis after developing a theoretical zero yield curve and applying a spread to quantify
liquidity risk. The theoretical zero yield curve is calcu lated by using market prices from Reuters (bid prices for bonds},
determining by a recursive procedure the yield curve with 9 nodes for RON denominated financial instruments and 4 nodes
for EUR denominated financial instruments that would minimize the difference between results obtained and market prices.
e.

Derivative financial assets and liabilities

As of 31 December 2020 the present value of the derivative financial instruments is computed using Euribor/Libor interest
rates for foreign currencies as published on Reuters. Interest rates for the local currency are determined based on Euribor/Libor
interest rates and on the EUR/RON swap points that are taken from Reuters as mid-market of the arithmetic average of two
of the largest banks in Romania.
The management of the Bank considers the rates published by these two banks as reliable, given their size, importance for the
Romanian banking system and active presence on the market. Using the average of the two banks' quotes alleviates the effect
of possible outliers. The two banks are important counterparties of the Bank.
By using these swap points, the EUR/RON spot exchange rate and the Euribor/Liborfor EUR/RON the implied rate is extracted
and consequently used to calculate swap points for USD/RON, CHF/RON, GBP/RON.
Further these interest rates and CCV/RON spot exchange rates published by NBR are used to determine the forward/swap
points that are considered in the va luation of currency swaps and forwards.
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f.

FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {"FVTPL")

The mark-to-market for the Gold Account product is done at NBR rate {RON/gram) valid for the day and transformed into
ounces. For gold account there is no open position, all client deals are immediately closed with the provider financial
institution.
g.

Equity investments

Investment securities at FVOCI include equity securities at FVOCI with a carrying value of RON 1,353 thousand {31 December
2019: RON 1,367 thousand) which are not publicly traded. Due to the nature of the local financial markets, the current market
value for these investments is not available.
Management could not reliably estimate the fair va lue of the Bank's investment in shares of Biroul de Credit SA, Transfond SA,
Casa de Compensare Bucuresti SA, Fondul de Compensare a lnvestitorilor S.A., SWIFT, Depozitarul Central. The investments
are carried at cost of RON 46 thousand, RON 326 thousand, RON 3 thousand, RON 2 thousand, RON 150 thousand, respectively
RON 398 t housand. The investees have not published recent financial information about their operations, the ir shares are not
quoted and recent trade prices are not publicly accessible.
The management does not intend to dispose the investments in the foreseeable future.
36

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The nature of the related party relationships for those related parties with whom the bank entered into significant transactions
or had significant balances outstanding at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are detailed below.
The re lated parties considered for reporting purposes comprise of:
Shareholder after June 28th 2018: JCF IV Tiger Holdings S.a.r.l
Group entities after 10th of July 2019: Bank Leumi Romania S.A
On 10th of July 2019, the Bank acquired the participation representing 99.9235% from the share capital of Bank Leumi Romania
S.A, date at which control was obtained by the Bank. lntercompany balances, revenues and expenses are eliminated in the
consolidation of the Bank and its Subsidiary.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The Bank's management is defined according to regulatory frame (OUG 99/2006 modified & Regulation no. 5/30.12.2013) and identified as: Members of management body in its supervisory
function (BoD), Members of management body (ExCo), Senior management, Middle management for significant activities and Key function holders.

31 December 2020
Key Management

Group entities

31 December 2019
Parent

Key Management

Assets
Current accounts at banks
Placements with banks
Loans to management
Derivative instruments
Investment securities
Other assets

2,886

4,653

Total assets

2,886

4,653

10,478

17,935

Group entities

Parent

Liabilities

Current accounts and due to othe r banks
Asset management liabilities (principal and interest)
Due to customers
Subordinated debt
Deposits from management
Derivative instruments
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

5,066

10,478

17,935
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
th

On 20th of May 2019 the Bank issued 15,143,478 new shares at a nominal value of RON 5 per share. The shares were acquired and paid in full by JCF IV Tiger Holdings S.a.r.1. On 9 of august
2019, the Bank issued 1,419,210 new shares at a nominal value of RON 5 per share. The shares were acquired and paid in full on 9th of August 2019 by JCF IV Tiger Holdings S.a.r.l.
In May 2019, First Bank SA acquired from JCF IV Tiger Holdings S.a.r.l., through a receivables purchase agreement, certain receivables under the indemnities provided in the SPA concluded
between Piraeus Bank Greece and JCF IV Tiger Holding for the sale of shares in First Bank SA. First Bank SA paid a purchase price of EUR 15,8 million for the indemnity receivables acquired
from JCF IV Tiger Holding. In December 2019, the Bank purchased from its main shareholder, JCF IV Tiger Holdings S.a.r.l an additional indemnity receivable, in amount of EUR 1.06 million
(RON 5.1 million), as substantiated in the independent valuation report issued by PricewaterhouseCoopers Management Consultants SRL issued in December 2019.
31 December 2019

31 December 2020
Key Management
Revenues
Interest on loans
Interest on money market Placements
Gains less losses related to swaps
Other commission income
Other income
Total revenues

Group entities

Parent

Key Management

Group entities

163

70

7
4

3

74

166

Expenses
Interest on deposits from customers
Interest on deposits from banks
Expense with management salaries
Fees and third parties expenses
Commission expense
Other expenses

(50,600)

Total liabilities

(50,685)

{61)

(85)

(213)
(35,834)

{61)
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COVID 19 IMPACT

On 11 March 2020 the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus outbreak a pandemic, and the Romanian
government declared a state of emergency on 16 March 2020. Responding to the potentially serious threat the COVID 19
presents to public health, the Romanian government authorities have taken measures to contain the outbreak, including
introducing restrictions on the cross-borders movement of people, entry restrictions on foreign visitors and the 'lock-down' of
certain industries, pending further developments. In particular, airlines suspended international transport of people to and
from certain countries affected by the COVID 19 outbreaks, schools, universities, restaurants, cinemas, theatres and museums
and sport facilities, retailers excluding food retailers, grocery stores and pharmacies were closed. In addition, major
manufacturers in the automotive industry decided to shut-down their operations in both Romania and other European
countries.
During 2020, the Governing Council of the European Central Bank (ECB) has decided a number of measures to ensure that its
directly supervised banks can continue to fulfil their role in funding the real economy given the economic effects of the Covid19.
As well, the European Banking Authority (EBA) issued several statements to explain a number of interpretative aspects on the
functioning of the prudential framework in relation to the classification of loans in default, the identification of forborne
exposures, and their accounting treatment. These clarifications help ensure consistency and comparability in risk metrics
across the whole EU banking sector, which are crucial to monitor the effects of the current crisis.

Measures taken by Romanian National Bank
The National Bank of Romania (NBR) adopted a package of measures aimed at mitigating the negative effects of the crisis
generated by the coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic on households and Romanian companies, including the following (as at the
date of preparing this report):
•
monetary policy measures:
(1) to cut the monetary policy rate in four steps (as of 23 March, 2 June, 6 August 2020 and 18 January 2021),
by a cumulated 1.25 percentage points, from 2.5% in mid-March to 1.25% on 18 January 2021;
(2) to narrow the symmetrical corridor defined by interest rates on standing facilities around the monetary
policy rate to ±0.5 percentage points from ±1.0 percentage points as of 23 March 2020. Thus, the deposit
facility rate was lowered to 0.75%, while the lending (Lombard) facility rate was lowered to 1.75% from
3.50%. The effect was a reduction of the interest rates on loans to companies and households;
(3) to provide liquidity to credit institutions via repo transactions;
(4) to purchase RON-denominated government securities on the secondary market to ensure the smooth
financing of rea l economy and the public sector and
(5) cut of minimum reserve requirements for foreign exchange liabilities to 5% in two steps, by 2 percentage
points in February 2020 and 1 percentage point in November 2020. At the same time, due to the elevated
uncertainty surrounding economic and financial developments, the NBR Board also suspended the
previously announced ca lendar of monetary policy meetings and held monetary policy meetings whenever
necessary.
•

measures to increase the flexibility of the legislative fram ework so that banks and non-bank financial institutions
could help individuals and companies with outstanding loans. Lenders were allowed to delay payments of the loans
of any individual or company affected by the Covid-19 pandemic, without applying the conditions related to the level
of indebtedness, the loan-to-value limit and the maximum maturity of consumer credit.

•

In March 2020, NBR decided to allow banks to temporarily use the capital buffer previously set up, while also keepi ng
in place the legal requirements for such flexibilities. Adapting capital buffers to the new conditions helps banks
preserve their support role for the real economy. Furthermore, according to the regulatory framework, banks built
and maintained liquidity reserves that may be used to deal with an increased demand for liquidity during times of
crisis. Thus, in line with the actions taken to this end at European level, the NBR allows banks not to comply with the
minimum liquidity ratio, for the purpose of using these reserves to contribute to the smooth functioning of the
banking sector and to help banks ensure sufficient liquidity to firms and households.

Translation from the original Romanian version.

116

FIRSTBANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
(all amounts in "RON thousand", unless otherwise stated)
37

COVID 19 IMPACT (CONTINUED)
•

measures regarding the bank resolution: to postpone the deadline for collecting the annual contributions to the bank
resolution fund for 2020 by 3 months, with the possibility of extension to up to 6 months; to delay the reporting
deadlines of some information on resolution planning, in line with the approach communicated by the European
Banking Authority; to correlate the terms and conditions on the minimum requirements for own funds and eligible
liabilities (MREL) with the decisions adopted by the Supervisory Committee in the meeting of 20 March 2020.

•

operational measures: to ensure the smooth functioning of payment and settlement systems underlying payments
in the domestic currency, so that commercial and financial transactions can be performed under normal conditions;
the NBR committed to provide banks with continuous cash flows for all operations, including liquidity for ATMs, in
case of increased household demand.

The Emergency Governmental Ordinance 37/2020 requiring banks to provide moratorium to all customers impacted by Covid19 was passed on 30 March 2020, while its Application Norms were passed on 6 April 2020; it covers a maximum period of 9
months of payment postponement, but not later than 31 December 2020, upon request from customers.
The moratorium was extended beyond the end of 2020, until March 31st, 2021 (Government Emergency Ordinance no.
227/30.12.2020) and the clients can postpone their reimbursements up to March 31st, 2021 but having a total maximum
period of postponement of 9 months (cumulated w ith the installments postponed during the first moratorium).
Interest accruing during the moratorium for all loans except mortgage loans to private individuals is capitalized and its payment
is spread over the duration of the loan. For private individuals' mortgage loans, the interest deemed during the suspension
period is treated as an individual claim, to be recovered in maximum 5 years after the suspension ends with no interest applied
to it, having 100¾ guarantee from Ministry of Finance, while the principal is spread over the extended duration of the loan.
Accounting wise, the Covid-19 related moratorium did not determine the derecognition of the credit exposures, due to the
fact that the net present value of the loan is not materially impact by this restructuring. Furthermore, considering that interests
will accrue on the payment delayed, no modification loss is generally expected, with the exception of mortgage loans for
individuals due to the different rules related to accrual of interest.
The table below summarizes the impact from implementing the EGO 37/2020, as of 31 December 2020 and contains the total
amounts due and postponed for repayment until 31 December 2020:
Gross Exposure

Total EBA-compliant moratoria

788,333

Households, out of which:
Mortgages
Legal entities, out of which:
SME Loans
Other Loans

206,224
137,929
581,220
455,934
333,161
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no material events since the reporting period that need to be disclosed.

The financial statements we re approved by the Board of Directors 29 April 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

Chief Financial Officer

Translation from the original Romanian version.
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1. Macroeconomic Environment

GDP decrease
3.9%

C/A Deficit
4.8%ofGDP

Budget
Deficit
9.8%ofGDP

Economic Growth:
In 2020, Romania's economy decreased by 3.9% compared to 2019, which resulted in a GDP
value of€215 bn (1.053 bn lei), and in the 4th quarter there was a decrease of 1.5% compared
to the 3rd quarter (seasonally adjusted).
The decrease of GDP in 2020 was due to negative contributions from most branches of the
economy, industry (-2.0%), with a share of 19.7% in GDP structure and whose volume of
activity decreased by 9.3%; wholesale and retail trade; repair of motor vehicles and
motorcycles; transport and storage; hotels and restaurants (-0.9%), with a share of 18.0% in
GDP which volume of activity decreased by 4. 7% .
Reta il sales, the main component of GDP, increased by 2% in 2020. The increase was due to
sales of non-food products (+5.6%) and sales of food, beverages and tobacco (+5.0%). Retail
trade of motor vehicle fuels decreased by 8.0%. In contrast, online sales have increased by
almost 300% compared to 2019.
In contrast, the construction sector has made a positive contribution to the change of GDP
( +0.6%) increase in its volume of activity by 9. 7% compared to the previous year. Thus, the
volume of construction works advanced last year compared to 2019 by 15.9%. The main
increases were in capital repair works (46%), maintenance and current repairs (24.4%) and
new constructions (9.3%).
The Industrial production increased in December compared to the previous month by 2.6%
year-on-year, but throughout 2020 the decrease remained at 9.2% compared to 2019.
Current Account:
Romania ended 2020 with a current account deficit of €10.98 bn, up €500 mn over €10.48 bn
in 2019, after the deficit increased by €1.2 bn in December 2020, compared to November.
The trade balance deficit increased in 2020 to €18.4 bn, up €1.09 bn more than 2019. This
increase in the deficit occurred as exports decreased by 9. 9% and imports decreased by 6.6%
compared to 2019. In 2020, exports amounted to €62.17 bn and imports were €80.56 bn. The
trade balance is partially adjusted by the services surplus of €9.63 bn, up €981 mn. The largest
share was the transport sector, which had a surplus of€4.2 bn, while tourism remains on deficit,
with a minus of €1.37 bn.
Foreign direct investment fell by 60.38% in 2020 to €1.9 bn, compared with €4.8 bn the
previous year. From total foreign direct investment, equity stakes (including estimated net
reinvested profit) amounted to a net value of €3. 9 bn and intragroup lending accounted a
negative net va lue of €2.03 bn.
The number of foreign-owned companies establ ished in Romania decreased by 26.52% in 2020,
to 4,084 units compared to the previous year. The 4,084 new firms had a total subscribed share
capital of €21.5 mn, up 20.5% from 2019.
Romania's total foreign debt increased by €15.66 bn in 2020 to a total amount of €125 bn.
Long-term external debt was €91.27 bn and represented 72.8% of total external debt (up
22.81% from 31 December 2019) and short-term external debt was €34.17 bn, down 3.6%
from December 2019.
Fiscal Policy:
Romania recorded a budget deficit of 9.8% ( 102 bn lei) of GDP in 2020. Total revenues increased
by 0.4% to 322 bn lei compared to last year, and expenses increased by 14.8%, to 424 bn lei.
Tax revenues decreased by 3.3%. VAT revenues decreased by 7%, those from excise duties by
2.4%. Income tax revenues decreased by 9.8%.
For year 2021, the budget is based on economic growth of 4.3% and a budget deficit of 7 .16%,
with revenues increasing by 13%, up to 365 bn lei and expenses of 445 bn lei, up 5%, and
investments will be 61 bn lei, higher with 8 bn lei compared to 2020 .
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Inflation:
The annual inflation rate fell in 2020 to 2.06% from 4 .04% in the previous year. The price of
food increased by 3.2%, services by 2. 7% and non-food goods by 1%.
For 2021 BNR estimates an inflation rate of 2.9%.

Inflation
2.06%

Interest Rates:
In 2020, with the COVID context and its impact upon the Romanian economy, the NBR Board
of Directors reduced three time the monetary policy interest rate to 1.50% from 2.50 %, the
deposit facility interest rate to 1.00%, from 1.50% and the lending facility interest rate
(Lombard) to 2.00% from 3.50%.

3M ROBOR
2.35% (avg.)

ROBOR recorded decreases during 2020 for 3M, 6M and 12M maturities.
The quotations of ROBOR 3M-12M had an average downward trend, which lasted until the end
of the 4th quarter, such of ROBOR 3M (-35.9% to 1.98% at the end of the year, compared to
3.09% in January 2020), ROBOR 6M (-35.1% to 2.10% at the end of the year, vs 3.24% in
January 2020), and ROBOR 12M (-35.6% at 2.13% at the end of the year, compared to 3.31%
in January 2020).
Exchange Rates:
Romanian leu depreciated by 1.89% in 2020 against the Euro in the context of low volatility
(4.8684 at 31.12.2020 compared to 4.7789 at 04.01.2020), while against USD, the local
currency appreciated by 7.60% (3.9660 to 31.12.2020 compared to 4 .2922 on 04.01.2020).
For CHF/RON parity the depreciation was 2.07%, and for GBP/RON, the local currency
appreciated by 3.44%.

RON/EUR
4.8684 (eoy)

2. Banking Market
Loans expanded by 5% y/y to RON 273.Bbn . Local currency denominated loans grew by 8.6%
y/y up to RON 192.6bn, while FCY loans decreased by 2.7% y/y to RON 81.2bn.

Loans
5%y/y

Deposits advanced by 15.4% y/y to RON 404.2bn. Retail deposits increased by 15.4% y/y to
RON 256.7bn, while companies' deposits inched up by 15.3% y/y to RON 147.5bn.

Deposits
15.4% y/y

The capital adequacy indicators further improved at a level that ensures the resilience of the
banking sector to Covid19 pandemic losses after the expiry of public and private memorandum .
The liquidity of the banking sector is adequate, ensuring a stable environment after a
tumultuous year. Loans to deposits ratio just under 66%, a record low, being the result of higher
saving rates, especially in harsh economic conditions.
The rate of the non-performing loans has followed a downward trend to its lowest level, while
the degree of coverage with provisions of non-performing loans improved as a response to
macroeconomic conditions. This has led to a higher cost of risk, affecting the profitability. Lowest
aggregated ROA and ROE since September 2015, but with good prospects to rapidly recover
due to digitalisation and higher operational efficiency.

3.

The Bank and its shareholders
First Bank is a fully-licensed banking entity in Romania, being headquartered in 29-31 Nicolae
Titulescu Street, 1st district, Bucharest. The Bank is registered to Trade Commerce Registry with
J40/1441/1995 while its fiscal registration number is 7025592.
First Bank offers a wide range of products and services for the local and international clients,
including retail, SMEs and corporate banking. In addition, First Bank offers loan portfolio
administration services. Currently, FB is servicing business and retail loans of two major Greek
lenders (i.e . Piraeus Bank and Eurobank).
Shareholders:
The main shareholder of the Bank is JCF IV Tiger Holdings S.a.r.l having the registered office in
5, rue Guillaume Kroll, L-1882 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.

J.C.Flowers & Co.

J.C. Flowers & Co. is a leading private investment firm dedicated to investing globally in the
financial services industry. Founded in 1998, the firm, has invested nearly US$ 16 billion of
Translation from the original Romanian version .
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capital, including co-investment, in 58 portfolio companies in 18 countries, across a range of
industry subsectors that include banking, insurance and reinsurance, securities firms, specialty
finance, and services and asset management. Because J.C. Flowers & Co. is focused solely on
the financial services sector, the extent of J.C. Flowers' relevant expertise and experience is
unique among private equity investors and this gives J.C. Flowers the ability to add significant
value to its investee compan ies, and in particular to First Bank. Among other valuable
investments in financial sector, the portfolio of J.C. Flowers & Co includes: HSH Nordbank,
OneSavings Bank UK, BTG Pactual Brazil, One West Bank US, Sehinsei Bank Japan, NIBC
Netherlands, Hamburg Commercial Bank Germany. With approximately US$ 6 billion of assets
under management, J.C. Flowers & Co. has offices in New York and London.
Minorities

Minority shareholders (individuals and legal entities) hold 0.019487% of Bank's share capital.
Share Ca pita I:
The registered share capital of the Bank consists of 11,960,886,950 nominal shares with a
nominal value of RON 0.1.

4.

Corporate Governance

The corporate governance of First Bank represents an on-going process in which integrity;
responsibility and transparency are fundamental elements in taking correct decisions and
setting goals that contribute to increasing the confidence of shareholders in the company
economic efficiency, sustainable growth and financial stability . At First Bank, all the involved
parties understand the critical importance of effective corporate governance for the safe and
sound functioning of the Bank.
General Shareholders Meeting:
General shareholders meetings are ordinary and extraordinary. The Ordinary General
Shareholders Meeting meets at least once a year, within no more than 130 days from the end
of the financial year, while the Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting meets whenever
necessary.
The Bank makes the best efforts, in compliance with the legal provisions in the field, to
facilitate the shareholders' participation in the General Shareholders Meetings, as well as the
full exercise
of their rights.

Ordinary GSM
31.12 .2020 :
5

Extraordinary
GSM
31.12.2020 :
2

The Ordinary General Meeting decides on the annual financial statements (based on the
reports presented by the Board of Directors and by the financial auditor), the dividend,
election/ revocation of the members of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee and of the
financial auditor, the remuneration of the Board members, discharging the Board members of
their liability with respect to the previous fiscal year activities, the budget for the following
financial
year.
The Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting decides on: change in the legal form of the
Bank, the relocation of the headquarters, change of the object of activity, change the duration
of the Bank, the early dissolution of the Bank, opening of insolvency proceedings of the Bank,
increase or reduce the share capital, merge with another company or spin-off, split or demerge the Bank, establishment, modification or dissolution of subsidiaries, any potential
acquisition, al ienation, lease, exchange or setting guarantees on the assets owned by the
Bank, whose value exceeds half of the carrying amount of the Bank's assets, any amendment
to the Articles of Association.
During 2020, there were 7 General Shareholders Meetings: 5 Ordinary General Shareholders
Meetings (held on: January 6, February 24, March 5, May 6, and June 16, 2020) and 2
Extraordinary General Shareholders Meetings (held on: January 6 and February 24, 2020).
Administration and Management of the Bank
First Bank adopted a unitary management system that is fully consistent with the principles of
good corporate governance, transparency of relevant corporate information, protection of
shareholders and other stakeholders, as well as of an efficient operation.
Translation from the original Romanian version .
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The Board of Directors and the Executive Committee promote high ethical and professional
standards and a strong internal control culture. Their composition, the size and the skills of their
members are well suited for the size and the complexity of the Bank's activity.
The members of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee:
Have a good reputation and the necessary expertise to carry out their responsibilities
in compliance with the rules of prudent and healthy banking practices;
Have the professional experience that implies theoretical and practical knowledge
adequate to the nature, extent and complexity of the banking business and of the
entrusted responsibilities;
Ensure the conditions of the collective competence of the management bodies for an
efficient and highly performing administration of the Bank;
Commit sufficient time to their responsibilities, showing commitment and involvement
in exercising their responsibilities.
The exercise of the responsibilities by members of the Board of Directors and the Executive
Committee is subject of obtaining the approval of the National Bank of Romania.
Board of Directors:
The structure of the Board of Directors ensures a balance between executive and non-executive
members. The Board of Directors meets whenever necessary, but at least quarterly.
Board of Directors

The composition of the Board of Directors as at 31.12.2020 was as follows:
Mrs. Ilinca Rosetti, Chairman (non-executive member)
Mr. Hendricus Charles Hubertus Pardekooper (executive member)
Mr. Andrea Secci, Member (non-executive member)
Mr. Bogdan Ciobotaru, Member (non-executive member)
Mr. Richard Carrion, Member (non-executive member)
Mr. Paul Nabavi, Member (non-executive member)
Mrs. Oana Petrescu (independent non-executive member)
Mr. Richard Wilson (under authorisation)
Note: Mr. Wilson was appointed by General Shareholders Meeting on 16 June 2020 and was
approved by National Bank on 8 February 2021.
Mr. Nicholas Tesseyman (under authorisation)
Note: Mr. Tesseyman was appointed by General Shareholders Meeting on 16 June 2020 and
was approved by National Bank on 1 March 2021.
In order to develop and maintain good practices of business administration, the Board of
Directors set up six committees that assist it in performing its attributions: Audit Committee,
Board Risk Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Board Credit Committee,
Transformation Committee and Executive Committee.
Since the reporting date, the following changes have occurred in the structure of the Board of
Directors:
Mr. Wilson was approved by National Bank as member of the Board of Directors on 8
February 2021
Mr. Tesseyman was approved by National Bank as member of the Board of Directors on
1 March 2021.

Executive Committee

Executive Committee:
The management and the coordination of the current activity of the Bank is delegated by the
Board of Directors to the executive officers. The executive officers of the Bank are elected by
the Board of Directors, among directors or from outside the Board, and act together in the
Executive Committee. The meetings of the Executive Committee are held at least once per
week, or any time the activity of the Bank requires it. There are 18 committees that assist the
Executive Committee in performing its attributions.

The composition of the Executive Committee as at 31 Dec 2020 was as follows:
Translation from the original Romanian version.
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Mr. Hendricus Charles Hubertus Paardekooper, President
Mrs. Madalina Otilia Teodorescu, Vice-President
Mr. Nikolaos Chaniotis, Vice-President
Mr. Cosmin Ciobanu, Vice-President
Mr. Razvan Filcescu, Vice- President
Since the reporting date, the following changes have occurred in the structure of the Executive
Committee: on 28 January 2021 the Board of Directors appointed Mrs. Anca Petcu as Vicepresident, member of the Executive Committee, starting with 24 March 2021, subject to NBR
prior approval.

5. December 2020 Financial Results

Highlights:
2020 represented a challenging year for First Bank as well as for the whole banking market. The
Covid19 pandemic accelerated the digitalization and automation process that had already started
before the pandemic, aiming increases in efficiency and long-term sustainability.
The focus for the period was on the transformation processes aiming to reposition the bank as an
agile and efficient business platform. The merger of Bank Leumi Romania with effective date 30
April 2020 was a further step taken to align with First Bank's strategic objective of achieving
sustainable operational efficiency and growth.

December 2020 Financial Position:
The below analysis of the financial position of the Bank is performed based on the financial
statements prepared according to the International Financial Reporting Standards, for the period
ended December 31, 2020 and the comparative period 2019 for consolidated accounts (First Bank
acquired in July 2019 Bank Leumi and merged at effective date April 30, 2020 thus, for
comparability purposes, the financials presented as at December 31, 2019 are consolidated
accounts).

Bank's Assets
RON 7 .3bn
- 4 % ytd

Assets:
The total Bank's assets as of December 31, 2020 decreased ytd by 4% reaching RON 7,310
million (2019: RON 7,613 million).
The assets' structure is presented below:
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Assets
(RON thousands)

31 Dec. 2020

31 Dec. 2019

812,005

% of
total

11%

0%

586,926

8%

34%

437,824

6%

1,826,225
0

25%
0%

3%
-100%

1,766,488
50,823

23%
1%

3,712,201

51%
1%
0%
0%
1%
0%

-9%
-10%
- 6%
-6%

54%:
1%
0%
0%
2%
0%

1%

-1%

1%

-8%

4,095,022
54,884
27,090
30,948
136,203
29,085
0
49,160
7,443
41,717
0
105,526
105,517

811,868

Due from other banks

: Loans and advances to customers

ytd
change

11%

Cash and balances with Central Bank
Investments in debt securities / AFS
Repurchase receivables (Repo)

% of
total

l---------------- - --------------------------------------------------------------------1
Intangible assets
Premises and equipment
Investment property
Right-of-use assets
Repossessed assets from

foreclosed loans
Tax assets
Current income tax prepayment
Non-current income tax
Deferred income tax asset
Other financial assets
Other financial assets
Derivative financial assets
Other financial assets at FVPL
Other non-financial assets
Total

49,607
25,433
29,220
90,056
20,996

48,463
6,019
42,444
0
96,835
96,762
72
1
11,990

0%

7,309,820

100%

- 28%

1%

1%

-33%

8
1
17,930

0%

-4%

7,612,988

100%

Loans and advances to customers:
Loans
RON 3 .7bn
-9% ytd

The loan portfolio reached, at December 31, 2020, a gross outstanding balance of RON 3,712
million (2019: RON 4,095 million), decreased compared to end of the previous year due to the
refocusing of the bank's strategy towards a more prudent lending and return per client driven
approach. The evolution was affected by the impact of Covid19 pandemic. New lending was
granted based on more selective criteria accretive to capital.
The Bank's loan portfolio has a balanced mix, companies' segments representing 57% of total
portfolio (2019: 59%), while individuals' loans contribute with 43% in total loans (2019: 41%).
The composition of the loan portfolio is presented in the next table:
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Loans

31 Dec. 2020

(RON thousands)
Com1:1anies, out of which:
Corporate

% of
total

ytd
change

31 Dec. 2019

% of
total

2,259,431

57%

-10%

1,335,517

34%

- 10%

2,211,369
1,476,557

SMEs

754,767

19%

- 19%

929,444

Micro

169,147

4%

61%

105,368

1,688,009

43%

-3%

1.741,452

2%
41%

401,622

10%

- 5%

422,378

10%

309,785

8%

-9%

340,620

8%
22%

Individuals, out of whi~h:
Individuals - consumer loans
Individuals - personal needs
(secured)
Mortgage loans

59%
35%
22%

923,078

23%

Overdraft

33,086

1%

0%
-7%

919,163
35,742

Credit Cards

20,438

1%

-13%

23,549

1%
1%

3,947,440

100%

-7%

4,252,821

100%

-235,239

-6%

49%

-157,799

-4%

-9%

4,095,022

Total gross value
Less provision for impairment

Total net value

3,712,201

The quality of the Bank's loan's portfolio improved during 2020; the level of NPLs dropped to
4.49% (2019: 4.6%). The NPL coverage with provisions increased compared to last year reaching
57.7% (2019: 46%).

Liquid Assets

RON 3.2bn
+7% ytd

Liquid Assets
During 2020 liquidity stood at comfortable levels, all liquidity metrics being positioning well above
the regulatory requirements. The movement is in line with the deposits trend and remains under
a very cautious management in view of the liquidity and efficiency objectives.

Liquid assets

31 Dec. 2020

(RON thousands)

% of
total

196,798

6%

1%

615,070

19%

444,503
170,567

14%
5%

0%
-25%
546%

590,688
26,412

6%
20%
20%
1%

586,926
1,826,225

18%
57%

34%
3%

437,824
1,766,488

59%

3,225,019

100%

7%

Total Liguid assets

LtD ratio

31 Dec. 2019

Placements with Central Bank
Mandatory reserve
Overnight deposits
Due from other banks

LCR

ytd
change

Cash

Unencumbered Bonds

294%

% of
total

194,905
617,100

15%

3,016,317 100%

Liquidity
Bank's Liquidity Coverage Ratio stood at 294% as of December 31, 2020 (2019: 222%), while
the Net Stable Funding Ratio positioned at 1.69 (2019: 1.49). Loans to deposits ratio decreased
compared to 2019 from 74% to 72% as of December 31, 2020.
The unencumbered bonds (bearing Romanian sovereign risk) increased from 23% to 25% of total
assets.

72%
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Tangible and inta ngible assets
The tangible and intangible assets account for 1% of Bank's total assets (2019: 1.1%). The total
value of investments (additions of Property, Plant and Equipment, and Intangible assets)
amounted to almost RON 27 million as of December 31, 2020.
Starting with 2019, according to IFRS16 an asset was recognized for the present value of all
future payments related to rental contracts consisting in 1.2% of Bank's total assets. Part of the
RON 90 mi llion right of use assets is related to the rental of the Titulescu head office building.

Tax assets
As of December 31, 2020, the Bank has tax assets in amount of RON 42.4 million following the
tax audit ended in 2018. The Bank challenged the outcome of the tax audit and recorded an
uncertain tax asset based on a very rigorous assessment of its chances of winning .

Other financia l assets
Largest item is represented by an indemnity asset bought from the main shareholder (arm's
length transaction) for receivables related to operational risk which are indemnified by the former
parent, Piraeus Bank (RON 82 million).
Liabilities
RON 6 .6 bn
-4% ytd

Liabilities
During 2020, the Bank continued to enjoy a stable and solid funding base.
The comparative statement of liabilities, for December 2020 and 2019 is as follows:
Liabilities

31 Dec. 2020

(RON thousands)
Due to other banks
Customers' accounts
Derivative financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVPL
Other financial liabilities
Provisions for risks and charges
Other non-financial liabilities
Lease liabilities
Subordinated debts
Deferred income tax liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deposits
RON 5.Sbn

% of
total

ytd
change

637,283
5,477,529
11,665
0
44,204
65,017
30,238
90,217
194,898
5,500

10%
84%
0%
0%
1%
1%
0%
1%
3%
0%

9%
-4%
314%

6,556,551

1000/o

31 Dec. 2019

% of
total

-10%
17%
-32%
-33%
2%
-68%

584,156
5,713,698
2,821
0
49,291
55,752
44,758
135,224
191,326
17,331

9%
84%
0%
0%
1%
1%
1%
2%
3%
0%

-40/o

6,794,357

1000/o

Customers' Accounts
Customer accounts represent 84% from liabi lit ies, funding 75% of Bank's total assets.

-4% ytd

The tables below present the structure and the evolution of customers' accounts:
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Customers' Accounts
(RON thousands)
Current accounts & Sight Deposits
Term deposits
Collateral deposits
Fiduciary deposits

Total
Local Customers' Accounts
(RON thousands)

Due to Banks

RON 0 .6bn
+9% ytd

ytd
change

% of
total

31 Dec. 2019

2,365,024
3,032,887
76,038
3,580

43%
55%
1%
0%

29%
-10%
-84%
-89%

1,834,220
3,361,131
484,887
33,460

32%
59%
8%
1%

5,477,529

1000/o

-40/o

5,713,698

1000/o

% of
total

31 Dec. 2020

Companies
Individuals

Total

% of
total

31 Dec. 2020

ytd
change

% of
total

31 Dec. 2019

2,503,742
2,970,207

46%
54%

-19%
15%

3,100,948
2,579,290

55%
45%

5,473,949

1000/o

-4%

5,680,238

1000/o

Interbank funding
As of December 31, 2020, the amounts attracted from other banks represented 10% of Bank's
funding mix (9% of total assets), as compared to 9% at the end of 2019 (8% of total assets).
% of
total

31 Dec. 2020

Due to other banks
(RON thousands)
Sight deposits
Term deposits
Sale and repurchase agreements with
banks
Borrowings from other banks

Total

ytd
change

31 Dec. 2019

% of
total

262,784
85,008

41%
13%

49%
18%

176,228
72,017

30%
12%

0

0%

-100%

50,843

9%

285,068
584,156

49%
1000/o

289,491

45%

2%

637,283

1000/o

90/o

Sub Debt

RON0.2 bn
+2% ytd

As of December 31, 2020, the Bank held a subordinated debt in amount of €40 million granted
by the former parent (Piraeus Bank S.A. - Greece). The subordinated debt will mature in June
2023.

Provisions
As of December 31, 2020, the Bank held provisions in amount of RON65 million ( + 17%) covering
the legal risk associated mainly to past commercial practices.

Provisions
(RON thousands)
Provisions for litigations
Provisions for potential claims
Other Provisions

Total

31 Dec. 2020

% of
total

ytd
change

31 Dec. 2019

% of
total

20,996
33,438
10,582

32%
51%
16%

27%
11%
16%

16,471
30,196
9,085

30%
54%
16%

65,016

1000/o

170/o

55,752

1000/o
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Equity
RON 0.75bn
-8% ytd

~

Shareholders' equity decreased by 8% negatively affected by RON 71 million negative resu lt,
partially counterbalanced by RON 9 million positive result in securities valuation.
The structure of the shareholders' equity is presented in the table below.
Shareholders' Equity

31 Dec. 2020

(RON thousands)
Share capital
Share premium
(Accumulated loss) / Retained earnings
Current Profit / Loss
Loss carried forward
Other reserves
Non-Controlling Interest
Total shareholders' e~uity

ytd
change
0%

31 Dec. 2019

1,246,880
-94
-613,061
-70,766
-542,295
119,544
0

14%
-160%
-18%
7%
-100%

1,246,647
0
-539,677
118,830
-658,507
111,522
139

753,269

-8%

818,631

CAR
23.18%

Net Profit
RON -70.8m

As of December 31, 2020, the Bank posted a total capital adequacy ratio of 23.18% (31
December 2019: 20.79%) and a CETl ratio of 20.52% (31 December 2019: 17.79%), over
regulatory limits. The ratios include December 2020 loss.

Income Statement
During 2020 the Bank recorded a loss of RON 70.8 million driven by the burden of Leumi Bank
integration costs and negative influence of the higher cost of risk generated by the COVID 19
pandemic.
The total comprehensive income of RON -61.3 million was influenced by the income associated to
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
The table below presents the comparative income statement for 2020 and 2019 :
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Income Statement

31 Dec 2019

y/y %

233,954

244,189

-4%

77,918

93,678

-17%

38,872

44,794

-13%

21,795

36,337

-40%

(62,157)

-102%

31 Dec 2020

(RON thousands)
Net Interest Income
Net Fee and Commission Income, out of which:
- Income from Assets Administration
FX Trading
Other Operating Income /(Expenses)

1,130

Net Operating Income

334,797

312,047

Staff Costs

(168,809)

(156,421)

8%

Administrative Costs

(113,869)

(128,772)

-12%

(79,640)
(362,318)

(77,103)
(362,296)

3%
0%

(27,521)

{50,249)

-45%

(81,588)

(32,536)

151%

Depreciation and amortisation
Operating Costs
Pre-provision income

Loan provisions
Recoveries from written off loans

7%

37,599

62,510

-40%

(11,401)

46,520

-125%

(82,912)

26,245

-416%

112,687
112,687

-100%

(82,912)

138,932

-160%

Current tax

(1,423)

0

n/r

Deferred tax

13,569

Other provisions
Profit before exceptional items and taxes

Gain on bargain purchase
Exceptional items
Profit/ (Loss) before tax

Profit/ (Loss) after tax

Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss)
Total Comprehensive Income / {Loss)

0
0

(70,766)

9,458
(61,308)

(20,102)

-168%

118,830

-160%

8,871

7%

127,701

-148%

Elements that influenced Bank's result in 2020
Bank NII
-4% y/y

Bank NFC
(non-AA)
-20% y/y

Net interest income decreased by 4% y/y reflecting the unfavourable interest rate environment.
On the income side, the interest income related to loans declined y/y by 11% influenced by the
lockdown period when new lending was almost frozen and due to constant decline in ROBOR rate.
The decline in interest income from loans was partially counterbalanced by increase in interest
income from investment securities ( +32%) as a result of higher placements in Government bonds.
On the funding side, the interest paid on customer accounts decreased y/y by 17% reflecting the
improved pricing competitiveness and excess liquidity on the market, while costs on wholesale
funding increased y/y by 21 % due to to higher volumes of interbank funding needed to fund the
RON denominated balance sheet components.
Net Commission Income, other than assets administration fees, declined y/y by 20%, negatively
affected by PSD2 implementation which impacted the FCY payment commissions. Income from
assets administration decreased y/y (-13%) due to lower volumes of assets under management
and the overall economic context generated by the pandemic.
Bank's income from FX Trading decreased y/y by 40% due to losses incurred from derivatives as
a result of mark-to-market adjustments generated by the decrease of market rates and net
interest paid for the interest rate swap (-11 million), while the gains from trading in foreign
currency slightly improved (+2%).
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Bank Costs
0% y/y

Bank's operating costs remained relatively flat y/y, with the increase
counterbalanced by lower administrative expenses. Among the projects that
operational costs during 2020 we mention the Bank Leumi merger project
marketing campaign for the launch of the mobile and internet banking platforms

in staff costs
generated high
and the broad
in July 2020.

The cost of credit risk increased in 2020 by 151 % compared to 2019 as per the effects of the
pandemic. The increase aimed to achieve a higher NPLs coverage ratio (from 46% up to 57. 7%),
further closing the gap to the market average.
Recoveries from written off loans remained an important contributor to the overall profitability
although despite being affected by the worsening of the economic context generated by the COVID
19 crisis.
The 2020 result was highly influenced by the structural changes that are in course of
implementation, which will allow the bank to achieve long term sustainable profitability and
operational efficiency.

6. Internal Control over Financial Reporting
The internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Bank's financial statements
for external reporting purposes, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). The internal control over financial reporting includes the disclosure controls and procedures
designed to prevent misstatements.
The main risks in financial reporting are that either financial statements do not present a true and
fair view due to inadvertent or intentional errors (fraud) or the publication of financial statements
is not done on a timely basis. These risks may reduce shareholders confidence or cause reputational
damage and may have legal consequences. A lack of fair presentation arises when one or more
financial statement amounts or disclosures contain misstatements (or omissions) that are material.
Misstatements are deemed material if they could, individually or collectively, influence economic
decisions that users make based on the financial statements. To confine those risks of financial
reporting, the Bank has established specific internal controls with the aim of providing reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatements in its financial statements.

Controls within the system of internal control over financial reporting are performed by all business
functions and infrastructure functions with an involvement in reviewing the reliability of the books
and records that underlie the financial statements. However, the internal controls over financial
reporting involve staff based mainly in the following functions: Finance, Data Management, IT,
Operations and Risk.
Finance function is responsible for the periodic preparation of the financial statements and operates
independently from the business units. Finance function has control responsibilities which
contribute to the overall preparation process:

Finance specialists are responsible for reviewing the quality of financial data by performing
validation and control. They are in close contact with business and employ their specific
knowledge to address financial reporting issues arising on products and transactions, as well
as validating reserving and other adjustments based on judgment.
Finance is responsible for activities which include the preparation of financial and
management information, forecasting and planning, and financial regulatory reporting.
Finance sets the reporting timetables, performs the aggregation processes, effects the
elimination entries for inter and intra group activities, controls the period end and
adjustment processes, compiles the Bank financial statements.
Finance is responsible for consistent interpretation and application of International Financial
Reporting Standards within the Bank. Finance provides accounting advice to business units
and is responsible for the timely resolution of specific accounting issues.
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Finance is responsible for providing guidance for valuation methodologies, undertaking in
the same time the valuation control work, challenging valuation results.
Tax function is responsible for producing income tax related financial data.
The internal controls over the financial reporting is also importantly supported by data
Management, IT, Operations and Risk Management. Although these functions are not
directly involved in the financial preparation process, they contribute significantly to the
production of financial information:
Data Management and IT ensure that sub-ledger information and general ledger
postings are properly supported by robust data management framework and
appropriate infrastructure.
Operations structure is responsible for confirming transactions
counterparties and performs reconciliations of nostro account balances.

with

bank

Risk Management is responsible for developing policies and procedures for managing
significant risks. Risk Management develops procedures for the identification of
impairment and calculation of provisions for credit and operational risks and assesses
their adequacy.

7. Risk Management

An efficient risk management is considered vital for the Bank in order to achieve its strategic
objectives and to ensure quality returns to its shareholders. The Bank places particular emphasis
on the effective monitoring and management of risk, with a view to maintaining stability, financial
soundness and continuity of its operations. In this context, the risk management framework
includes the sum of all strategies, policies, procedures, governance and systems that the Bank
develops and implements in order to adequately identify, measure, monitor, control and mitigate
risks deriving from its operations, while maintaining their level within the risk appetite and riskbearing capacity of the Bank.
In addition to the effective risk management objective, the risk management activity and internal
control system have been developed to meet external requirements and in particular, regulatory
requirements.
The Risk Strategy is the way to identify and manage significant risks of the Bank, which would
occur in the normal business conditions and to formalize a robust framework for managing and
controlling their conformity with the objectives of the general business strategy.
The main objectives of the Risk Strategy are the following:
Strong liquidity base, maintenance of capital adequacy and NPEs resolution are key
objectives in this context.
Constant enhancement of the Risk Management Framework and monitoring of control
implementation and effectiveness.
Developing and maintaining the risk awareness and culture across all levels (strategic,
tactical and operational) of the Bank.
Compliance with the current regulatory framework, supervisory requirements on risk
management and adherence to the international best practices.
Establishment of limits that maintain risks within acceptable levels according to the risk
appetite of the Bank.
Implementation of best practices in risk management that correspond to the size, the
risk profile, the business strategy of the Bank and the continuous alignment and
compliance with the regulatory requirements.
Contribution in the improvement of the Bank's Internal Control System and Corporate
Governance models.
Constant monitoring and improvement of control mechanisms of the Bank's operations,
in terms of risk management.
Translation from the original Romanian version .
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Support of optimal capital allocation and the risk adjusted yield per business
unit/customer.
The Risk Strategy is based on three main dimensions: risk appetite, risk tolerance and risk profile.
The risk appetite is expressed as the absolute level of risks that the Bank is ready to incur a priori
given current business conditions for ensuring the achievement of Bank's strategic objectives.
Risk tolerance represents the maximum level of risk that may be undertaken by the Bank, given
its capital base, available liquidity and regulatory restrictions.
The risk profile is defined as the level of risk exposure, at a given point in time, per risk type, as
identified by the Bank. The risk profile, assessed through the risk matrix, is not a mere static
measure, but must provide a dynamic assessment of the evolution of risks. The purpose of the risk
profile is to determine the dimension of each significant risk and the total risk level, based on key
risk indicators.
The internal risk management framework covers the following:
The identification, assessment/measurement, management, monitoring and reporting of
risks.
The establishment, allocation and monitoring of risk limits (including regulatory) in
collaboration with the responsible Business Units (risk owners), as well as the escalation
process regarding breaches.
The development and implementation of methodologies for supporting the risk management
framework, including early warning systems, credit models and risk adjusted pricing.
Guidelines and tools/methodologies for risk management purposes.
The stress testing framework employing scenarios adjusted to the current business
environment, across the range of activities and risk types of the Bank.
The estimation of capital distribution across different business units.
The implementation of risk management reporting requirements (internal and external).
The process of assessing the Bank's capital adequacy against risks, in accordance with both
idiosyncratic factors, such as Business Plan, risk profile and appetite, as well as systemic
factors, e.g. macroeconomic environment, market expectations.
The disclosure of information regarding capital adequacy and the risks undertaken and
managed, in order to ensure valid public disclosures and compliance with the regulatory
requirements.
The risk data aggregation capabilities and the risk reporting practice.
The main risk categories to which the Bank is exposed are: credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk,
operational risk, reputational risk, strategic risk, interest rate risk in the banking book, leverage
risk, compliance risk and capital adequacy.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other
party by failing to discharge an obligation or the risk that the counterparty to a transaction could
default before the final settlement of the transaction's cash flows.
The Bank recognizes and manages the intrinsic credit risk in all products and activities. The Bank
has appropriate and adequately defined credit-granting criteria, which reflect the market targets
and include thorough evaluation of borrowers, counterparties, and guarantors, as well as the
purpose, the type of funding, the type of collateral / security and the source of repayment.
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The Bank has clearly defined policies and procedures of approving new credit as well as
restructuring, renewal, refinancing of existing credit or write-offs while handles possible
exceptional deviations with the utmost attention. The Bank has limits structure that allows for
grouping and comparison of credit limits for different types of risk exposure at various levels, such
as borrower level (including connected borrowers), counterparty level, sector level and product
level.
Regular stress testing and scenario analysis are performed, in order to identify possible events or
future changes in economic conditions that could have unfavourable effects on a Bank's credit
exposures.
The Bank's concentration risk is monitored both at the level of economic activity of the business
portfolio (on and off-balance sheet exposures) under primary classification NACE 2, and at the
individual level, examining exposures to larger customers. For risk assessment, the concentration
index Herfindahl-Hirschman (HHI) is used.
Proactive and efficient management of non-performing credits and cases that require special
handling in a timely and efficient manner, including corrective actions as required.
The Bank's credit risk strategy considers the following characteristics: type of exposure, economic
sector, ownership type, counterparty category, residence, geographic area, currency, initial
maturity and special exposures.
Type of exposure - the Bank intends to lend on short (below 1 year), medium (1-5 years)
and long term (above 5 years).
Economic sector - the Bank particularly aims to channel the lending to financially sound
companies in sectors with increased potential.
Ownership type: - the Bank will grant loans to private and public entities.
Counterparty category - The Bank will place equal focus towards Corporate, Mid-Market,
Small & Medium Enterprises and Households.
Residence - The Bank will grant loans to residents and non-residents.
Currency - The bank will only offer loans in the main currencies (exotic currency operations
are forbidden). The Bank can also grant multi-currency loans.
Initial maturity - loans to Corporates and SME's can be granted on 12 months up to 15
years, while loans to individuals can be granted on 6 months up to 30 years, depending on
the facility type.
Exposures to related parties. Specific limits are set within the procedure on related parties.
Large exposures - Specific limits are set within the procedure on the identification,
monitoring and reporting of large exposures.

In order to diminish and control credit risk, the Bank takes the following measures:
Activities such as loan analysis and approval, loan disbursement, loan follow-up and
collection/workout, are treated separately, so that each activity is taken over by a distinct
structure of the Bank;
Internal activities are mapped to business lines, while identifying the organizational
structures involved in those activities;
In order to cover all the risks that can appear in the operational lending flows, the Bank
issued policies and detailed procedures for different loan categories;
Lending and risk management activities are performed by specialized personnel;
The personnel are accordingly allocated to specific areas of lending: analysis, follow-up,
collection etc.;
Regular training is provided to people involved in specific areas of lending;
Large exposures (exposures above 10% of own funds) are approved by the appropriate
level of competence, in accordance with the internal regulatory framework and the
governance principles of the Bank;
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For the management, control and mitigation of credit risk, the Bank uses credit limits.

Moreover, the Bank implemented specific processes for the measurement, assessment and
monitoring of credit risk, based on the following:
The credit risk profile, using key indicators and adequate limits;
The credit risk indicators to assess the evolution and quality of credit portfolio;
The dimension and evolution of credit risk minimum capital requirements;
The dimension and evolution of credit risk internal capital;
The methodology for stress testing on credit risk.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of incurring on-balance and off-balance sheet losses due to adverse market
movements in prices (such as, for example, share prices, interest rates, and foreign-exchange
rates).
The Bank has clearly defined policies and procedures in order to ensure the active management of
market risk. The Bank has the appropriate systems in order to measure and assess market risk
while keeping up with current regulatory and banking environment challenges.
Every activity that exposes the Bank to market risk is adequately captured in the systems while
any new product is reviewed in advance. The Bank regularly assesses the horizon that allows any
material market risks being hedged or the relevant positions to be liquidated (regular assessment
of market liquidity).
The Credit Valuation Adjustment (CVA) framework of the Bank clearly addresses the procedure
followed for CVA calculation on derivatives portfolios from all involved desks, their roles and
responsibilities. The Bank has adequate arrangements in place for active monitoring and managing
CVA for both accounting and regulatory purposes.
Exchange rate risk strategy takes into consideration the following:
An indicator to commensurate the decrease of income caused by adverse movements in
exchange rates: the level of potential loss;
Trading limits, according to the risk profile such as: intraday, 0/N, daily and monthly stoploss, and limits monitored by Back-Office Department and Risk Management Division;
Stress test scenarios for stressed market conditions to assess the impact on returns of
potential extreme volatilities of exchange rates;
Internal VaR -type model under the internal capital adequacy assessment process;
Regular reports to the management body on limit observance or limit breaches, as well as
on the evolution of the risk profile.
Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book
Interest Rate risk in the Banking Book is the risk of a potential loss of value that may arise due to
an adverse change in the absolute level of interest rates, in the spread between two rates, in the
shape of a yield curve on any other interest rate relationship. Subject to this risk are primarily all
interest-bearing assets and liabilities, while non-interest bearing assets and liabilities may also be
affected to the extent their value is correlated to the level of interest rates.

Interest rate risk strategy includes the following:
An indicator to quantify the change in net interest income as a result of interest rate
fluctuations (i.e. Earning at Risk);
An indicator to quantify the impact of a parallel shift of the yield curves by 100 bps on the
present value of the bank's assets and liabilities, for both Trading and Banking book (i.e.
PV 100);
An indicator to quantify the potential change of the economic value of the bank due to
interest rates fluctuations by 200bps (i.e. Duration Gap - DGap);
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Limits monitored by Treasury Back office Department and Risk Management Division;
Regular reports to the management body on limits observance and on the evolution of the
risk profile;
Stress test scenarios to assess the impact of possible adverse evolutions of interest rates
on returns.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the current or future risk of negative impact on profits and capital, determined by
the Bank's inability to meet its liabilities when they become due.
The Liquidity Management Strategy defines the way to manage the liquidity, the reporting system,
and the preventive and corrective actions which should be taken to avoid crisis situations.
The Bank's liquidity management process, as carried out within the Bank and monitored by a team
from Treasury and Financial Markets Division and Risk Management Division includes:
Day-to-day funding managed by monitoring future cash flows in various currencies and in total
to ensure that requirements can be met. These include replenishment of funds as they mature
or are borrowed by customers. The Bank maintains an active presence in global money markets
to enable this to happen;
Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection
against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow;
Monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements;
Performing periodic stress tests on liquidity;
Establishing funding plans to be applied in case of a liquidity crisis and testing them
periodically;
Monitoring the cost of funds of the bank and the factors that lead to it decreasing/increasing;
and
Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

The Bank performs on a regular basis, stress testing simulations in order to assess the effect of
extreme possible conditions in its liquidity and has in place a Contingency Funding Plan that ensure
the early identification and the prompt handling of a liquidity crisis, through predetermined
procedures and alternative courses of action

Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and systems or from external events, and includes legal risk.
The Bank acknowledges its exposure to operational risk, which stems from its daily operations and
the implementation of both business and strategic goals. Operational risk is assumed and managed
at a structural level, as close as possible to the source of the risk by the development of a common
and comprehensible "culture" regarding operational risk management across all organizational
levels.
The management of operational risk covers all business and support functions of the Bank targeting
at both the control and mitigation of the risk. The operational risk management framework,
documented through methodologies and processes, is consistent to the identification,
measurement, monitoring, control and mitigation of risk.
The operational risk management framework includes the Risk and Control Self-Assessment, the
operational risk events / losses collection, the monitoring of the action plans, the key risk
indicators, and the calculation of the internal capital.
The Business Continuity Plan (BCP), constitutes a clear and organized approach for the mitigation
of any negative impact that may affect the business continuity under crisis conditions. The
implementation of the Business Continuity Plan ensures the smooth and uninterrupted operation
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of the Bank, the effective treatment of operational risk and the full compliance with the regulatory
framework.
The operational risk management framework includes the systematic monitoring of data that are
related to operational risk and the loss data collection process. Adequate information is provided
at all levels of the organizational structure in order to facilitate effective decision-making. Insurance
policies are in place in order to mitigate efficiently and effectively the exposure of the Bank to
operational risk.
Reputational risk
Reputational risk is defined as the present or future risk of losses in returns or in capital due to
adverse perception of the image of the Bank by customers, counterparties, shareholders, investors
or regulators.
With respect to the efficient management of reputational events, the Bank aims to:
Identify on a continuous basis the potential triggers of reputational risk;
Monitor the key risk indicators that commensurate the level of risk;
Maintain a structure to be responsible for the identification of reputational risk triggers and
of adequate measures for crisis management, for the coordination of actions taken by
relevant persons in order to reduce/eliminate the effects of potential crisis and for the
implementation or execution of executive decisions;
Ensure business continuity in unforeseen circumstances;
Monitor the image of First Bank in mass-media and identify any rumour that can result into
reputational risks, and especially those rumours that can eventually affect the liquidity of the
Bank.
Strategic risk
Strategic risk represents the current or future risk of negative impact on profits and capital
determined by changes in the business environment or by not favourable business decisions, by
the inadequate implementation of decisions or by the absence of reaction to the changes in the
business environment.
The Bank manages the strategic risk through robust internal control mechanisms at the strategic
level of its corporate governance. This covers all aspects and processes of the strategic decisionmaking. The Bank tightly and effectively monitors the economic outlook and the business
environment in which it operates. Budgets and business planning are regularly readjusted in order
to reflect the changing economic conditions.
Leverage risk
Leverage risk is the risk resulting from bank's vulnerability due to leverage or contingent leverage
that may require unintended corrective measures to its business plan, including distressed selling
of assets which might result in losses or in valuation adjustments to its remaining assets.
The main strategic objectives with potential impact on the risk of excessive leverage are:
maintaining the capital at pre-existent levels;
organic growth of capital by restoring the capacity to generate profit;
The management of the risk of excessive leverage is performed by measuring and monitoring a
specific indicator.

Compliance risk
Compliance risk is the current or future risk of affecting the profits and the capital, which may lead
to fines, claims and/or the cancellation of contracts or which may affect the reputation of a credit
institution, as a consequence of infringements or non-compliance with the legal and regulatory
framework, with the agreements, recommended practices or ethical standards.
The Bank adopts specific policies and procedures to manage the compliance risk within the various
compliance areas, as follows:
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the management of conflicts of interests is a permanent priority, the employees being
responsible for the identification, reporting and management of the situations which generate
conflicts of interest;
the employees of the Bank, regardless the position they hold within the Bank, have the
obligation to observe and comply with the policy and procedures regarding the prevention of
money laundering and terrorism financing;
the employees of the Bank have the obligation to know their customer in order to establish if
they have or they control assets which are the object of international sanctions or if the assets
are owned by designated persons;
the Bank has a zero-tolerance regarding corrupted practices, including, but not limited to
bribery
the Bank ensures a necessary framework regarding market abuse and related areas having
an impact in Capital Markets and Treasury;
The Bank ensures a necessary framework for the prompt detection of the irregularities,
negligence or punishable facts in the activity of the Bank;
The Bank takes all the necessary measures for the strict compliance with the legislation and
for an applicable regulatory framework and the customers' personal data protection. All
employees who have privileged information, have the obligation to not use this kind of
information for obtaining some personal advantages.

Capital Management and Capital adequacy
The Bank recognizes the importance of maintaining a strong capital base against risks undertaken.
The capital adequacy management target is to assure a strong capital base, capable to support
the Bank's business/strategic plan(s).
The Bank calculates capital requirements against all types of risks it undertakes and reports on its
capital adequacy in full compliance with all applicable regulatory requirements. The risk and capital
adequacy disclosures are at all time transparent, credible and reliable while adhering to best
practices.
Every activity that exposes the Bank to credit, market and operational risks subject to capital
requirements is adequately captured and processed in the Bank's systems. Capital adequacy is
managed in a dynamic manner by considering prevailing and forward-looking economic conditions.

In accordance with Article 148 of the Emergency Ordinance no. 99/2006 on credit institutions and
capital adequacy, as subsequently amended and NBR Regulation no. 5/2013 on prudential
requirements for credit institutions, the Bank has in place a process for internal assessment of
capital adequacy to risks (ICAAP) . The internal process for the assessment of capital adequacy to
risks is integrated in the administration and management process of the Bank and in its decisionmaking culture. The Bank performs periodically an evaluation of internal capital adequacy to risks
by comparing the available own funds with internal capital requirements. The general framework
for ICAAP is updated annually and the capital adequacy monitoring is performed on a quarterly
basis.
IT risk
The Bank implemented a new VPN solution to provide bank's employees with a safe work from
home solution. The new solution came with better security measures, including MFA authentication,
anti-malware protection, vulnerability scanner.
Another measure implemented was to improve the process of granting access to the Bank's IT
resources for all employees by putting into production a solution for registering all applications, so
that paper applications are no longer required, thus helping the Bank to achieve its environmental
objectives.
A DLP solution (Data Lost Prevention) has been implemented that is now in the process of
optimization.
In the Covid19 pandemic context, the Business Continuity Plan was updated in line with NBR
requirements, where physical headquarters were defined so that employees can work in teams by
rotation with those from work from home, assuring that the Bank continues to operate properly.
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8. Business development - innovation
During 2020, the Bank accelerated its Digital Transformation path, aiming to step up customer
digital experience with human touch. Despite the very challenging year the Bank delivered several
very important projects:
a)

In April 2020 launched Net Promoter Score, a project meant to focus our organization more
towards customer satisfaction. During the same month we launched the electronic signature
in our Pl lending unsecured processes.

b)

During 2020 we increased the number of processes and products in our Video Advisory
platform, adding the electronic signature for PI loans, the negotiated FX, improving current
account package offer delivery, better targeting this sa les channel to our target market with
the project " Personal Banker" and improving customer recognition process with Onfido.

c)

In the second part of 2020 we launched the Micro E2E lending process, a streamlined, simple
and fast way to service the lending needs of our Micro customers. At the same time, we
started to create similar lending processes for our SME and Private Individuals segments.

d) In the first part of 2020 we launched our new internet and mobile banking platform, "Firstbank
App", migrating during 2020 all our customers to this new app. During 2020 the usage of the
internet and mobile banking app. increased significantly compared to previous year.
e)

9.

On the 4 t h of July 2020 we launched our online onboarding process within the mobile banking
app., being among the first banks in Romania to launch fully remote digital onboarding
process.

Human Resources
At 31 December 2020, the total number of employees was 1063, with 955 active employees
(excluding suspended contracts) . At 31 December 2019, the total number of employees was 924
with 885 active employees .
During 2020 the Human Resources Division focused mainly on reshaping itself to better enable the
new phase of the bank's transformation. In the first stage, HR modified its operating model and
skillsets in order to more specifically contribute to the organizational goals going forward. A new
HR Director joined as Chief People Officer in June and in the last quarter the administrative area
was slightly rightsized while at the same time new skillsets were brought into the team. 3 HR
Business Partners joined, each with an additional specialization and responsibility on top of the HR
Partner role such as: Organizational Development, Reward and Transformation, on top of managing
the HR agenda for the specific business areas allocated. At the same time new mechanisms for
predictive cost control were introduced in order to better control the human capital annual costs.
As well, the conceptual and process foundation was built or redesigned for the management of
human resources in the yearly cycle, such as: performance management, annual compensation
revi ew and clear principles for bonus allocation, talent development and also some personnel
administration areas increased in discipline (i.e. untaken holiday provision spend, employee
relations by pro-active communication, clarification of the benefits structure, etc).
Several digital platforms were implemented in the areas of: teams' engagement measurement,
predictive analysis on attrition factors, constant communication to and among employees, one to
many platforms to clarify and make transparent the business plan and progress of the bank to
employees via v irtual general meetings and peer level recurrent meetings. A Recruitment and
selection management platform was implemented while the key messages were structured and
made visible for talent attraction based on external surveys on Employer Branding.
In the second part of 2020 most management systems for proper management of Human
resources were designed and approved, for implementation in 2021:
Pay for performance introduced as management principle in order to align talent with
the bank's overall strategy and objectives versus the previous approach that did not lay
emphasis on meritocracy and performance differentiation. The full Performance
management process has been redesigned and implemented to reflect individual
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contribution to the achievement of teams' and overall company goals. A complete
performance cycle was established with a mid-year review and a recommended
distribution of performance ratings. Depending on the budget affordability, all employees
who have achieved and over-achieved their goals are entitled to a yearly performance
bonus except for the leavers. KPis for the sales force have been reviewed and
communicated properly in order to provide a more complex approach to viewing
performance and results for all our stakeholders both for short and long term
achievement.
Reward cycle introduced in order to set a clear calendar for salary reviews across the
bank that allows for better clarity for the employees and an enhanced planning capability
for the management and the bank structures.
Employee communication was streamlined on 4 levels of the organization: Top down,
Peer level, VP clustered and Bottom up. At the same time, a one stop shop information
and communication platform was upgraded to enhance clarity and transparency for all
employees.
Engagement and Climate as a clear driver for NPS was implemented in Q4. The eNPS
will be correlated with he NPS at branch and regional level to determine better retention
of employees and customers.
Employee Digitization started as a 3 year roadmap and will be reflected in a higher
adoption of digital platforms via higher self service and real time information availability.

10. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR}
In 2020, First Bank supported the everRestless project - 6633 ARCTIC ULTRA.
everRestless is the story of the ultramarathon runner Vlad Cri$an-Pop who, in February 2020,
embarked on the race to run 620 km in harsh conditions, at the Arctic Circle. The stake: to raise
awareness of the needs of children with cancer and make it possible to award 100 MagiCAMP
educational scholarships for these children .
The Magic Association is one of the most important charities in Romania. Through the projects of
the association, children and parents are offered access to social and emotional support
complemented by financial or material support, during the period when the child is ill.
The purpose of the 100 Educational Scholarships worth 600,000 lei for 100 children from the
MagiCAMP camp (scholarship worth 500 lei per month for 12 months), is to prevent the school
dropout of children with oncological diseases.
First Bank joined this project due to a common vision: we believe that all children deserve a chance
at a good education, regardless of the diagnosis received.
After winning the 193 km race in 2019, Vlad Cri$an Pop returned in 2020 to 6633 Arctic Ultra for
the 620 km race, motivated by the same cause: the children from the MagiCAMP camp. 6633 Arctic
Ultra is an ultramarathon among the polar ice, seen by many as the most difficult race in t he world,
considering the running distance, over 600 km, in conditions of extreme temperatures, which are
often felt below -50 degrees Celsius.
In this project, along with the athlete, there was a team of Romanian filmmakers who followed him
step by step: Adi Bulboaca, photographer, Sorin Florea, director, Tudor Petre, sound designer and
Vasile Flutur, writer, a team that documented the EverRestless challenge. This documentary will
be a premiere for the Romanian film industry, being the first Romanian feature film at the North
Pole, in northwestern Canada.
The proposed financial objective of the project everRestless - 6633 ARCTIC ULTRA has been
achieved, raising the necessary funds for these scholarships, which support the child's reintegration
into school, for a period of one year, covering expenses for school supplies, books, preparation for
subjects in which children take aptitude tests or baccalaureate.

11. Events after the reporting period
There are no other material events since the reporting period that need to be disclosed.
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12. Conclusions and outlook
In 2020 the Bank consolidated its capital position and considering the ample restructuring and
business transformation processes, backed by strong investments in technology and a solid capital
base, the Bank is placed in a good position for challenges to come, while remaining committed
towards a responsible and efficient growth.

Ilinca Rosetti
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Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Board of Directors' Proposals:

Considering the present report and the opinion of the external auditor, we submit for the approval of
the General Assembly of the Shareholders of First Bank the financial statements prepared according
to the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, for the period
ended December 31, 2020, which include:
- The statement of financial position;
- The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income;
- The statement of changes in equity;
- The cash flow statement;
- Notes to financial statements.

"'"1Ro::'th,
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Hendricus Charles Hubertus
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Appendix: 1
NON-FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Description of the business model

The Bank offers a large range of products and services, which covers a wide diversity of saving
products, financing for individuals and companies, factoring, financial leasing, co-financing for
European funds and capital market services. The Bank has a fully-fledged digital platform providing
access to a wide spectrum of banking services.
The Bank operates under a customer-focused business model, having the customer in the heart of all
activities. The Bank focuses on individual customers, small and mid-sized companies aiming to deliver
exceptional customer service. The customer service will be the foundation of the relationship the Bank
wants to develop with its clients
The main pillars of our Strategy are the following:
Customer-centric delivery, with deep customer knowledge;
High quality human resource operating to high levels of effectiveness;
Technology deployed for innovative front-end propositions and efficient back end using data
and analytics;
Disciplined and compliant execution and governance providing consistent and sustainable
profitability.
The Bank aims to secure its long-term competitiveness by achieving operational excellence. The
objective remains to deliver organic capital generation through sustainable profitability. The Bank
targets a strong capital position, striving to maintain adequate capital buffers aligned to its risk profile.
The Bank aims to secure a stable liquidity position, having as main pillar customers' deposits,
maximizing on core deposits through high quality and effective servicing.
The Bank wants to attract, retain and engage qualified professionals, capable of providing high quality
services to customers and guaranteeing the sustainability and the success of the business.

Our mission

Our mission is to serve as a reliable partner for our customers, responsibly providing safe, simple and
handy financial products and services.
We are here to offer the best customer experience, while opening the door to new opportunities and
consolidating the future together.
We are committed to dedicating our people, technology and expertise to a common goal: to help the
customers, shareholders and communities we serve to grow.
We believe in integrity, client first, passion for sustainable results, teamwork, innovation, community
involvement.

Brand

In 2020, First Bank aimed to improve consumers' perception and interest in its brand. In the first wave
of the Brand Tracking study in June 2020, First Bank did not have a clear and strong image, but
following a campaign to launch the mobile application, it improved the image associations. In October
2020 First Bank improved in image associations, especially in the area of modern technology,
transparent communication and innovation, starting to form a distinct image and position among
competitors. It is also perceived as a bank for modern people with high income.
When it comes to our brand objectives, First Bank Awareness increased +7.lpp (Objective was +Spp)
to 58.1% in Oct vs. 51% in Jun 2020 and Consideration increased +4.Spp (Objective was +3pp) to
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7.5% in Oct vs. 3% in Jun 2020. Moreover, virtually all positive brand associations improved for First
Bank in Oct vs. Jun 2020 ranging from +2pp to +8pp according to our annual brand tracking study.

Corporate Social Responsibility

At First Bank, being a responsible business means that we operate with integrity, transparently and
securely. It involves creating a culture for our employees that is inclusive, inspiring and supportive. It
allows us to innovate and deliver smarter and convenient services for our clients.
These allow us to make a positive contribution to society, both through the services we provide as well
as through our CSR programs. Further, it gives us the opportunity to work collaboratively with our
business partners to support their own CSR agendas.

i.

Delivering for our clients

We create value for our clients by delivering what they expect in the most convenient way, making
processes smarter and customer experiences better. We do this by using smart technology and the
skills and expertise of our people.
We listen and respond to what our clients tell us, understanding their changing needs and working
with them to ensure we meet their expectations. We strive to deliver operational excellence and are
committed to maintaining and improving the services we provide to our clients.
To provide us with an understanding of key client satisfaction, we have implemented regular feedback
mechanisms. This helps us to identify where we need to work harder and where there is the potential
to add value to our clients' operations.
ii.

Our people and culture

Attracting and retaining talent:
To recruit and retain the best talent we need to provide a workplace that is inclusive, inspiring and
supportive. We want our employees to be empowered and motivated, enabling them to make better
decisions and respond to our clients' needs effectively. In this respect, we have created an environment
in which every employee may have access to a variety of developmental actions. For the high potential
and talented employees, we continued the mentoring program where selected mentors and mentees
participated at different developmental actions and had specific objectives to improve the leadership
capabilities.

Attracting talents is a challenge for the most industries; therefore, we have developed policies that
promote an objective assessment of internal and external candidates according to the selection criteria
established. Priority is given to existing employees as part of the Bank's efforts to support and promote
its own human resources. In this respect, all openings are announced to the employees and they are
encouraged to apply. There are developed transparent selection criteria and there are clear definitions
of job categories and hierarchical levels, as well as the potential career path .
The recruitment process is based on adequate procedures, free of discrimination, utilising specific
candidate selection systems by using modern appraisal and selection instruments. These instruments
may vary according to the candidate's educational and experience level and include both competency
tests and professional tests.
Embedding our values:
We have a common set of values which are reflected in our policies and embedded across our business.
These values and their associated behaviors shape who we are as a business and underpin our success.
Our ethical code was developed in line with our values setting out our commitments and ensuring that
our employees speak up if they see behaviors that are not consistent with our values.
Talent management:
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We work hard to build and retain strong, stable teams and leadership. We use this in conjunction with
our performance management system to identify high performing individuals. We recognize that to
deliver excellent service to our clients we need to ensure that our employees in our operations are
equipped with the right skills. We develop training for our people including the induction, class and elearning programs. These programs give employees the opportunity to develop the skills to create and
sustain high performing teams and navigate the challenges they may face within their business.
Diversity and inclusion:
Having a diverse workforce brings fresh perspectives and helps us to create truly innovative solutions
that benefit our clients and help improve our own market competitiveness. We are committed to
developing an inclusive culture that reflects the diversity of our clients, their customers and the
communities in which we work.
Health and safety:
By making sure that we take care of the health and safety of our people we reduce risks across our
business, protecting our reputation and that of our clients. We have an established health and safety
management system and all our employees have to complete training as part of their induction.
Employee wellbeing:
We recognize that a healthy, motivated workforce is good for business, reducing sickness absence and
increasing retention rates. We're focused on helping our people to more easily manage their work and
personal lives. Our HR policies are designed to help our people recharge, be there for their families,
meet their commitments and support their personal challenges.

Reward and recognition:
We want to retain the best talent across our business and believe in recognlZlng and rewarding
employees who put our values into practice. The remuneration policy aims to create a framework for
the remuneration and supports performance-driven culture, which brings the Bank's objectives in line
with the stakeholder's objectives (employees, management and shareholders) and motivates
employees to continue acting on the Bank's best interest.
Employee engagement:
Listening to and valuing the opinions of our people is good for productivity and it helps us shape our
future business. We engage with our employees through several different ways, ensuring they receive
regular updates including those relating to the performance of our business. We actively encourage
their feedback as they have a clear view of our operations and their ideas can help us deliver for our
clients.
Collective bargaining and freedom of association:
The Bank respects all principles governing human resources. All human resources regulations are
driven by human rights' principles. The Bank offers equal opportunities to its employees and applies
similar policies no matter sex, race, color, religion, sexual orientation, nationality, physical aptitudes,
etc. Equal opportunities refer to unitary, correct and impartial treatment to all employees and
development of working conditions to consolidate and respect diversity, ensure dignity at work, in a
broader vision of the society. Such principles are incorporated in the Collective Labor Contract.

iii.Business conduct and ethics:

Our reputation for integrity is one of our most important assets. We hold ourselves to standards that
not only meet those required by the laws and regulations that apply to us, but also to our principles,
which are rooted in exceeding our clients' expectations. We believe in operating with integrity, both in
our business decision making and the conduct of our employees. Our code of conduct sets out basic
principles to guide employee conduct. The code is supported by employee conduct policies and
programs and reinforced through regular training.
We have zero tolerance in relation to illegal or unethical conduct and this is articulated in our relevant
policies, including policies on conflicts of interest. Our policies prohibit any transaction, which could
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constitute a bribe or a corrupt payment to or from a public official or body, or a private entity or
individual.
Conflicts of interest
The specific internal policy provides advice/ guidance to the Bank's employees to identify situations
that present potential conflicts of interest and support them to manage these conflicts. The main
measures, procedures & mechanisms for the proper monitoring and minimization of the risk are:
separation of responsibilities, clear responsibilities of the management structure on the internal control
line, independence of internal control functions, code of conduct, staff remuneration, gifts and personal
benefits, personal transactions, transactions with persons in special relationship with the Bank.
Whistle Blowing
The Whistle Blowing concept was developed and implemented in the Bank in order to proactively
establish a communication channel for disclosing anonymously reports / complaints about a possible
illegitimacy, serious irregularity or offence, which is detected regarding an employee, collaborator or
affiliated person. A basic and inviolable attribute of the Whistle Blowing Policy is the protection of the
anonymity and the confidentiality principle of t he data of the individuals submitting such reports, as
well as, the assurance that their current position and their future professional development shall not
be affected as a result of the related audit report issued. The Whistle Blowing process is managed by
the Bank's Internal Audit function and has as beneficiaries the Chair of the Audit Committee and the
Head of Internal Audit.
Anti-corruption and bribery

First Bank is committed to conducting the activities in accordance with the Romanian law, harmonized
with the principles set by European applicable regulations, the UK Bribery Act ("UKBA"), and the United
States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act ("FCPA") . The Bank has adopted a specific policy to prevent any
giving or offering of anything of value (including gifts, hospitality, or meals) to anyone for the purpose
of improperly obtaining or retaining a business advantage. Similarly, Bank Personnel may not solicit
or accept such improper payments or benefits.
The Policy and the internal controls of the Bank have been designed to prevent misconduct from
occurring, avoid the appearance of wrongdoing and enable the Bank to respond promptly and
effectively to any inquiries about its conduct and the conduct of those acting on the Bank's behalf.
During 2020, the ABC Procedural Framework of First Bank was developed continuously along with the
internal controls which were implemented accordingly. Periodical checks were performed as part of
the Compliance Assurance Testing with focus on Third Party risk and integrity of the employees from
the perspective of Antibribery and Corruption.
Furthermore, in 2020, in order to raise awareness First Bank employees were trained with regards to
different elements of the ABC Program.

Know your customer and Anti Money Laundering

The Bank has set up KYC & AM L policies and procedures in accordance with legislation and best
practices. The Bank oversees to the preservation of reputation and brand value of the Bank towards
national and international authorities. We target to the long-term success and stability by attracting
and managing funds obtained only from legal sources.
Respecting sanctions and embargoes

The Bank has a responsibility to screen, evaluate, and, if required, observe laws and binding
requirements related to financial and trade sanctions set by the EU, BNR and other authorities such
as the US Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC). The Bank has set up policies, procedures and a
dedicated monitoring system to monitor the transactional behavior of customers and detect possible
activities suspicious of Money Laundering or Terrorism Financing
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Inherent operational risks resulting from regular business activity, including inter alia risks deriving
from processing of personal data and from increasing digital presence both internally through the use
of technology and external through the deployment of digital interfaces toward clients, are adequately
identified, monitored and controlled.
Personal data protection

Maintaining the right balance between the value of customer data and protection of the individuals is
important for the Bank. The Bank implemented specific actions to ensure compliance with the European
Regulation no.679/2016 on the protection of the natural persons regarding the processing of personal
data and on the free movement of such data and repealing Directive 95/46/EC (General Data
Protection Regulation).
Digital security

The Bank is fully compliant with all Romanian regulations regarding the IT security. The digital security
is under the responsibility of Chief Information Security Officer. To fight cybercrime, the Bank has
implemented solutions to protect the assets and transactions of its customers (Individuals and
Corporates). The Bank constantly strives to adapt its IT security measures to enhance the protection
of its customers against continuously growing information security threats.
iv.Running a resource-efficient business:

We are committed to tackling climate change and protecting our natural resources and so we take a
proactive approach to good environmental management. We know that our environmental
performance is important to our clients, our employees and other stakeholders and can create financial
savings to support the long-term sustainability of our business.
As a predominately office-based business, our main environmental impact comes from carbon
emissions generated from energy use in our offices and through business travel and so this is where
we concentrate our efforts. In addition, although our water usage is not significant, we have made
efforts towards conserving this resource. We also manage our resource use and waste management
where possible.
Direct environmental impacts

We aim to reduce the environmental impact of our operations through the management of energy,
paper and water consumption as well as reducing our overall emissions and waste. We are committed
to:
Reduce our energy consumption through a focus on energy efficiency solutions that optimize the
usage in our building and minimizes the impact of our data centers, like:
o Network - change of high efficiency thermal power plants (condensing boiler) with
20% reduction of gas consumption;
o Network - change of air conditioning systems and reducing by 10% of electricity
consumption;
o Network - replacement of the lighting system, from neon lights to LEDs and reducing
by 30% of the electricity consumption;
o HO - replacement in the headquarters of air conditioning systems with more efficient
equipment's and reducing by 10% of consumption;
Reduce our office paper consumption and minimize the use of paper for our marketing and
distribution activities whenever allowed;
Reduce carbon footprint in water consumption, as following: Head Office - 80% of bottled water
dispensers were replaced with water dispensers connected to the city network. In this way the
carbon footprint due to the transport of drums was reduced by 70%.
Reduce the waste we generate and recycle our waste, including our IT waste. We aim to increase
the use of recycled material in our operations, by investments made in the acquisition of dedicated
furniture for the distinct sorting of recyclables. Thus, the degree of collection will increase from
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10% to 23%. In the area of the internal restaurant, dishwashers have been already installed for
washing the glasses. In this way the consumption of 200 plastic glasses/ day was reduced.
Reduce the emissions derived from our business travel by minimizing the number of long-distance
trips of our employees, stimulating the use of alternative means of communication. Whenever we
are not able to avoid business trips, we will seek to do these using the less impactful transportation
means;
Seek suppliers that support us in this journey through their solutions and business practices.

We believe that behavioral change is pivotal to reduce our environmental impact. Therefore, we will
continuously seek to raise awareness amongst our employees and business partners of the importance
to make environmentally conscious choices and follow our environmental principles.
Indirect environmental impacts

In addition to red ucing our operational environmental footprint, we strive to minimize our indirect
impact on the environment by offering products and services that promote environmentally friendly
behavior. We want embedding corporate responsibility considerations into our business activities.
Where relevant, environmental aspects are considered for the development of new products as well
as included in the criteria we use for credit decisions.

v.Community investment programs
We add value to our country wide communities in several ways, as an employer contributing to the
economy, creating jobs, using local suppliers and through the services we deliver. We build
philanthropy on what matters. We are committed to building access to better futures for underserved
individuals and communities. We partner with best in class organizations and alongside support of our
charity partners; we actively encourage employees to give regularly on an individual basis to the
causes they care about.
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